
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




PRRIP – ED OFFICE FINAL  11/29/2011 
 


PRRIP GC Meeting Agenda  Page 1 of 2 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


Governance Committee Meeting Agenda – December 6-7, 2011 
Warwick Denver Hotel – Denver, CO 


 


START TIME 
(Duration) 


TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6
th
 (ALL TIMES MOUNTAIN) 


TOPIC, PRESENTER, & PROGRAM PURPOSE 


DOCUMENT # - 
DOCUMENT 


2:00 p.m. 
(:15) 


Welcome and Administrative 
Jim Schneider, GC Chair 
Information, Discussion, & Action 


 Introductions/Attendance Roster/Agenda Modifications 


 APPROVE SEPT. 2011 & NOV. 2011 GC MINUTES 


01 – GC Agenda 
02 – GC September 2011 


Minutes 
03 – GC November 2011 


Minutes 


2:15 p.m. 
(:60) 


FY 2012 PRRIP Budget & Work Plan 
Jerry Kenny, ED/EDO Staff 
Information, Discussion, & Action 


 Discuss FY 2011 budget and contract status 


 Discuss FY 2012 PRRIP budget and work plan 


 APPROVE FY 2012 ED CONTRACT EXHIBIT B 


 APPROVE FY 2012 PRRIP BUDGET 


 APPROVE FY 2012 WORK PLAN 


 APPROVE PROGRAM EQUIPMENT APPROACH 


04 – FY11 Budget Status 
Report 


05 – FY11 Budget Action 
Summary Table 


06 – FY 2012 PRRIP 
Budget Spreadsheet 


07 – FY 2012 PRRIP Work 
Plan 


08 – Headwaters Contract 
09 – Headwaters Corp. 


Staffing Plan 
10 – PRRIP Equipment 


Memo 


3:15 p.m. 
(:15) 


Water Quality Monitoring 
Chad Smith, ED Office 
Information, Discussion, & Action 


 APPROVE WATER QUALITY MONITORING RFP 


 APPOINT PROPOSAL SELECTION PANEL 


11 – Water Quality 
Monitoring RFP 


3:30 p.m. 
(:15) 


Geomorphology/In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring 
Chad Smith, ED Office 
Information, Discussion, & Action 


 APPROVE GEOMORPHOLOGY/IN-CHANNEL VEGETATION 
MONITORING RFP 


 APPOINT PROPOSAL SELECTION PANEL 


12 – Geomorphology/In-
Channel Vegetation 


Monitoring RFP 


3:45 p.m. 
(:30) 


Habitat Availability Analysis 
Chad Smith, ED Office 
Information, Discussion, & Action 


 APPROVE SOLE-SOURCE AGREEMENT WITH 
RAINWATER BASIN JOINT VENTURE FOR HABITAT 
AVAILABILITY ANALYSIS 


13 – RBJV Sole-Source 
Memo 


4:15 (:15) BREAK 


4:25 (:10) PUBLIC COMMENT 


4:35 p.m. 
(:45) 


GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Program Land Tracts 
Bruce Sackett, ED Office – Information & Discussion 


 Tracts 1101 and 1102 – Final negotiations 


 


5:20 p.m. 
(:10) 


Program Land Tracts & Issues 
Information, Discussion, & Action 


 MOTIONS FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 


 


5:30 p.m. ADJOURN & DINNER 


 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE FINAL  11/29/2011 
 


PRRIP GC Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 2 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


Governance Committee Meeting Agenda – December 6-7, 2011 
Warwick Denver Hotel – Denver, CO 


 


START TIME 
(Duration) 


WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 7
th
 (ALL TIMES MOUNTAIN) 


TOPIC, PRESENTER, & PROGRAM PURPOSE
 


DOCUMENT # - 
DOCUMENT 


8:00 a.m. 
(:10) 


Welcome and Administrative 
Jim Schneider, GC Chair 
Information & Discussion 


 Introductions/Attendance Roster 


 


8:10 a.m. 
(:10) 


Program Outreach Update 
Bridget Barron, ED Office 
Information & Discussion 


 Program presentations, outreach, and media 


 


8:20 a.m. 
(:20) 


Program Committee Updates 
Information & Discussion 


 LAC – Mark Czaplewski, CPNRD (Vice Chair) 


 WAC – Cory Steinke, CNPPID (Chair) 


 TAC – Mike Besson, State of WY (Chair) 


 FC – Mike Purcell, State of WY (Chair) 


14 – LAC Minutes 
15 – WAC Minutes 
16 – TAC Minutes 
17 – FC Minutes 


8:40 a.m. 
(:30) 


PRRIP Permits 
Jerry Kenny, ED 
Information & Discussion 


 Update on status of USACE and Nebraska DEQ permits for in-
channel work and sediment augmentation 


 


 9:10 a.m. 
(:20) 


Future Meetings & Closing Business 
Information & Discussion 


 Set 2012 GC meeting dates and locations 


 


9:30 a.m. GC MEETING WRAP-UP & ADJOURN 


 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 10 


 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 
Governance Committee Meeting Minutes 2 


Hampton Inn & Suites Conference Center – Scottsbluff, NE 3 
September 13-14, 2011 4 


 5 
Tuesday, September 13, 2011 6 


 7 
Meeting Attendees 8 


 9 
Governance Committee (GC) Table   Executive Director’s Office (EDO) Staff 10 
State of Wyoming     Jerry Kenny, Executive Director (ED) 11 
Mike Purcell – Member     Beorn Courtney 12 
Harry LaBonde – Alternate    Jason Farnsworth 13 
       Bruce Sackett 14 
State of Colorado     Chad Smith 15 
Don Ament – Member       16 
Suzanne Sellers – Alternate    Audience Members 17 
       Mike Besson – State of Wyoming 18 
State of Nebraska     Norm DeMott – Former GC Member 19 
Jim Schneider – Member (Chair)   Mike Drain – CNPPID 20 
Jennifer Schellpeper – Alternate    Pat Goltl – Nebraska DNR 21 
       Brock Merrill – BOR 22 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service)  Cory Steinke – CNPPID 23 
Mike George – Alternate    Diane Wilson – Nebraska Community  24 
           Foundation 25 
Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) 26 
John Lawson – Member 27 
 28 
Environmental Entities 29 
John Heaston – Member 30 
Bill Taddicken – Member 31 
 32 
Upper Platte Water Users 33 
Dennis Strauch – Member 34 
Doug Chamberlain – Member 35 
 36 
Colorado Water Users 37 
Alan Berryman – Member 38 
John Kolanz – Alternate 39 
Deb Freeman 40 
 41 
Downstream Water Users 42 
Brian Barels – Member 43 
Don Kraus – Member 44 
Kent Miller – Member 45 
Mark Czaplewski – Proxy for Ron Bishop, Member 46 
 47 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 10 


 


 


Welcome & Administrative 48 
Schneider called the meeting to order.  The group recognized the recent passing of Land Advisory 49 
Committee Chair Scott Woodman with a moment of silence.  Kenny said Sackett had a condolence card 50 
for GC members to sign and flowers were sent to the memorial service. 51 
 52 
The group proceeded with introductions.  Kenny recognized Norm DeMott, former member of the 53 
Governance Committee, and presented him with a congratulatory gift from the GC. 54 
 55 
No agenda modifications offered.   Berryman moved to approve the June 2011 GC minutes; Heaston 56 
seconded.  Minutes approved. 57 
 58 
LiDAR/Aerial Photography RFP 59 
Farnsworth discussed the LiDAR/Aerial Photography RFP.  He noted the Nebraska DNR wants to 60 
include a buy-up option for potentially collecting summer information in a different way, and also to 61 
make the RFP a single-year RFP instead of a multi-year RFP.  The EDO recommends including the buy-62 
up language as an option, but not make it required in proposals.  That will be discussed at the October 63 
TAC meeting.  That discussion will inform the selection process because proposals will not be submitted 64 
until the week after the TAC meeting.  The EDO also recommends keeping this a multi-year RFP.  The 65 
Program reserves the right in all multi-year contracts to terminate the contract each year or change project 66 
requirements as necessary.   67 
 68 
Smith read the language from Doug Hallum proposed to be inserted in the RFP: 69 
Alternate 5 a) Acquire digital imagery sufficient to use digital autocorrelation techniques to produce a 70 
digital elevation and a model of the vegetation structure at a 6 inch resolution. Ground control may be 71 
provided by sharing of control from Sub-project 1 and use of additional points from LiDAR data. 72 
Proposal must include the estimated vertical accuracy and resolution of the DEM in open and heavily 73 
vegetated areas, as well as a description of the vertical accuracy and resolution of the vegetation model. 74 
The proposal must also include a detailed description of the technique, software and methodology, as 75 
well as discuss any necessary differences from Sub-project 2 imagery.  76 
 77 
Lawson asked what this means.  Schneider said DNR staff has concluded this language would help the 78 
Program to build a Digital Elevation Model.  Purcell asked who made the recommendation.  Schneider 79 
said Doug Hallum with the DNR.  Purcell asked if we are getting 6-inch resolution now.  Farnsworth said 80 
yes.  We use CIR photography in the summer, but Hallum is interested in exploring using the technique 81 
described above in the possible alternate language to build a type of vegetation model.  Lawson asked if 82 
this will be a separate line item.  Purcell said proposals will include language for this as possible 83 
alternatives, but the Program will decide if and when we want to fund different alternatives.  Ament asked 84 
about the use of Nebraska coordinate systems.  Farnsworth said that is a reference to GIS coordinates and 85 
the imagery will be taken in Nebraska so that is why Nebraska coordinates are used. 86 
 87 
Purcell moved to approve the RFP as amended; Taddicken seconded.  No further discussion.  RFP 88 
approved as amended. 89 
 90 
Schneider requested the GC appoint a Proposal Selection Panel.  Heaston moved to approve the panel; 91 
Ament seconded.  Proposal Selection Panel approved:  Farnsworth (EDO), Brei (EDO), Hallum 92 
(Nebraska DNR), Besson (Wyoming), Walters (TNC). 93 
 94 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 10 


 


 


IGERT Student Project – Whooping Crane Habitat Selection 95 
C. Smith discussed the IGERT program, the potential student project, and Platte River Program 96 
involvement.  Ament asked who the experts are that will be interviewed during the student project.  Smith 97 
noted the list in the draft study plan and said recommendations for additional experts would be welcome.  98 
Kraus asked about the relationships between monitoring and the model that would be developed during 99 
the project.  Smith said Program monitoring would continue and that data would continue to be fed into 100 
the model over time to increase its utility as a tool for Program use.  Barels asked if we can look beyond 101 
Nebraska in developing the model.  Smith said that will definitely discuss that with Trevor Hefley at the 102 
TAC meeting in October to explore possibilities.  Berryman asked if we get the model when the project is 103 
over.  Smith said yes.  Freeman asked why there are expert interviews.  Smith said several reasons:  1) 104 
understanding the data that will be included in the database; 2) exploring holes in the data that need to be 105 
addressed as the model is being built and as assumptions that go into the model; and 3) talking with the 106 
experts about the best way to build the model.  Barels asked about peer review.  Smith said the final 107 
model would be peer reviewed. 108 
 109 
Lawson moved provide GC support for the concept of providing $25,000 in funding to an IGERT student 110 
project and externship; Barels seconded.  Motion of support approved.  Smith said the specific project 111 
and funding would be discussed at the October TAC meeting and would be presented later this year to the 112 
FC and GC as part of the FY 2012 budget approval process. 113 
 114 
Platte River Caddisfly 115 
C. Smith discussed the history of the Platte River caddisfly (PRCF) project.  George provided 116 
presentation and update on the status of review of the PRCF as a potential listed species.  Barels asked 117 
about the threats to the species.  George said hydrology seems to be a big factor, as well as invasive 118 
species like phragmites.  Czaplewski asked if the Service’s Power Point could be shared with the GC.  119 
George said yes.  Purcell asked what the Program’s research project would help with and how the 120 
proposal got to the Program.  Kenny said the intent of this is to give the Program a better understanding of 121 
our management actions on a species of concern.  Our target species actions may have implications for a 122 
species of concern, so this research would help identify what those impacts might be to assist with 123 
development of future Land Management Plans and associated work plans.  Freeman said one of 124 
Colorado’s questions goes to the utility of this for the Program.  We don’t know a lot about the PRCF 125 
including abundance, distribution, and population dynamics, so what do the results of this research mean 126 
with these large knowledge gaps?  There is a question about the utility of the results for informing our 127 
management actions.  Kenny said that is true for even some of our target species and it is fundamental to 128 
much of what we are doing to take a strong inference and weight of evidence approach.  If we undertake 129 
this study and learn tree clearing negatively impacts the PRCF, it does not answer the question 130 
conclusively but it points in a certain direction.  Freeman said she remembers an earlier presentation 131 
where caddisflies were seen in a slough at one time then were not seen later on and there was no 132 
indication of what happened. 133 
 134 
George discussed the listing process.  Kolanz said both species evolved at the same time, so it seems like 135 
they should be able to co-exist.  He is concerned that a small study could generate data that could be 136 
interpreted in a way that interrupts a $300 million program.  It doesn’t seem a like a small study will get 137 
us much.  Kenny said the idea of “proceed with caution” includes:  1) PRCF is not very abundant on 138 
Program lands, but we could at least learn how to take trees off, not whether or not to take trees out at all; 139 
and 2) what we will know with certainty when we are done? – this requires us to use strong inference, and 140 
it seemed like this research project was an opportunity to learn something of importance to the Program 141 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 10 


 


 


and was a good opportunity for very little money regarding management actions where we were taking 142 
trees off anyway and just need to take them off in a little different pattern.  Farnsworth said we have two 143 
properties where we have target species habitat criteria – some are saying take all the trees off for target 144 
species, some are saying that could negatively impact other species.  We are caught in a pinch-point, so 145 
we are hoping to collect some information to inform future policy decisions.  Purcell asked who sent 146 
letters saying the Program might contribute to listed.  Farnsworth said the Service and the Nebraska Game 147 
and Parks Commission. 148 
 149 
Purcell said we should table this without prejudice until we see final information from the Service and its 150 
listing findings.  That would give the Program something to build on.  This seems to be ahead of the game 151 
at this point.  Barels said we don’t know a whole lot right now but you want a policy decision.  It doesn’t 152 
matter whether this species is listed or continues as a species of interest.  The PRCF is on Program lands, 153 
so we need a more holistic approach.  We should possible ask the ISAC how best to proceed.  Schneider 154 
asked what the no action alternative is going forward.  Purcell moved to table this proposal without 155 
prejudice until the Service’s listing process is complete.  George said he would like more discussion.  156 
There is a different issue and that is the EDO is given authority to take action up to $25,000 to provide 157 
important information for the Program.  With Purcell’s motion, that means the GC is taking away the 158 
ability of the EDO to take this kind of action.  Ament seconded the motion. 159 
 160 
Taddicken asked what happens with the tree clearing.  Purcell said we would only stop the study until the 161 
listing process was complete.  Schneider asked for a clarification for the letter in Exhibit C.  Can the LMP 162 
move forward without the research project?  Farnsworth said we developed the McCormick LMP saying 163 
trees would be cleared to the slough.  The LMP was approved by the GC.  After approval, the Service 164 
sent the Program a consultation letter that said tree removal impacts could cause problems for the PRCF.  165 
The EDO at that point said we need to figure this out, so we will include a buffer around the slough.  166 
Kenny said if the research project does not go forward, that means we will leave a buffer around the 167 
slough on the McCormick property. 168 
 169 
Purcell said there will be a lot of opportunity for clearing on Program lands.  LaBonde said by the time 170 
we get ready to issue contracts for clearing, won’t we know the Service’s decision?  Kenny said we would 171 
know by the end of November.  LaBonde said waiting won’t really impact the progress of Program 172 
management actions.  Sellers said in Exhibit F there is language that says you can remove trees when the 173 
PRCF is in their aquatic stage.  She is assuming that language still stands, which seems to contradict the 174 
guidance given in the consultation letters that indicted there might be an impact.  Farnsworth said Exhibit 175 
F is unpublished and this is the best information we could get from the Service and Game and Parks 176 
Commission. 177 
 178 
Chamberlain said an open-ended motion to table can often be construed as being in effect forever.  179 
Purcell amended the motion to table the research project without prejudice until we see the 180 
Service’s finding in June 2012.  Service (Program signatory) voted no; motion failed.  George asked 181 
the GC to discuss what it means to give the EDO authority up to $25,000 for small projects.  Kenny said 182 
that language in the Procurement Policy also says that even for small amounts there is language in the 183 
Procurement Policy that says certain items of a particularly sensitive nature need to be brought back to the 184 
GC for review and approval.  Schneider said he wants to be clear on what this means for the future of the 185 
project.  Kenny said it likely means the student will move on to another project. 186 
 187 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 10 


 


 


Barels said we are heading into a new policy direction with a species of concern.  The GC is struggling 188 
with how to deal with that more than the details of a small research project.  It seems like we should use 189 
the ISAC to get advice on how to incorporate this species of concern into the Program as a whole.  Purcell 190 
said before we step off with a student research project, we need to take a more informed approach.  191 
George said he likes the idea of having the ISAC give advice on this issue. 192 
 193 
George asked about Barels’ idea to get advice from the ISAC.  Kolanz wondered what that would look 194 
like.  Barels said we would ask them for advice on how to proceed, what we need to look at, how 195 
management actions might affect a species, and what kind of design do we need to learn about potential 196 
implications. 197 
 198 
Lawson moved to have the EDO, with input from the TAC, prepare a proposal to the ISAC to ask them for 199 
technical scientific advice related to the Platte River caddisfly as it pertains to Program management 200 
actions to be brought back to the GC no later than June 2012 for review and approval.  George seconded.  201 
Motion approved. 202 
 203 
Kenny asked what this means for tree removal.  It is a policy decision to avoid tree removal for the 204 
benefit of whooping cranes if there are potential PRCF impacts.  Lawson asked if we made a policy 205 
decision related to the buffer.  Kenny said the buffer is not included in the official LMP and if we follow 206 
that plan all trees come out.  Schneider said the concern is the consultation letters from the Service.  207 
Kenny said he could exert day-to-day operational control to not prioritize that tree clearing until after 208 
PRCF issues are more fully vetted at the GC level.  The GC agreed. 209 
 210 
J-2 Reregulating Reservoir 211 
Kenny discussed the significance of the reservoir project, its role as a Water Action Plan project, and 212 
recent project history.  Kenny discussed the resolution from September 6 from the CNPPID resolving to 213 
work with the PRRIP and the Nebraska DNR to develop an agreement for the project.  Kenny asked the 214 
GC to develop and support a similar resolution.  Ament asked if Kenny had a draft resolution.  Kenny 215 
said Purcell was developing possible language.   216 
 217 
Barels said it needs to be part of the discussions on how to deal with timing of the water and what it 218 
means for scoring the project against target flows.  Kenny agreed and said that is already being discussed 219 
among the parties.  George said there has been a lot of discussion about this at the Service’s regional 220 
office and there is strong support for the project.  This is exactly the kind of thing the Program was 221 
created for in terms of finding solutions. 222 
 223 
Purcell moved:  Whereas the J-2 project is the best alternative water supply available to the Program; 224 
whereas the Program has evaluated the feasibility of potential water supply projects and the J-2 project 225 
has been determined to be most feasible; and whereas the next step is to enter into formal negotiations to 226 
develop a sponsorship agreement for the project; the GC should form a committee to begin negotiations 227 
of the sponsorship agreement with CNPPID and Nebraska.  Ament seconded.  Motion approved. 228 
 229 
The GC appointed the following sub-committee:  Schneider (Nebraska), Purcell (Wyoming), Lawson 230 
(BOR), Berryman (Colorado), George (USFWS), Heaston (TNC), Kenny and Program staff. 231 
 232 
 233 
 234 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 10 


 


 


Executive Session 235 
Heaston moved to enter Executive Session to discuss land issues; Czaplewski seconded.  GC entered 236 
Executive Session at 4:15 p.m. Mountain time. 237 
 238 
Heaston moved to end Executive Session; Taddicken seconded.  GC ended Executive Session at 6:26 239 
p.m. Mountain time. 240 
 241 
Program Land Tracts & Issues 242 
Heaston moved and Strauch seconded: 243 
 To approve allowing the ED Office to seek appraisal of and begin negotiations for acquisition of 244 


Tracts 0832 and 0901; 245 
 To approve allowing the ED Office to continue negotiations on Tracts 1101 and 1102; 246 
 To cease further pursuit of Tracts 1105 and 1107; 247 
 To approve allowing the ED Office to provide a 14-day offer in writing to Mr. Day to satisfy the 248 


boundary dispute at Tract 1020.  If that offer is rejected or expires, the GC authorizes the ED Office 249 
to pursue construction of fence on the surveyed boundary lines on Tract 1020; 250 


 To approve allowing the ED Office to enter into a contract at East 2011001 for excavation of 251 
material to construct off-channel sand and water habitat; and 252 


 To approve allowing the ED Office to enter into a contract and complete acquisition of Tract 1019. 253 
Motion approved. 254 
 255 
Meeting adjourned at 6:28 p.m. Mountain time. 256 
 257 


Wednesday, September 14, 2011 258 
 259 
Welcome and Introduction 260 
Schneider called the meeting to order and the group proceeded with a roll call.   261 
 262 
Program Committee Updates 263 
Land Advisory Committee (LAC) 264 
Czaplewski provided an update on the latest LAC activities.  The LAC last met on August 26.  Most of 265 
the discussion items were covered by the GC during yesterday’s session.  The Public Access Policy will 266 
be implemented this upcoming hunting season and will be overseen by the Nebraska Game and Parks 267 
Commission.  The next LAC meeting will be October 26 in Kearney. 268 
 269 
Water Advisory Committee (WAC) 270 
Steinke provided an update on the latest WAC activities.  Most of the WAC items were covered by the 271 
GC yesterday.  Work is just beginning on the groundwater recharge pilot project.  There was a 272 
presentation about the North Platte choke point and there appears to be an unending supply of sediment 273 
that is always going to be a problem with channel capacity in that area.  High flows this year may have 274 
helped to some degree in terms of flood stage.  Doug Hallum discussed Nebraska’s Integrated 275 
Management Plan.  Barels asked about the future of the choke point issue.  Kenny said at this point we 276 
will wait to see what the National Weather Service does with flood stage and will re-evaluate capacity in 277 
the area is after the high flow recedes and regroup from there.  EDO staff is looking at how important the 278 
10-year period of the previous analysis is in terms of understanding the situation at the choke point – did 279 
that 10-year period bias our conclusions?  The Program document says we will not violate NWS flood 280 
stage.  So far, we have taken that to mean not exceeding the lowest level of NWS flood stage, but the 281 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 10 


 


 


NWS has different levels of flood stage and we are exploring what it would mean to consider exceeding 282 
the lowest level but not the moderate or high level of flood stage (without causing damage).  Miller asked 283 
what the highest level of flood stage is at the choke point.  Kenny and Steinke were not sure what the 284 
exact number is.  Miller said we have to be careful about how we portray the impacts of flooding because 285 
flooding of grass at Cody Park also means certain homes in the area are probably having impacts as well.  286 
Purcell asked how critical it is to our operation to get 3,000 cfs through the choke point.  Kenny said we 287 
are trying to get 6,000-8,000 cfs to Grand Island, so if we can achieve that goal with less at North Platte 288 
that would work.  It also depends on what kind of year we get out of the South Platte.  The important 289 
thing is to be able to meet flow targets in the central Platte to test the FSM management strategy and if we 290 
can do that with less through the choke point that would be great.  Sellers asked if the EDO had looked 291 
into the availability of aerial photos in the area to corroborate the NWS flood records.  Kenny said we 292 
have topography and a detailed model in the reach so those are tools that allow us to investigate aspects of 293 
the area thoroughly.  Looking at the choke point was precipitated by impacts to homes upstream of 294 
Highway 83.  Thanks to efforts in the area, those homes were out of the path of high water this year or at 295 
least those areas stayed drier a lot longer than they would have.  Sellers asked if there were homes flooded 296 
this June.  Miller said yes; water was higher than it ever has been.  Sellers asked if structures were 297 
flooded.  Miller said yes and it was flowing water, not just high groundwater levels.  Sellers asked if there 298 
was flooding in the last month or so.  Miller was not sure.  Sellers said the NWS estimation of flows 299 
shows there was 3,000-4,000 cfs during the last month. 300 
  301 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 302 
Besson provided an update on the latest TAC activities.  The TAC last met on August 10.  Topics of 303 
discussion included: 304 
 Updates on all final 2010 monitoring and research activities. 305 
 Direction on peer review for the rest of 2011 306 
 Update on the tern and plover habitat availability analysis 307 
 Discussion of the LiDAR/aerial photography RFP 308 
 Discussion of proposed Platte River caddisfly research 309 
 Update on the whooping crane telemetry project 310 
 Update on the compilation of the whooping crane database 311 
 Discussion of the proposed IGERT student project on whooping crane habitat selection 312 
 Update on Program permits for sediment augmentation and other channel activities 313 
 Results of the June wet meadows workshop 314 
 Status of AMP documents and a hypothesis tracking tool 315 
The next TAC meeting is October 5-6 in Kearney. 316 
 317 
Finance Committee (FC) 318 
Purcell provided an update on the latest FC activities.  The FC had three conference calls on July 8, July 319 
21, and August 25.  Topics includes the Public Access Policy implementation agreement, amendment to 320 
the groundwater recharge contract, groundwater recharge earthwork bid documents and water delivery 321 
agreement documents, CNPPID water service agreement, landowner agreement related to the 322 
groundwater recharge project, whooping crane monitoring contract, and the LiDAR/aerial photography 323 
RFP.  The FC will next meet on November 9 to discuss the FY 2012 budget and will also meet on 324 
October 18.   325 
 326 
 327 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 10 


 


 


Program Outreach Update 328 
PRESENTATIONS 329 
 Jerry Kenny presented to the Kearney Chapter of the Kiwanis about the Program and progress to date 330 


on June 22, 2011. 331 
 Steve Smith presented on the Program and use of the hydraulic model for habitat availability analysis 332 


to the Nebraska Floodplain and Stormwater Managers Association on June 23
rd


, 2011 in Ashland, 333 
Nebraska. 334 


 Beorn Courtney, Mike Drain and Bill Hahn presented to the AWRA Summer Specialty Conference in 335 
Snowbird, Utah on June 29, 2011. Their topic was, “Enhancing Platte River Flow in Nebraska 336 
through Intentional Recharge”.  337 


 Chad Smith helped lead a workshop on adaptive management at the National Conference on 338 
Ecosystem Restoration (NCER) in Baltimore, Maryland on August 1, 2011. 339 


 Chad Smith moderated a panel discussion on adaptive management and the science/policy link at 340 
NCER.  341 


 Bruce Sackett presented on PRRIP: Real Estate Methods of a Willing Buyer Willing Seller 342 
Acquisition Program at NCER on August 4, 2011.  343 


 Chad Smith presented on the Program as part of a day-long symposium on adaptive management at 344 
the American Fisheries Society meeting in Seattle on September 6, 2011.  345 


 Jerry Kenny and Chad Smith provided a Program Status Report to an assembly of Environmental and 346 
Conservation Groups on September 8, 2011 at the Whooping Crane Trust near Alda, Nebraska. 347 
 348 


UPCOMING PRESENTATIONS/EXHIBITS 349 
 The Program is exhibiting at Husker Harvest Days in Grand Island on September 13, 14 and 15, 2011 350 


in the Natural Resources Districts tent. Husker Harvest Days is recognized as the World’s Largest 351 
Totally Irrigated Working Farm Show™ and features the most extensive state-of-the-art information 352 
and technology available for today’s agricultural producers. 353 


 Jerry Kenny will be presenting to the Upper Platte River Basin Meeting at the Nebraska Association 354 
of Resources Districts annual conference on September 27, 2011 in Kearney, Nebraska on Current 355 
Activities of the Platte River Recovery Implementation Program and the J2 Water Action Plan 356 
Project. 357 


 The Program will be exhibiting at the 22
nd


 Annual South Platte Forum in Longmont, Colorado on 358 
October 19-20, 2011.  Suzanne Sellers of Colorado will be making a presentation on the Program and 359 
its benefits to Colorado. 360 


 Chad Smith is presenting on Adaptive Water Management at the 2011 Joint Annual Convention of 361 
the Nebraska State Irrigation Association & Nebraska Water Resources Association in Kearney, 362 
Nebraska on November 21 & 22, 2011.  363 


 Jerry Kenny will be presented to the Nebraska Section of Agricultural Engineers at their annual 364 
meeting in Grand Island, Nebraska on October 21. 365 


 366 
EXHIBITS/SPONSORSHIPS  367 
 The Program sponsored a break at the Nebraska Grazing Conference August 9 & 10, 2011 in 368 


Kearney, Nebraska. Program informational material was also available at the conference.  369 
 The Program participated in the new teacher welcome through the Kearney Chamber of Commerce. 370 


The Chamber assembles welcome bags for all new teachers in the Kearney school system from grade 371 
school to college. Eighty PRRIP promotional pens and flag sets were donated for the welcome bags.  372 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 10 


 


 


 The Program is a sponsor for the Nebraska Alliance for Conservation and Environmental Education 373 
2011 Annual Conference in Nebraska City, Nebraska on September 22 – 24, 2011. NACEE educates 374 
teachers and natural resource professionals about environmental education programs, new 375 
environmental research and educational resources from across the state.  376 


 377 
Nebraska Community Foundation (NCF) Update 378 
Kenny introduced Diane Wilson with the NCF.  Wilson provided an update on NCF activities for the 379 
Program.  Purcell said it was good to hear about the relationship that has been built between the NCF and 380 
the Program.  Wilson said it is a great working relationship.  Kenny agreed and said that also includes the 381 
communication with the BOR.  Kenny said a new aspect is development of the ASAP system with BOR 382 
funding.  Wilson said it is a new payment processing system for federal agencies and it is a “just in time” 383 
fund request system.  Funds can be accessed overnight.  Kenny said that replaces the system that had been 384 
in place the past year and a half that was a manual monthly estimation of probably expenditures.  The 385 
“just in time” system seems to be working very well.  Wilson agreed.  Kenny and Wilson said this will 386 
eliminate the accrual of interest on the federal funds.  Sellers said there is currently a joint contract 387 
between Colorado, Wyoming, the federal government, and the NCF.  It sounds like the BOR contracting 388 
office may be uncomfortable extending that contract through a modification.  We might need to have 389 
separate contracts with all entities with the NCF.  Wilson said that will increase their lead time to get 390 
things in order before the current agreement expires next year. 391 
 392 
PRRIP Budget Items 393 
Kenny provided an update on the current status of the FY 2011 Program budget.  Chamberlain asked 394 
about the 2010 budget and what happens to money that is not spent.  Kenny said Colorado funds sit in the 395 
NCF fund; Wyoming funds sit in a Wyoming fund; federal government funds are set aside and are still 396 
available.  Purcell said Wyoming owes 3.21% of the total budget and makes quarterly payments each year 397 
based on the annual budget less any carryover in its NCF account from the previous year.  Chamberlain 398 
said he just wondered what happens to money that are not expended.  Kenny said from the perspective of 399 
the Program, if money is not obligated or spent that money goes away and every year is a new year.  400 
Kenny said unliquidated obligations carry over to the new year.  Chamberlain asked why the 2011 budget 401 
shows an increase over the 2010 budget.  Kenny said because of more work and more projects.  402 
Chamberlain asked if there is any documentation about how much carryover money there is in the various 403 
state and federal accounts.  Kenny said Wyoming and BOR are keeping track of that; only Colorado is 404 
visible because that money is in the NCF account. 405 
 406 
Kenny discussed the preliminary draft of the FY 2012 budget.  Kolanz asked if the individual permit for 407 
sediment augmentation and/or channel actions at Elm Creek would serve as a model for a regional general 408 
permit.  Kenny said that is the hope.  Purcell asked if the new federal process has streamlined accessing 409 
federal funds and suggests if we should less conservative up front with budgeting.  Kenny said the ASAP 410 
system does help with day-to-day operations, and also will help to access the federal funds behind the 411 
BOR wall that have accumulated over time.  In some ways, the challenges are dealing with perceptions 412 
but it is also dealing with the mechanics.  Chamberlain asked if there are limitations to how much the 413 
budget can increase each year, and what the limitation is down the road.  Kenny said the limitation is 414 
$187 million during the First Increment.  There is nothing codified that says a certain amount each year.  415 
The limitations are good sense and the practicality of projects.  Purcell asked about new money.  Kenny 416 
said that is the proposed budget for the next year.  Purcell said the concern is the accumulated federal 417 
funds and the expenditure history of the Program.  If Kenny and Lawson can work out how to deal with 418 
the accumulated funds, that is the main issue that needs to be sorted out.  Chamberlain asked if the federal 419 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/22/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 10 


 


 


contribution is reduced, would the state contributions increase.  Kenny said no, the contribution limits are 420 
fixed. Purcell said get the full federal funding strategy worked out with Lawson before coming to the FC 421 
with the next version of the 2012 budget. 422 
 423 
Public Comment 424 
Schneider asked for public comment.  None offered. 425 
 426 
Future Meetings & Closing Business 427 
Upcoming GC meetings: 428 
 December 6-7, 2011 in Denver, CO at the Warwick Hotel in downtown Denver 429 
 430 
Meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m. Mountain time. 431 
 432 
Summary of Action Items/Decisions from September 2011 GC meeting 433 
1) Approved June 2011 GC minutes. 434 
2) Approved LiDAR/aerial photography RFP as amended. 435 
3) Appointed a Proposal Selection Panel for the LiDAR/aerial photography RFP:  Farnsworth (EDO), 436 


Brei (EDO), Hallum (Nebraska DNR), Besson (Wyoming), Walters (TNC). 437 
4) Approved motion of support for Program funding of $25,000 for an IGERT student project at the 438 


University of Nebraska-Lincoln. 439 
5) Directed the EDO, with input from the TAC, to prepare a proposal to the ISAC to ask them for 440 


technical scientific advice related to the Platte River caddisfly as it pertains to Program management 441 
actions to be brought back to the GC no later than June 2012 for review and approval. 442 


6) Directed the EDO to not prioritize tree clearing near the sloughs at the McCormick and Binfield 443 
properties until after PRCF issues are more fully vetted at the GC level. 444 


7) So moved:  Whereas the J-2 project is the best alternative water supply available to the Program; 445 
whereas the Program has evaluated the feasibility of potential water supply projects and the J-2 446 
project has been determined to be most feasible; and whereas the next step is to enter into formal 447 
negotiations to develop a sponsorship agreement for the project; the GC should form a committee to 448 
begin negotiations of the sponsorship agreement with CNPPID and Nebraska. 449 


8) Appointed a sub-committee to develop an agreement for the J-2 project:  Schneider (Nebraska), 450 
Purcell (Wyoming), Lawson (BOR), Berryman (Colorado), George (USFWS), Heaston (TNC), 451 
Kenny and Program staff. 452 


9) Approved: 453 
o Allowing the ED Office to seek appraisal of and begin negotiations for acquisition of Tracts 454 


0832 and 0901; 455 
o Allowing the ED Office to continue negotiations on Tracts 1101 and 1102; 456 
o Ceasing further pursuit of Tracts 1105 and 1107; 457 
o Allowing the ED Office to provide a 14-day offer in writing to Mr. Day to satisfy the 458 


boundary dispute at Tract 1020.  If that offer is rejected or expires, the GC authorizes the ED 459 
Office to pursue construction of fence on the surveyed boundary lines on Tract 1020; 460 


o Allowing the ED Office to enter into a contract at East 2011001 for excavation of material to 461 
construct off-channel sand and water habitat; and 462 


o Allowing the ED Office to enter into a contract and complete acquisition of Tract 1019. 463 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/21/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 5 


 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 
Governance Committee Special Session Conference Call Minutes 2 


November 18, 2011 3 
 4 


Conference Call Participants 5 
 6 


Governance Committee (GC)    Executive Director’s Office (EDO) Staff 7 
State of Wyoming     Jerry Kenny, Executive Director (ED) 8 
Mike Purcell – Member     Bridget Barron 9 
       Beorn Courtney 10 
State of Colorado     Jason Farnsworth    11 
Suzanne Sellers – Alternate    Bruce Sackett 12 
       Chad Smith 13 
State of Nebraska      14 
Jim Schneider – Member (Chair)    15 
Jennifer Schellpeper – Alternate     16 
        17 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) 18 
Mike Thabault – Member     19 
Mike George – Alternate 20 
 21 
Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) 22 
John Lawson – Member 23 
 24 
Environmental Entities 25 
John Heaston – Member 26 
 27 
Upper Platte Water Users 28 
Dennis Strauch – Member 29 
 30 
Colorado Water Users 31 
Alan Berryman – Member 32 
Kevin Urie – Member 33 
 34 
Downstream Water Users 35 
Brian Barels – Member 36 
Don Kraus – Member 37 
Kent Miller – Member 38 
Mark Czaplewski – Proxy for Ron Bishop, Member 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/21/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 5 


 


 


Welcome & Administrative 48 
Schneider called the meeting to order.  No agenda modifications offered. 49 
 50 
Program Land Tracts 51 
Thabault moved to postpone discussion of Tracts 1101 and 1102 to the December 2011 GC meeting.  52 
Purcell asked why.  Thabault said there were outstanding questions that need addressed.  Purcell seconded 53 
the motion.  Heaston asked Sackett if this would affect any time-sensitive elements.  Sackett said only if a 54 
decision is not made in December and gets put off further.  Motion approved. 55 
 56 
FY 2012 PRRIP Budget & Work Plan 57 
Kenny discussed the white paper on possible budget approaches.  Sellers said that Colorado wants an 58 
ESA compliance safety net set up until federal funding catches up under the proposed budget approach.  59 
Thabault asked how that is done without re-initiating the biological opinion.  Sellers said she didn’t know 60 
but Colorado does not want to be in a position where Colorado could not get its money out, milestones 61 
are not met, and there is no longer ESA coverage.  Purcell said he thinks the White Book covers a similar 62 
situation.  It says if the Program fails, each of the signatories get to bring to the table those assets they 63 
provided to the Program for future consultations in their states.  This is in the “doomsday” scenarios in 64 
the finance section.  Thabault said it is one thing to make that commitment versus providing assurances 65 
ahead of re-initiation.  There may be something we can do but possibly not to the level Colorado is 66 
suggesting - not sure that is legal.  Sellers said they want to make sure that if Colorado puts its money 67 
ahead of the federal government that they get what they are paying for.  Purcell said Wyoming doesn’t 68 
mind if they get ahead of the federal government, but his only concern is if the Program fails and we have 69 
to sell the land, there needs to be a separate bookkeeping situation established to make sure Wyoming’s 70 
share of the re-sale of land is commensurate with what is invested by the state.  Kenny said the 71 
assumption is the acquisition can be completed in 2012 for the J-2 project and the current percentages 72 
would be utilized in 2012.  Purcell said then his concern is if construction is front-loaded and the federal 73 
government cannot pay back, the Wyoming’s reimbursement should be based on what they put in.  Sellers 74 
said Colorado and Wyoming are in different positions because Colorado has so many more consultations. 75 
 76 
Purcell for the purposes of this discussion it seems like we just need to work out some details and 77 
wonders if Colorado is willing to pre-pay.  Sellers said Colorado is working on bringing this up the chain 78 
to see if it will work.  Kenny asked if that possibility exists for Wyoming as well, aside from sorting out 79 
details.  Purcell said yes.  Kenny asked for input from Lawson and Thabault.  Lawson said he is the 80 
banker and he will first defer to Thabault.  Thabault said from the ESA side of things, as long as the 81 
Program is on track and things are getting done then the source of funding is irrelevant.  This is easier to 82 
do than considering assurances related to future consultations if the Program fails.  If Colorado invests a 83 
large majority of their funds up front, the Service would certainly consider that in future discussions.  84 
Sellers said her impression was if the federal government was not able to match funds, then the Program 85 
would be extended in time rather than a full re-initiation.  Thabault said that requires some investigation 86 
in terms of timing.  It might require an amendment to the biological opinion.  Barels said the Program 87 
agreement allows the GC to extend the First Increment.  He appreciates trying to figure out how to get 88 
these projects done in time, but discussion about extending the First Increment is warranted given what 89 
we have in front of us particularly in terms of assessing the benefits of actions for the target species. 90 
 91 
Kraus asked if a time extension will require Congressional approval.  Lawson said his recollection is that 92 
authority to stay involved in the Program only goes to September 2020, so a longer time period would 93 
require legislation either to extend the First Increment or start a Second Increment.  Any funding for 94 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/21/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 5 


 


 


Reclamation would need an authority and then yearly appropriations.  Sellers said either way we would 95 
have to seek an act of Congress, either an extension or a new increment.  Lawson said either one could get 96 
done with a collaborative effort over a period of time.  Kenny said the white paper suggests not extending 97 
the First Increment and just adjusting the financing to keep things on track.  The building and phasing of a 98 
reservoir does not lend itself well to breaking things out into bit-sized chunks of funding.  That relates to 99 
what Barels was saying because without the water, it will impact the implementation of adaptive 100 
management and the ability to learn. 101 
 102 
Lawson said from a banker’s standpoint, everyone has to look at the risk factor.  Nobody knows what is 103 
going to happen with the pace of future federal funding.  He pointed out that it is not likely we will get the 104 
same amount in 2013 and 2014 that we will get in 2012.  The white paper assumes that we could get even 105 
more in 2014, which is not the scenario Lawson anticipates.  Kenny said that would mean we might be 106 
short something like $4 million in 2014, under the white paper scenario.  Kraus asked what the fallback 107 
would be if that happens.  Kenny said that makes it tough if we can’t get that level of federal funding in 108 
2014.  We could press state funds forward a little, but getting a federal budget of at least $12 million in 109 
2014 is critical.  There is some time between now and then to do some groundwork to make sure that 110 
money is available.  Having the program designated as a key America’s Great Outdoors project raises its 111 
profile at Interior and might make it easier to make the case for more funding in the future.  Lawson said 112 
there will have to be strong leg-work just to get $10 million in federal dollars in 2013 and 2014.  The 113 
likelihood of at least that showing up in the budget could be remote.  What would happen if 13 and 14 are 114 
closer to $8 million instead of $10 million?  Kenny said that means we are looking at a time extension 115 
and we are jeopardizing the J-2 project.  Lawson said this needs serious discussion at the next GC 116 
meeting and we need to explore that what-if.  Barels said he understands the white paper suggests using 117 
existing funds to move things forward on land, but should we look at using those funds to help move the 118 
J-2 project forward? 119 
 120 
Farnsworth said we may need to clarify that earlier discussions were focused on land acquisition for the J-121 
2 project.  Kenny agreed that that should be clarified and said the proposed 2012 budget has money built 122 
in to both get the Program at or near the floor-level numbers for complex and non-complex land under the 123 
Land Plan, as well as pushing the J-2 project forward through land acquisition associated with that 124 
specific project under the Water Plan.  Purcell asked Lawson if he has a schedule when we will know 125 
with some certainty about funding for 13 and 14.  Lawson said the Administration will present to 126 
Congress in late January 2012 its estimated FY13 budget (October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013).  127 
The FY14 budget is being formulated internally but it is embargoed.  Thabault said we have to remember 128 
that there can always be a difference between what is requested and what is ultimately authorized and 129 
appropriated – optimism is probably not the word of the day.  Purcell said we are faced with adopting a 130 
budget in December for FY12 and our first meaningful information won’t be available for FY13 probably 131 
until February.  Purcell asked when the tin-cup tour should start.  Lawson said they usually start in late 132 
February.  Purcell said this is a budget we need to get done by the end of the First Increment.  We should 133 
adopt that now, and as we get smarter other things can come to the table to help in future years – shifting 134 
funds, extension of the First Increment, Second Increment, deviation in the fair share, etc.  This is too 135 
important for us to lose, so we should have the will to make the adjustments to make this work.  What 136 
Kenny is proposing is what we need.  This cash flow is what we need to meet the objectives in the 137 
legislation and in the White Book.  For that, we should accept the budget at this time.  In February, we 138 
will be smarter, we’ll have to take the time to go to Congress, and we need to have hard discussions about 139 
options. 140 
 141 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/21/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 5 


 


 


Lawson said he fully supports Purcell’s rationale and Kenny did a commendable job presenting options.  142 
There may be other actions that need to be approached in the future, but he does not have any issue with 143 
what Purcell described.  Purcell said we appreciate what Lawson has told us and Kenny has done the best 144 
he can to adapt but still keep the goals of the Program in mind.  Schneider said he agrees, but beyond that 145 
he is wondering if it would be wiser to use more DOI funds right now because we may have to rely on 146 
state money more heavily in the future.  Kraus said he was thinking of something similar.  In 2012, 147 
maybe we should talk about possibly deferring state funding to make sure we use as many federal dollars 148 
as possible while they are available.  Purcell said as we talk about tools in the tool box, we have to 149 
identify what the GC can do versus what will require approval of the Secretary of the Interior and the 150 
Governors of the three states.  Deviating from the percentages is an example of a tool that would have to 151 
go back to the signatories.  Schneider asked if what Purcell is proposing is deciding on the budget first, 152 
then going back in the near future and deciding about what options are available to deal with future 153 
funding issues.  Kenny agreed that changing funding responsibilities will require signatory approval.  154 
Purcell said the White Book doesn’t really talk about extensions.  Kenny said he thinks thata time 155 
extension is within the purview of the GC, subject to the 2020 limitation of the Authorizing Legislation.. 156 
 157 
Lawson said his understanding is that Kenny’s proposal for 2012 is an aggressive budget to move forward 158 
using most of the available federal dollars.  Kenny agreed.  It taps heavily into the DOI funds that we 159 
have before they are reallocated.  That should help strengthen the story that we need this cash flow into 160 
the future to avoid slowing down or losing projects.  Lawson said he likes Table 4, and it is 2014 where 161 
the problems may be and there could be a $4-$6 million shortfall in terms of available federal funds.  162 
Kenny said he understands that and he is optimistic that re-direction or strong convincing can help make 163 
up that possible shortfall so we don’t jeopardize the J-2 project or the Program as a whole.  Schneider 164 
says his suggestion would be for the water projects, maybe we should defer the use of state funds in 2012 165 
for the water projects if those funds are going to be relied on more heavily in the future.  Kenny said the 166 
current structure buys some time to explore if we can get signatory approval to change those percentages.  167 
Schneider said he is wondering if the percentages can be changed from year to year without signatory 168 
approval as long as the final percentages are what was initially agreed to.  Kenny said he does not know 169 
the answer to that.  Purcell said there is nothing in the White Book that says how we should pay our dues. 170 
 171 
Kenny said even if we spend all available federal funds in 2012, we will still be short on the $25 million 172 
budget.  Schneider clarified that his suggestion is to only use federal dollars for any expenditures up to 173 
about $23 million, assuming there are that many expenditures, and carrying over available state dollars 174 
into FY13 and beyond.  Purcell asked Lawson if it is important to spend down the available federal funds.  175 
Lawson said yes.  Purcell said then Schneider’s proposal has merit.  Schneider said that Schellpeper’s 176 
recollection from the NCF agreement is that they can receive funds in different proportions.  Lawson said 177 
there is a difference between what they can receive versus how expenditures are made.  Purcell asked 178 
Kenny to look into that.  Kenny agreed. 179 
 180 
Purcell said the FC looked at the entire budget and recommended approval of the Executive Director’s 181 
budget, along with having Kenny look at options for future funding.  Schneider asked that if anyone has 182 
specific questions on the budget to share those with Kenny and the questions and ED responses will be 183 
shared with the full group prior to the December GC meeting.  Barels asked about the drop-off in AMP 184 
Experimental Design funding from FY12 to FY13.  Smith said the EDO is optimistic that sediment 185 
augmentation management actions and several FSM/MCM actions can be accomplished to a large degree 186 
in 2012 and further expenditures on those items in FY13 and beyond will be at a lower pace.  For 187 
example, if islands are built at several complexes or there is significant channel widening completed in 188 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/21/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Governance Committee before approval.   
PRRIP GC Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 5 


 


 


FY12, those areas will have to be maintained in future years but funding needs for maintenance will be 189 
less than funding needs for initial construction.  Schneider asked about the equipment memo.  Kenny 190 
discussed the equipment memo and Headwaters is trying to cover costs with the equipment, not trying to 191 
make money.  Purcell asked about equipment that has already been purchased by the Program.  Kenny 192 
said the issue is the NCF won’t hold title to any equipment that needs licensed.  This approach is to clean 193 
up ownership and title for existing equipment to get it off the Program’s books through purchase by 194 
Headwaters, but allow Headwaters to recover the costs of purchasing and operating this equipment 195 
through a usage fee structure.  New equipment leased or purchased in the future will be treated the same 196 
way. 197 
 198 
Closing Business 199 
Upcoming GC meetings: 200 
 December 6-7, 2011 in Denver, CO at the Warwick Hotel in downtown Denver 201 
 202 
Meeting adjourned at 11.37 a.m. Central time. 203 
 204 
Summary of Action Items/Decisions from November 2011 GC conference call 205 
1) Approved motion to move discussion of Tracts 1101 and 1102 to December 2011 GC meeting. 206 
2) Requested that Kenny investigate options for changing year-to-year allocations of funding. 207 
3) Requested that GC members direct questions about specific FY12 budget line items to Kenny, and 208 


Kenny will develop a response and share all questions and responses with the GC prior to the 209 
December GC meeting. 210 






2012 PRRIP Budget

		PRRIP Project ID		Status		PRRIP Project Description		FY 2007 Final Budget		FY 2007 Expenditures		FY 2008 Budget (New Money + FY 2007 UO)		FY 2008 Expenditures		FY 2009 Budget (New Money + FY 2008 UO)		FY 2009 Expenditures		FY 2010 Budget (New Money + FY 2009 UO)		FY 2010 Expenditures		FY 2011 Budget (New Money)		FY 2011 Expenditures (as of 10-27-11)		FY 2012 Estimated New Money		"Quick Reference" Comments on FY 2012 Estimated New Money Budget Numbers (see FY 2012 Work Plan for Full Description)		FY 2013 Estimated New Money		FY 2014 Estimated New Money		FY 2015 Estimated New Money		FY 2016 Estimated New Money		FY 2017 Estimated New Money		FY 2018 Estimated New Money		FY 2019 Estimated New Money

								Column A		Column B		Column C		Column D		Column E		Column F		Column G		Column H		Column I		Column J		Column K				Column L		Column M		Column N		Column O		Column P		Column Q		Column R

		Executive Director's Office (ED)

		ED-1		O		Salaries/Travel/Office Expenditures (FY08-FY19)		$   192,688.00		$   210,292.78		$   1,110,600.00		$   1,220,138.33		$   1,427,759.00		$   1,535,891.24		$   1,599,900.00		$   1,650,847.77		$   1,600,000.00		$   1,265,305.45		$   1,800,000.00		Salaries, travel, and other direct costs associated with ED and staff in ED Office		$   1,850,000.00		$   1,900,000.00		$   1,900,000.00		$   1,900,000.00		$   1,900,000.00		$   1,900,000.00		$   1,900,000.00

		ED-2		O		Administrative and Other Support Services (FY08-FY19)		$   411,861.00		$   348,673.30		$   170,614.52		$   87,493.91		$   250,000.00		$   156,323.84		$   200,000.00		$   84,983.03		$   200,000.00		$   89,407.82		$   150,000.00		Public notices, title searches, land and water specialty attorneys, boundary surveyors, appraisals, and miscellaneous services required to support ED efforts		$   125,000.00		$   90,000.00		$   80,000.00		$   70,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00

		ED-3		O		Public Outreach (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   30,000.00		$   30,310.63		$   40,000.00		$   39,328.38		$   50,000.00		$   41,140.88		$70,000		$25K NET/Forsberg time-lapse; $10K Hydrologic Cycle @ Lincoln Children's Museum; $5K Rowe Sanctuary; $5K NE Nature & Visitor's Center; $5K Prairie Loft Center; $20K exhibitor fees, publications, and promotional materials		$50,000		$45,000		$40,000		$35,000		$35,000		$40,000		$50,000

						Sub-Total		$   604,549.00		$   558,966.08		$   1,281,214.52		$   1,307,632.24		$   1,707,759.00		$   1,722,525.71		$   1,839,900.00		$   1,775,159.18		$   1,850,000.00		$   1,395,854.15		$   2,020,000.00		$   22,840,137.36		$   2,025,000.00		$   2,035,000.00		$   2,020,000.00		$   2,005,000.00		$   1,985,000.00		$   1,990,000.00		$   2,000,000.00



		Governance Committee/Finance Committee (GFC)

		GFC-1		O		NCF Fees (FY08-FY19)		$   75,000.00		$   22,147.61		$   100,000.00		$   77,178.48		$   255,000.00		$   235,881.20		$   260,000.00		$   206,470.89		$   300,000.00		$   133,413.08		$   450,000.00		Annual fees for Financial Management Entity (sliding scale percentage of $ amount disbursed); assumes expenditures over $20 million		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   375,000.00		$   375,000.00		$   375,000.00		$   375,000.00

		GFC-2		O		Pulse Flow and Other Insurance (FY08-FY19)		$   100,000.00		$   2,448.21		$   50,000.00		$   41,834.00		$   60,000.00		$   56,394.00		$   70,000.00		$   62,632.00		$   75,000.00		$   69,026.00		$   70,000.00		Program insurance for pulse flow and liability; insurance for vehicles and liability for airboat now on Headwaters		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00

		GFC-3		O		Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY08-FY19)		$   5,000.00		$   1,001.82		$   5,000.00		$   1,500.12		$   5,000.00		$   3,378.95		$   5,000.00		$   499.92		$   1,000.00		$   - 0		$   1,500.00		GC meetings $500 x 3 = $1500		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00

		GFC-4		O		Pulse Flow Reserve (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,000,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Annual reserve for potential EA bypass-related costs		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

						Sub-Total		$   180,000.00		$   25,597.64		$   155,000.00		$   120,512.60		$   1,320,000.00		$   295,654.15		$   335,000.00		$   269,602.81		$   376,000.00		$   202,439.08		$   521,500.00		$   4,820,806.28		$   526,500.00		$   526,500.00		$   526,500.00		$   451,500.00		$   451,500.00		$   451,500.00		$   451,500.00



		Program Advisory Committees

		LAC-1		O		Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY08-FY19)		$   7,500.00		$   201.36		$   7,500.00		$   414.04		$   7,500.00		$   245.56		$   7,500.00		$   - 0		$   1,000.00		$   - 0		$   1,500.00		Meeting rooms for LAC meetings; other associated costs		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00

		WAC-1		O		Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY08-FY19)		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   23.56		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   1,000.00		$   - 0		$   1,500.00		Meeting rooms for WAC meetings; other associated costs		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00

		TAC-1		O		Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY08-FY19)		$   5,000.00		$   820.00		$   5,000.00		$   75.00		$   5,000.00		$   864.30		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   1,000.00		$   - 0		$   1,500.00		Meeting rooms for TAC meetings; other associated costs		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00		$   1,500.00

						Sub-Total		$   17,500.00		$   1,021.36		$   17,500.00		$   512.60		$   17,500.00		$   1,109.86		$   17,500.00		$   - 0		$   3,000.00		$   - 0		$   4,500.00		$   38,643.82		$   4,500.00		$   4,500.00		$   4,500.00		$   4,500.00		$   4,500.00		$   4,500.00		$   4,500.00



		Land Plan Implementation (LP)

		-		C		Land Interest Holding Entity Negotiations & Start-Up (FY07)		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-2(a)		C		Cottonwood Ranch Maintenance & Enhancement (FY07-FY08)		$   75,000.00		$   - 0		$   550,000.00		$   251,710.10		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-2(b)		C		Pre-2007 Cottonwood Ranch Maintenance & Enhancement (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   850,000.00		$   848,836.22		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,846.34		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-3		O		Land Acquisition (FY09-FY12)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   6,000,000.00		$   57,235.61		$   7,000,000.00		$   8,870,729.13		$   6,000,000.00		$   3,335,269.11		$   5,000,000.00		$   1,671,284.19		$   5,000,000.00		Land acquisition costs; annual LIHE fees; property taxes and other annual fees		$   1,000,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   2,000,000.00		$   2,000,000.00		$   300,000.00		$   300,000.00

		LP-4		O		Land Management (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   141,792.29		$   588,800.00		$   584,316.41		$   365,500.00		$   250,116.51		$   409,800.00		Basic land operations and maintenance including road, fence, and building upkeep, noxious weed control, mowing, etc. Agricultural input costs for share cropping agreements including seed, fertilizer and herbicide application, crop insurance, etc. 		$   560,000.00		$   575,000.00		$   590,000.00		$   600,000.00		$   600,000.00		$   600,000.00		$   600,000.00

		LP-5		O		Cottonwood Ranch Bridge Final Design & Construction (FY10)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   55,010.64		$   250,000.00		$   157,035.44		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-6		O		Land Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   59,115.02		$   150,000.00		$   34,248.95		$   120,000.00		Continued land management will be needed by American Realty and Agriaffiliates for the transformation from cropland at Fox, Hostetler, Morse, and Binfield. FSA records need to be adjusted next year to move into grass. Broadfoot will still be a corn crop with marketing and input costs but will finish at the end of 2012. Continued grassland leases for haying and grazing on all properties will happen next year and annually to the end of the first increment. At a point the combined costs will reduce to a maintenance level and with multiple year leases those numbers can become stable.		$   80,000.00		$   80,000.00		$   80,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00

		LP-7		N		Public Access Management (FY11-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		This program will need to plan for additional costs as the first year ends. If successful it will have additional land in upcoming years and we need to prepare for increases in costs from the provider Nebraska Game and Parks Commission. 		$   55,000.00		$   60,000.00		$   65,000.00		$   70,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00

						Sub-Total		$   85,000.00		$   - 0		$   7,400,000.00		$   1,157,781.93		$   7,500,000.00		$   9,012,521.42		$   6,888,800.00		$   4,035,557.52		$   5,815,500.00		$   2,112,685.09		$   5,579,800.00		$   33,038,345.96		$   1,695,000.00		$   915,000.00		$   935,000.00		$   2,745,000.00		$   2,750,000.00		$   1,050,000.00		$   1,050,000.00



		Water Plan Implementation (WP)

		WP-1(a)		O		Active Channel Capacity Improvements (N Platte Channel above CNPPID Diversion Dam)		$   241,000.00		$   110,690.94		$   153,210.00		$   10,805.50		$   161,529.50		$   149,886.60		$   61,642.90		$   24,205.58		$   250,000.00		$   32,596.13		$   100,000.00		Increasing channel capacity upstream of the CNPPID diversion dam to at least 3,000 cfs. Additional technical and/or contracting services will be engaged to update the assessment of ongoing channel issues, recommendations for further efforts, and implementing recommendations.		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00

		WP-1(b)		O		Active Channel Capacity Improvements (CNPPID Diversion Dam to Grand Island)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   400,000.00		$   400,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		Cost share with Platte Valley and West Central Weed Management Areas to clear biomass from the river channel between Kingsley Dam and Chapman.		$   100,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00

		WP-2(a)		C		Water Management Study Phase 1 (FY07-FY08)		$   124,000.00		$   119,016.12		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-2(b)		C		Water Management Study Phase II (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   157,000.00		$   155,969.84		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-3		C		Test Flow Routing Model/2008 EA Augmented SDHF Pilot Study (FY09)		$   75,000.00		$   23,471.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-4(a)		O		Water Action Plan (J2 Rereg Reservoir)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   29,272.57		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   5,100,000.00		$   - 0		$   9,000,000.00		Advancing Water Action Plan projects from feasibility: $9M for reregulating reservoir land acquisition, geotechnical, design, and construction. Assumes reservoir design initiated in 2012 and construction complete by 2015. 		$   10,000,000.00		$   12,000,000.00		$   13,713,650.00		$   250,000.00		$   250,000.00		$   250,000.00		$   250,000.00

		WP-4(b)		O		Water Action Plan (NE GW Recharge)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   200,000.00		Ground water recharge project permitting and O&M associated with canal recharge.		$   107,200.00		$   107,200.00		$   107,200.00		$   107,200.00		$   107,200.00		$   107,200.00		$   107,200.00

		WP-4(c)		O		Water Action Plan (Net Controllable Conserved Water)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Out-year costs only.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   5,320,000.00		$   5,320,000.00		$   5,320,000.00		$   5,320,000.00

		WP-4(d)		O		Water Action Plan (Pathfinder Municipal Accnt)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   2,000,000.00		Pathfinder municipal agreement up-front lump sum payment of $1,958,400 ($51/AF for 38,400AF (8 years @ 4,800 AF/year) released from Pathfinder).		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-4(e)		O		 Water Action Plan (CO GW Mgmnt)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Out-year costs only.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00

		WP-4(f)		O		 Water Action Plan (NE Water Leasing)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		Water acquisition purchase/lease.		$   25,000.00		$   25,000.00		$   25,000.00		$   1,802,250.00		$   1,802,250.00		$   1,802,250.00		$   1,802,250.00

		WP-4(g)		O		 Water Action Plan (Water Mgmnt Incentives)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Out-year costs only.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,398,000.00		$   1,398,000.00		$   1,398,000.00		$   1,398,000.00

		WP-4(h)		O		Water Action Plan (NE GW Mgmnt)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		Feasibility studies and permitting investigations.		$   102,514.00		$   102,514.00		$   102,514.00		$   102,514.00		$   102,514.00		$   102,514.00		$   102,514.00

		WP-5		O		 Management Tool (FY10)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   200,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		Cooperation with agencies developing the COHYST model: consultant fees for model ehancements/analyses specifically related to the PRRIP and/or training ED Office staff, software, etc. Assumes 2012 feasiblity of model applicability; 2016-2018 for WAP project component enhancements to model and model application toward project scoring.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   - 0

		WP-6		O		Feasibility Studies (FY09)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   392,539.35		$   2,050,000.00		$   458,135.81		$   600,000.00		$   390,903.63		$   - 0		Moved into WP-4 WAP projects.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-7		O		Water Acquisition (FY09-FY11)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   - 0		$   300,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		Moved into WP-4 WAP projects.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-8		O		Water Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   160,661.33		$   200,000.00		$   85,360.86		$   150,000.00		Advisors on water-related specialty topics such as economics, hydro-geology/ground water, structural, water project permitting, and economics.		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   50,000.00

		WP-9		O		Miscellaneous Water Resources Studies (FY10)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   200,000.00		$   30,109.77		$   100,000.00		$   13,227.85		$   50,000.00		Investigations to better define fundamental hydrologic and water balance components such as ET of non-crop areas, channel loss/bank storage, and SW/GW interactions; EA flow routing/management. 		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   - 0

		-		C		Legal Review for North Platte Channel Capacity Project (FY08)		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   2,975.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

						Sub-Total		$   450,000.00		$   253,178.06		$   315,210.00		$   169,750.34		$   1,411,529.50		$   571,698.52		$   3,461,642.90		$   1,073,112.49		$   6,950,000.00		$   722,088.47		$   12,350,000.00		$   91,552,475.88		$   10,584,714.00		$   12,459,714.00		$   14,198,364.00		$   9,879,964.00		$   9,929,964.00		$   9,779,964.00		$   9,579,964.00



		AMP Experimental Design

		PD-4		C		AMP Workshops (FY09-FY19)		$   50,000.00		$   9,599.55		$   75,000.00		$   49,025.72		$   10,000.00		$   274.09		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from a PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-12		O		Model Application (FY09-FY12)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   360,000.00		$   - 0		$   390,000.00		$   403,940.25		$   150,000.00		$   143,223.26		$   20,000.00		Model now complete; funding for technical support for application of 1-D model		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-13		O		Sediment Augmentation Feasibility Analysis, Design, and Permitting (FY09-FY12)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   400,000.00		$   89,208.79		$   520,791.21		$   242,272.75		$   350,000.00		$   65,459.66		$   540,888.00		Estimate for implementation of second year of pilot-scale management action (augmentation at Cook/Dyer and CWR); Flatwater contracted through August 2012; need fourth amendment and contract through August 2013 for final year of implementation, data analysis, and final reporting		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00

		PD-14		C		Whooping Crane Conservation Action Plan (CAP) Development (FY09)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-19		O		Flow Consolidation Conceptual Design (FY10-11)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   200,000.00		$   81,677.06		$   200,000.00		$   99,172.45		$   230,000.00		Final design, permitting, and construction of channel plugs; evaluation of outcomes/performance		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-20		O		Wet Meadow Restoration  on Tract 2009001 (FY11-FY12)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   28,666.87		$   324,000.00		Groundwater level monitoring and construction/conversion of Fox Tract to wet meadow / grassland		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		-		C		Develop Mgmt.-Level Hypothesis Testing for FSM/Clear-Level Plow (FY07)		$   25,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

						Sub-Total		$   75,000.00		$   9,599.55		$   75,000.00		$   49,025.72		$   790,000.00		$   109,482.88		$   1,120,791.21		$   727,890.06		$   760,000.00		$   336,522.24		$   1,114,888.00				$   450,000.00		$   420,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   220,000.00

		AMP Implementation Activities

		-		C		AMWG Assistance & Operating Expenses		$   - 0		$   13,620.15		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-2		O		FSM/MCM Actions at Habitat Complexes (FY08-FY19)		$   25,000.00		$   3,675.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   350,000.00		$   187,879.35		$   1,270,000.00		$   488,274.11		$   483,000.00		$   607,812.66		$   639,130.00		Estimate for activities at 5 Program complexes and activities at new properties		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-7		C		Program Anchor Points (FY09)		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-15		O		AMP Permits (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   41,696.85		$   200,000.00		$   78,604.46		$   150,000.00		Additional HDR permitting work for in-channel and sediment augmentation through Regional General Permit and/or additional Individual Permits		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-16		C		Invasives Strategy (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-18		C		AMP-Related Equipment (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   140,000.00		$   130,697.22		$   50,000.00		$   33,419.07		$   55,000.00		$   1,084.66		$   66,215.00		Equipment for vehicles and equipment necessary to implement Program habitat rehabilitation and adaptive management monitoring activities, use rate charge estimates documented in Equipment Memo provided to FC and GC		$   70,000.00		$   70,000.00		$   70,000.00		$   70,000.00		$   70,000.00		$   70,000.00		$   70,000.00

		WP-10		O		Environmental Account SDHF (FY08-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   46,872.33		$   350,000.00		$   67,876.55		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		No SDHF in 2012		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   - 0

						Sub-Total		$   75,000.00		$   17,295.15		$   300,000.00		$   46,872.33		$   1,000,000.00		$   386,453.12		$   1,470,000.00		$   563,390.03		$   888,000.00		$   687,501.78		$   855,345.00				$   470,000.00		$   470,000.00		$   320,000.00		$   290,000.00		$   140,000.00		$   220,000.00		$   70,000.00

		Integrated Monitoring & Research Plan Activities

		G-1		O		LiDAR Implementation (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   260,000.00		$   250,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   75,000.00		$   - 0		$   118,100.00		RFP in 2011 for combined LiDAR and aerial photography; under contract through 2014		$   118,100.00		$   118,100.00		$   118,100.00		$   118,100.00		$   118,100.00		$   118,100.00		$   118,100.00

		G-2		O		Aerial Photography (FY08-FY19)		$   10,000.00		$   10,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   10,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   20,850.00		$   21,000.00		$   22,309.50		$   25,000.00		$   26,827.00

		G-3		C		Revise & Update Geomorphology Monitoring Protocol (FY07-FY08)		$   27,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		G-4		C		Develop Scope of Work for 2008 System-Level Geomorphic Monitoring		$   7,500.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		G-5		O		Geomorphology/In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring (FY09-FY19)		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   95,000.00		$   - 0		$   395,000.00		$   380,500.00		$   300,000.00		$   320,163.00		$   447,500.00		$   329,723.50		$   450,000.00		RFP for new contract in December 2011; estimate based on past budgets		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00		$   450,000.00

		H-2		C		Program Stream Gages (FY08-FY19)		$   14,500.00		$   6,885.00		$   29,500.00		$   20,807.14		$   30,000.00		$   23,194.24		$   50,000.00		$   47,150.49		$   50,000.00		$   18,954.43		$   40,000.00		Two new gages, maintenance, CWR gage		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00

		H-4,5		C		Unsteady Flow Model Calibration (FY07)		$   23,500.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		IMRP-1		C		SDHF Monitoring (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		IMRP-2		O		AMP Directed Research Projects (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   700,000.00		$   93,684.44		$   325,000.00		$   38,712.82		$   450,000.00		$   214,367.91		$   335,000.00		Detailed report on relationship between bird cognition and habitat selection; monitoring/research on wet meadow and channel impacts relative to planned 2012 EA releases		$   400,000.00		$   400,000.00		$   400,000.00		$   400,000.00		$   300,000.00		$   300,000.00		$   300,000.00

		IMRP-3		O		Adaptive Management Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   127,732.32		$   150,000.00		$   106,286.29		$   140,000.00		$60,000 for Brad Anderson and Chester Watson (geomorphology and Kearney Canal water quality); $40,000 for Natasha Bankhead and Andrew Simon (vegetation); $40,000 for Darcy Pickard (experimental design and statistics)		$   140,000.00		$   140,000.00		$   140,000.00		$   140,000.00		$   140,000.00		$   140,000.00		$   140,000.00

		IMRP-4		O		FSM "Proof of Concept" Activities @ Elm Creek Complex (FY11-FY16)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   137,745.60		$   203,185.00		Year 2 of contract (May 2012 to May 2013); $100,000 for two monitoring events; $70,000 for model updates, data analysis/reporting, experimental design		$   170,000.00		$   170,000.00		$   170,000.00		$   170,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		IMRP-5		N		FSM "Proof of Concept" Activities @ Shoemaker Island Complex (FY12-FY16)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		Replicate of FSM activities at Shoemaker Island Complex		$   210,000.00		$   170,000.00		$   170,000.00		$   170,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		IMRP-6		N		Habitat Availability Analysis (FY11-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   143,227.00		Sole-source cost proposal from RBJV for 2012 through mid-2013 work to be discussed at GC meeting in December 2011; scope in 2012 includes completing 2007-2012 habitat availability analysis for terns/plovers and conducting 2007-2012 habitat availability analysis for whooping cranes		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00

		PD-8		O		Database Management System Development & Maintenance (FY08-FY19)		$   150,000.00		$   - 0		$   159,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   72,849.67		$   572,150.33		$   453,767.64		$   140,000.00		$   105,756.52		$   165,615.18		Ongoing database development and management by Riverside Technologies		$   130,000.00		$   130,000.00		$   130,000.00		$   130,000.00		$   130,000.00		$   130,000.00		$   130,000.00

		PS-1		C		Pallid Sturgeon Existing Information Review/Summary (FY08)		$   32,400.00		$   - 0		$   32,400.00		$   30,979.25		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PS-2		C		Lower Platte River Stage Change Study (FY08-FY09)		$   200,000.00		$   2,336.36		$   200,000.00		$   46,458.42		$   182,634.74		$   178,202.31		$   54,432.43		$   10,633.70		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		TP-1		O		Tern & Plover Monitoring (FY08-FY19)		$   14,000.00		$   - 0		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   47,599.56		$   300,000.00		$   119,541.29		$   215,000.00		Monitoring costs - USGS crew contracted through summer of 2013; includes USDA trapping costs and additional Program costs (fencing, etc.)		$   235,000.00		$   235,000.00		$   235,000.00		$   235,000.00		$   235,000.00		$   235,000.00		$   235,000.00

		TP-2		C		Finish Forage Fish Monitoring Protocol (FY07-FY08)		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		TP-3		C		Forage Fish Monitoring (FY08-FY19)		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   7,500.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint; Districts will continue to implement existing monitoring protocol; ED Office will synthesize data in FY 2011 and recommend potential next steps		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		TP-4		C		Tern & Plover Foraging Habits Study (FY09-FY10)		$   120,000.00		$   - 0		$   40,000.00		$   - 0		$   105,000.00		$   100,355.96		$   144,644.04		$   139,645.92		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint; remaining FY 2010 funds will be held as UO to complete final reporting and publication in FY 2011		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		TP-5		C		Analysis of CA-Collected Tern/Plover Monitoring Data (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   35,000.00		$   37,638.22		$   16,035.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-1		O		Whooping Crane Monitoring (FY08-FY19)		$   130,000.00		$   126,521.20		$   130,000.00		$   111,438.30		$   150,000.00		$   125,630.37		$   150,000.00		$   132,917.31		$   170,000.00		$   109,644.51		$   225,091.00		Under contract through spring 2015; funding for spring and fall monitoring, data analysis, and reporting		$   225,091.00		$   225,091.00		$   225,091.00		$   225,091.00		$   225,091.00		$   225,091.00		$   225,091.00

		WC-2		C		Analysis of CA-Collected Whooping Crane Monitoring Data (FY08)		$   25,000.00		$   32,497.42		$   6,454.48		$   6,454.48		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-3		O		Whooping Crane Telemetry Tracking (FY09-FY12)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   125,000.00		$   - 0		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   - 0		$   167,100.00		PRRIP share of project budget for helicopter time, GPS transmitters, and data costs		$   63,000.00		$   14,400.00		$   11,400.00		$   7,200.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-4		C		Water Surface Estimation at Crane Use Sites (FY07-FY08)		$   18,312.00		$   4,360.00		$   23,120.00		$   23,120.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-5		N		IGERT Whooping Crane Habitat Selection Project (FY12-FY13)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   25,000.00		One-time payment to UNL for IGERT PhD student project		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WMV-1		C		Vegetation Mapping Effort (FY07-FY08)		$   25,000.00		$   10,334.40		$   14,665.00		$   5,196.36		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WMV-2		C		Wet Meadows Information Review and CEM Refinement (FY10)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   32,400.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   43,600.00		$   - 0		Complete from a PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WQ-1		O		Water Quality Monitoring (FY09-FY11)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   184,000.00		$   175,043.20		$   188,956.80		$   176,747.30		$   280,000.00		$   180,115.02		$   150,000.00		Estimated budget from EA for Kearney Canal and central Platte monitoring		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00		$   150,000.00

						Sub-Total		$   817,212.00		$   192,934.38		$   1,270,039.48		$   707,092.17		$   2,377,669.74		$   1,295,310.19		$   2,331,183.60		$   1,647,379.56		$   2,462,500.00		$   1,392,562.07		$   2,627,318.18				$   2,351,191.00		$   2,262,591.00		$   2,259,591.00		$   2,255,391.00		$   1,808,191.00		$   1,808,191.00		$   1,808,191.00

		AMP Independent Science Review

		ISAC-1		O		ISAC Stipends & Expenses (FY09-FY19)		$   80,000.00		$   - 0		$   115,000.00		$   - 0		$   142,000.00		$   138,306.72		$   150,000.00		$   129,192.07		$   185,000.00		$   96,835.24		$   185,000.00		Annual stipends for three, 3-day meeetings for six ISAC members; $10,000 additional stipend for chair to write annual report; 10 days of document review per ISAC member; travel expenses		$   185,000.00		$   185,000.00		$   185,000.00		$   185,000.00		$   185,000.00		$   185,000.00		$   185,000.00

		ISAC-2		C		Meetings, Expenses, etc. (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		ISAC-3		C		Initial Establishment /Planning Session Expenses (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-3		O		AMP & IMRP Peer Review (FY09-FY19)		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   105,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   49,500.00		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   115,000.00		$   37,622.50		$   90,000.00		Funding for peer review of up to four documents		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00

		PD-11		O		AMP Reporting (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   70,000.00		$   24,340.91		$   25,000.00		$   7,192.33		$   25,000.00		Meeting costs for 2012 AMP Reporting Session in March 2012		$   25,000.00		$   25,000.00		$   25,000.00		$   25,000.00		$   25,000.00		$   25,000.00		$   25,000.00

						Sub-Total		$   130,000.00		$   - 0		$   240,000.00		$   - 0		$   202,000.00		$   187,806.72		$   270,000.00		$   153,532.98		$   325,000.00		$   141,650.07		$   300,000.00				$   260,000.00		$   260,000.00		$   260,000.00		$   260,000.00		$   260,000.00		$   260,000.00		$   260,000.00

						AMP Sub-Total		$   1,097,212.00		$   219,829.08		$   1,885,039.48		$   802,990.22		$   4,369,669.74		$   1,979,052.91		$   5,191,974.81		$   3,092,192.63		$   4,435,500.00		$   2,558,236.16		$   4,897,551.18		$   33,873,189.18		$   3,531,191.00		$   3,412,591.00		$   3,059,591.00		$   3,025,391.00		$   2,428,191.00		$   2,508,191.00		$   2,358,191.00

								Column A		Column B		Column C		Column D		Column E		Column F		Column G		Column H		Column I		Column J		Column K		Estimated First Increment Total ($187M available in 2005 dollars)		Column L		Column M		Column N		Column O		Column P		Column Q		Column R

		PRRIP BUDGET TOTALS						$   2,434,261.00		$   1,058,592.22		$   11,053,964.00		$   3,559,179.93		$   16,326,458.24		$   13,582,562.57		$   17,734,817.71		$   10,245,624.63		$   19,430,000.00		$   6,991,302.95		$   25,373,351.18		$   186,163,598.48		$   18,366,905.00		$   19,353,305.00		$   20,743,955.00		$   18,111,355.00		$   17,549,155.00		$   15,784,155.00		$   15,444,155.00



		Status Label				* All budget numbers in 2005 dollars

		O = Ongoing, N = New, C = Complete



		AMP Project ID Labels:

		G = Geomorphology

		H = Hydrology

		IMRP = Integrated Monitoring and Research Plan

		PD = General Activities/Program Development

		PS = Pallid Sturgeon

		TP = Terns/Plovers

		WC = Whooping Cranes

		WMV = Wet Meadows/Vegetation

		WQ = Water Quality

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page &P of &N	







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 1 of 58 


 


 1 


 2 


 3 


 4 


 5 


 6 


 7 
 8 
Prepared by: 9 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 10 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program (PRRIP or Program) 11 
Kearney, Nebraska 12 
 13 


 14 
Prepared for: 15 


PRRIP Governance Committee 16 
Jim Schneider, Chair 17 
 18 


 19 
Final Budget and Work Plan Recommended by Executive Director 20 


December 2011 21 
 22 


 23 
Final Budget and Work Plan Revised and Approved by Governance Committee 24 


December 2011 25 
 26 
 27 


 28 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION 


PROGRAM 


FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET AND ANNUAL WORK 


PLAN 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 2 of 58 


 


Table of Contents 29 


 30 
Introduction………………………………………………………………………………………………..4 31 
 32 
Executive Director’s Office (ED) 33 


ED-1:  Salaries/Travel/Office Expenditures.......................................................................5 34 
 ED-2:  Administrative and Other Support Services...........................................................6 35 
 ED-3:  Public Outreach…………………………………………………………………...7 36 
 37 
Governance Committee/Finance Committee (GFC) 38 
 GFC-1:  NCF Fees…………………………………………………………………………9 39 
 GFC-2:  Pulse Flow and Other Insurance………………………………………………...10 40 
 GFC-3:  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc………………………………………………….11 41 
 GFC-4:  Pulse Flow Reserve……………………………………………………………...12 42 
 43 
Program Advisory Committees 44 
  Land Advisory Committee (LAC) 45 


LAC-1:  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc………………………………………………….13 46 
  Water Advisory Committee (WAC) 47 
 WAC-1: Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc………………………………………………….14 48 
  Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 49 
 TAC-1:  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc…………………………………………………15 50 
   51 
Land Plan Implementation (LP) 52 
 LP-3:  Land Acquisition………………………………………………………………...16 53 
 LP-4:  Land Management………………………………………………………………17 54 
 LP-6:  Land Plan Special Advisors……………………………………………………..19 55 
 LP-7:  Public Access Management……………………………………………………..20 56 
 57 
Water Plan Implementation (WP) 58 


WP-1(a): Active Channel Capacity Improvements (N Platte Channel above CNPPID 59 
Diversion Dam)………………………………………………………………….21 60 


WP-1(b): Active Channel Capacity Improvements (CNPPID Diversion Dam to Grand 61 
Island)…………………………………………………………………………...21 62 


 WP-4:  Water Action Plan……………………………………………………………….23 63 
WP-5:  Management Tool……………………………………………………………….25 64 


 WP-8:  Water Plan Special Advisors……………………………………………………26 65 
 WP-9:  Miscellaneous Water Resource Studies…………………………………………27 66 
 67 
Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) Implementation 68 
  AMP Experimental Design 69 
 PD-12:  Model Application………………………………………………………………28 70 
 PD-13:  Sediment Augmentation Feasibility Analysis, Design, and Permitting…………29 71 
 PD-19:  Flow Consolidation Conceptual Design………………………………………...30 72 
 PD-20:  Wet Meadow Restoration on Tract 2009001……………………………………31 73 
   74 
 75 
 76 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 3 of 58 


 


AMP Implementation Activities 77 
 LP-2:  FSM/MCM Actions on Habitat Complexes…………………………………….32 78 
 PD-15:  AMP Permits…………………………………………………………………….34 79 
 PD-18:  AMP-Related Equipment………………………………………………………..35 80 
  Integrated Monitoring & Research Plan Activities 81 
 G-1:  LiDAR & Aerial Photography…………………………………………………36 82 
 G-5:  Geomorphology/In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring…………………………...37 83 
 H-2:  Program Water Gages…………………………………………………………...38 84 
 IMRP-2: AMP Directed Research Projects……………………………………………….39 85 
 IMRP-3: Adaptive Management Plan Special Advisors…………………………………..41 86 
 IMRP-4: FSM “Proof of Concept” Activities @ Elm Creek Complex...............................43 87 
 IMRP-5: FSM "Proof of Concept" Activities @ Shoemaker Island Complex……………45 88 
 IMRP-6: Habitat Availability Analysis……………………………………………………46 89 


PD-8:    Database Management System Development & Maintenance………………….48 90 
 TP-1:  Tern & Plover Monitoring………………………………………………………49 91 


WC-1:  Whooping Crane Monitoring……………………………………………………50 92 
 WC-3:  Whooping Crane Telemetry Tracking…………………………………………..51 93 
 WC-5:  IGERT Whooping Crane Habitat Selection Project….…………………………52 94 


WQ-1:  Water Quality Monitoring………………………………………………………53 95 
AMP Independent Science Review 96 
 ISAC-1: ISAC Stipends & Expenses……………………………………………………..54 97 
 PD-3:  AMP & IMRP Peer Review……………………………………………………..56 98 
 PD-11:  AMP Reporting………………………………………………………………….58 99 
 100 


 101 


 102 


 103 


 104 
 105 


 106 
 107 


 108 
 109 
 110 
 111 
 112 


 113 
 114 
 115 
 116 
 117 
 118 
 119 
 120 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 4 of 58 


 


 121 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 122 


FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET AND ANNUAL WORK PLAN 123 


 124 
 125 
Introduction 126 
The Platte River Recovery Implementation Program (Program) was initiated on January 1, 2007 as a 127 
basin-wide effort between the states of Colorado, Wyoming, and Nebraska and the Department of Interior 128 
to provide land, water, and scientific monitoring and research to evaluate Program benefits for the target 129 
species.  The Program is being implemented in an incremental manner, with the First Increment covering 130 
the 13-year period from 2007 through 2019.  In general, the purpose of the Program is to implement 131 
certain aspects of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s (Service) recovery plans for the target species that 132 
relate to the Program’s identified “associated habitats” in the central Platte River by securing defined 133 
benefits for those species and their habitats.  The Program will also provide ESA compliance for existing 134 
and certain new water-related activities in the Platte basin upstream of the Loup River confluence for 135 
potential effects on the target species; help prevent the need to list more Platte River species under the 136 
ESA; mitigate the adverse effects of certain new water-related activities through approved depletions 137 
plans; and establish and maintain an organizational structure that will ensure appropriate state and federal 138 
government and stakeholder involvement in the Program.  139 
 140 
The Program is led by a Governance Committee (GC) consisting of representatives of Colorado, 141 
Wyoming, Nebraska, the Bureau of Reclamation, the Service, South Platte River water users, North Platte 142 
River water users, Nebraska water users, and environmental groups.  The Program established key 143 
standing Advisory Committees to assist the GC in implementing the Program.  Those committees include 144 
the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), the Land Advisory Committee (LAC), the Water Advisory 145 
Committee (WAC), the Finance Committee (FC), and the Independent Scientific Advisory Committee 146 
(ISAC).  In addition, an Adaptive Management Working Group (AMWG) has been formed to inform the 147 
GC on implementation of the Program’s Adaptive Management Plan (AMP). 148 
 149 
Dr. Jerry Kenny serves as Executive Director of the Program.  Dr. Kenny and staff in the Executive 150 
Director’s (ED) Office maintain offices in Nebraska and Colorado.  The Executive Director’s Office 151 
worked closely with the GC, the Advisory Committees, the AMWG, Program cooperators and partners, 152 
and others to develop the FY 2012 Program Budget and Work Plan based on guidance from the Final 153 
Program Document and Program goals and priorities. 154 
 155 
This document presents the final FY 2012 Program Annual Work Plan.  The final FY 2012 Program 156 
Budget Spreadsheet is a separate document but is incorporated by reference. 157 


 158 


 159 


 160 


 161 


 162 


 163 


 164 


 165 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 5 of 58 


 


 166 
 167 


 168 
Program First Increment Timeline 169 
Annual 170 
 171 
FY 2012 Start Date 172 
January 1, 2012 173 
 174 
FY 2012 End Date 175 
December 31, 2012 176 
 177 
Task Completed by 178 
ED Office (Executive Director, Headwaters Corporation staff) 179 
 180 
Task Location 181 
Kearney, NE; Lincoln, NE; Denver, CO 182 
 183 
Task Description 184 
Salaries, travel, and other direct costs associated with ED and staff in ED Offices. ED and EDO 185 
responsible for implementation of all items detailed in remainder of the Work Plan. Exhibit A (Scope) of 186 
ED Contract and Staffing Plan provide documentation of effort. 187 
 188 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 189 
N/A 190 
 191 
Products 192 
Staff support for all Program activities 193 
 194 
Notes on Cost 195 
Detailed breakdown of budget provided in ED Contract/Office Budget (Exhibit B); no anticipated further 196 
growth in staff levels. 197 
 198 
Budget 199 
 200 


Program Task ED-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Salaries/Travel/Office 


Expenditures 


$361,861 $1,110,800 $1,427,759 $1,599,900 $1,600,000 $1,800,000 


 201 
 202 
 203 
 204 
 205 
 206 
 207 
 208 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  ED-1.  Salaries/Travel/Office Expenditures 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 6 of 58 


 


 209 
 210 
 211 
Program First Increment Timeline 212 
Annual 213 
 214 
FY 2012 Start Date 215 
January 1, 2012 216 
 217 
FY 2012 End Date 218 
December 31, 2012 219 
 220 
Task Completed by 221 
ED Office 222 
 223 
Task Location 224 
ED Office 225 
 226 
Task Description 227 
Assistance to ED Office for administrative and other support services such as publishing public notices,  228 
surveying, appraisals, Phase 1 Environmental Surveys, attorneys with land or water specialty, etc. 229 
 230 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 231 
N/A 232 
 233 
Products 234 
Contract services support for Program activities 235 
 236 
Notes on Cost 237 
Individual contracts determined by ED according to need, expertise, priority, etc. 238 
 239 
Budget 240 
 241 


Program Task ED-2 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Administrative and 


Other Support Services 


$17,000 $150,000 $250,000 $200,000 $200,000 $150,000 


 242 
 243 
 244 
 245 
 246 
 247 
 248 
 249 
 250 
 251 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  ED-2.  Administrative and Other Support Services 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 7 of 58 


 


 252 
 253 
 254 
Program First Increment Timeline 255 
Annual 256 
 257 
FY 2012 Start Date 258 
January 1, 2012 259 
 260 
FY 2012 End Date 261 
December 31, 2012 262 
 263 
Task Completed by 264 
ED Office 265 
 266 
Task Location 267 
ED Office (Kearney, NE) 268 
 269 
Task Description 270 
 $25,000 for NET/Forsberg Platte River time-lapse project; Formerly in AMP Budget –provided 271 


funding for locations of specific scientific interest; Placing in Outreach funding due to the broader 272 
educational and outreach emphasis on locations to be implemented this year. 273 


 $10,000 for Hydrologic Cycle exhibit at Lincoln’s Children’s Museum (one-time contribution); 274 
Provides a hands-on learning experience that instructs children in the fundamentals of the hydrologic 275 
cycle, the interaction of rivers and sediment in sand-bed streams, the relationship of rivers to habitat – 276 
e.g., cranes, and uses of water for hydropower and irrigation. Target audience is ages 4-10.  277 


 $5,000 for Rowe Sanctuary Summer Orientation About Rivers (SOAR) and other youth/family 278 
hands-on educational events. 279 


 $5,000 for Nebraska Nature & Visitor’s Center summer youth camp and other youth/family hands-on 280 
educational events. 281 


 $5,000 for Prairie Loft Center for Outdoor & Agricultural Learning for educational programming; 282 
Oriented toward landscape environment and relationship of agriculture to that environment, hands-on 283 
learning experiences. 284 


 $20,000 for exhibitor fees, publication of materials, and promotional materials for venues such as 285 
Husker Harvest Days, South Platte Forum, Colorado Water Congress, Rivers and Wildlife, Kearney 286 
Crane Festival, and other public and professional outreach and education opportunities. 287 


 288 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 289 
N/A 290 
 291 
Products 292 
Program visibility and communication with the public 293 
 294 
Notes on Cost 295 
N/A 296 
 297 
 298 
 299 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  ED-3.  Public Outreach 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 8 of 58 


 


Budget 300 
 301 


Program Task ED-3 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Public Outreach $0 $0 $30,000 $40,000 $50,000 $70,000 


 302 
 303 
 304 
 305 
 306 
 307 
 308 
 309 
 310 
 311 
 312 
 313 
 314 
 315 
 316 
 317 
 318 
 319 
 320 
 321 
 322 
 323 
 324 
 325 
 326 
 327 
 328 
 329 
 330 
 331 
 332 
 333 
 334 
 335 
 336 
 337 
 338 
 339 
 340 
 341 
 342 
 343 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 9 of 58 


 


 344 
 345 
 346 
Program First Increment Timeline 347 
Annual 348 
 349 
FY 2012 Start Date 350 
January 1, 2012 351 
 352 
FY 2012 End Date 353 
December 31, 2012 354 
 355 
Task Completed by 356 
ED Office, Nebraska Community Foundation (NCF) 357 
 358 
Task Location 359 
ED Office; NCF (Lincoln, NE) 360 
 361 
Task Description 362 
Fees paid to the NCF for administration of the financial aspects of the Program in 2012. Fee paid based 363 
on sliding scale percentage of fees handled by NCF, defined below: 364 
 365 


Annual Cumulative 


Disbursements 


  


From To Fee 


$0 $999,999 2.50% 


$1,000,000 $1,999,999 2.25% 


$2,000,000 $4,999,999 2.00% 


$5,000,000 $9,999,999 1.75% 


>$10,000,000  1.50% 


 366 
Fee for 2012 calculated based on a total budget of approximately $27,000,000. 367 
 368 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 369 
N/A 370 
 371 
Products 372 
Financial support services for Program 373 
 374 
Notes on Cost 375 
N/A 376 
 377 
Budget 378 
 379 


Program Task GFC-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


NCF Fees $75,000 $100,000 $255,000 $260,000 $300,000 $450,000 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  GFC-1.  NCF Fees 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 10 of 58 


 


 380 
 381 
 382 
Program First Increment Timeline 383 
Annual 384 
 385 
FY 2012 Start Date 386 
January 1, 2012 387 
 388 
FY 2012 End Date 389 
December 31, 2012 390 
 391 
Task Completed by 392 
ED Office, Dunbar-Peterson 393 
 394 
Task Location 395 
ED Office; insurance provider office in Omaha, Nebraska 396 
 397 
Task Description 398 
Insurance acquired for representatives of the GC and subcommittees (including alternates) and ED Office 399 
for certain actions that will be undertaken through Program implementation.  Coverage will be for a 400 
number of actions that the Program will undertake including short duration high flow releases and 401 
because of land and equipment ownership. 402 
  403 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 404 
N/A 405 
 406 
Products 407 
Program insurance policy 408 
 409 
Notes on Cost 410 
Premium and fees negotiated with selected provider. 411 
 412 
Budget 413 
 414 


Program Task GFC-2 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Pulse Flow and Other 


Insurance 


$100,000 $50,000 $60,000 $70,000 $75,000 $70,000 


 415 
 416 
 417 
 418 
 419 
 420 
 421 
 422 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  GFC-2.  Pulse Flow and Other Insurance 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 11 of 58 


 


 423 
 424 
 425 
Program First Increment Timeline 426 
Annual 427 
 428 
FY 2012 Start Date 429 
January 1, 2012 430 
 431 
FY 2012 End Date 432 
December 31, 2012 433 
 434 
Task Completed by 435 
ED Office; GC; FC 436 
 437 
Task Location 438 
Meeting locations in NE, WY, and CO 439 
 440 
Task Description 441 
Limited budget amount to cover meeting room rentals for GC and FC meetings; other miscellaneous costs 442 
for holding meetings (e.g. conference call fees, AV fees) 443 
 444 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 445 
N/A 446 
 447 
Products 448 
Meeting space and associated needs 449 
 450 
Notes on Cost 451 
N/A 452 
 453 
Budget 454 
 455 


Program Task GFC-3 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Expenses, Meeting 


Rooms, etc. 


$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $1,000 $1,500 


 456 
 457 
 458 
 459 
 460 
 461 
 462 
 463 
 464 
 465 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  GFC-3.  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 12 of 58 


 


 466 
 467 
 468 
Program First Increment Timeline 469 
One-time payment, funds held in reserve annually through First Increment 470 
 471 
FY 2012 Start Date 472 
January 1, 2012 473 
 474 
FY 2012 End Date 475 
December 31, 2012 476 
 477 
Task Completed by 478 
ED Office; GC; FC 479 
 480 
Task Location 481 
ED Office (Kearney, NE) and NCF (Lincoln, NE) 482 
 483 
Task Description 484 
Reserve fund for potential Environmental Account (EA) bypass-related costs. 485 
 486 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 487 
N/A 488 
 489 
Products 490 
Reserve fund 491 
 492 
Notes on Cost 493 
One-time cost held in reserve during First Increment, registered as reserved in 2009 and carried forward 494 
as Unliquidated Obligation. 495 
 496 
Budget 497 
 498 


Program Task GFC-4 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Pulse Flow 


Reserve 


$0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 


 499 
 500 
 501 
 502 
 503 
 504 
 505 
 506 
 507 
 508 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  GFC-4.  Pulse Flow Reserve 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 13 of 58 


 


 509 
 510 
 511 
Program First Increment Timeline 512 
Annual 513 
 514 
FY 2012 Start Date 515 
January 1, 2012 516 
 517 
FY 2012 End Date 518 
December 31, 2012 519 
 520 
Task Completed by 521 
ED Office; LAC 522 
 523 
Task Location 524 
All LAC meetings are held in central Nebraska 525 
 526 
Task Description 527 
Limited budget amount to cover meeting room rentals for LAC meetings; other miscellaneous costs for 528 
holding meetings (e.g. conference call fees, AV fees) 529 
 530 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 531 
N/A 532 
 533 
Products 534 
Meeting space and associated needs 535 
 536 
Notes on Cost 537 
N/A 538 
 539 
Budget 540 
 541 


Program Task LAC-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Expenses, Meeting 


Rooms, etc. 


$7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $1,000 $1,500 


 542 
 543 
 544 
 545 
 546 
 547 
 548 
 549 
 550 
 551 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LAC-1.  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 14 of 58 


 


 552 
 553 
 554 
Program First Increment Timeline 555 
Annual 556 
 557 
FY 2012 Start Date 558 
January 1, 2012 559 
 560 
FY 2012 End Date 561 
December 31, 2012 562 
 563 
Task Completed by 564 
ED Office; WAC 565 
 566 
Task Location 567 
Meeting locations in NE, WY, and CO 568 
 569 
Task Description 570 
Limited budget amount to cover meeting room rentals for WAC meetings; other miscellaneous costs for 571 
holding meetings (e.g. conference call fees, AV fees) 572 
 573 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 574 
N/A 575 
 576 
Products 577 
Meeting space and associated needs 578 
 579 
Notes on Cost 580 
N/A 581 
 582 
Budget 583 
 584 


Program Task WAC-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Expenses, Meeting 


Rooms, etc. 


$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $1,000 $1,500 


 585 
 586 
 587 
 588 
 589 
 590 
 591 
 592 
 593 
 594 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WAC-1.  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 15 of 58 


 


 595 
 596 
 597 
Program First Increment Timeline 598 
Annual 599 
 600 
FY 2012 Start Date 601 
January 1, 2012 602 
 603 
FY 2012 End Date 604 
December 31, 2012 605 
 606 
Task Completed by 607 
ED Office; TAC 608 
 609 
Task Location 610 
Meeting locations in NE, WY, and CO 611 
 612 
Task Description 613 
Limited budget amount to cover meeting room rentals for TAC meetings; other miscellaneous costs for 614 
holding meetings (e.g. conference call fees, AV fees) 615 
 616 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 617 
N/A 618 
 619 
Products 620 
Meeting space and associated needs 621 
 622 
Notes on Cost 623 
N/A 624 
 625 
Budget 626 
 627 


Program Task TAC-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Expenses, Meeting 


Rooms, etc. 


$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $1,000 $1,500 


 628 
 629 
 630 
 631 
 632 
 633 
 634 
 635 
 636 
 637 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  TAC-1.  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 16 of 58 


 


 638 
 639 
 640 
Program First Increment Timeline 641 
FY09-FY12 642 
 643 
FY 2012 Start Date 644 
January 1, 2012 645 
 646 
FY 2012 End Date 647 
December 31, 2012 648 
 649 
Task Completed by 650 
ED Office; LAC; Land Interest Holding Entity (LIHE) 651 
 652 
Task Location 653 
Land interest locations TBD 654 
 655 
Task Description 656 
Funding for acquisition of interest in land (own, lease, easements, other agreements) according to 657 
implementation of the Land Plan and the AMP; fees for Platte River Recovery Implementation 658 
Foundation, the LIHE for the Program, as well as property taxes and other annual fees. 659 
 660 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 661 
Provision of land interest for implementation of AMP and two management strategies; testing of related 662 
priority hypotheses 663 
 664 
Products 665 
Program lands 666 
 667 
Notes on Cost 668 
Budget estimate assumes availability of priority land interests. 669 
 670 
Budget 671 
 672 


Program Task LP-3 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Land Acquisition $0 $6,000,000 $7,000,000 $6,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 


 673 
 674 
 675 
 676 
 677 
 678 
 679 
 680 
 681 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-3.  Land Acquisition 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 17 of 58 


 


 682 
 683 
 684 
Program First Increment Timeline 685 
Annual 686 
 687 
FY 2012 Start Date 688 
January 1, 2012 689 
 690 
FY 2012 End Date 691 
December 31, 2012 692 
 693 
Task Completed by 694 
ED Office; LAC; Land Interest Holding Entity (LIHE) 695 
 696 
Task Location 697 
Land interest locations  698 
 699 
Task Description 700 
Funding for non-AMP related management activities (fencing, routine agricultural operations, weed 701 
management, property maintenance, day-to-day management, non-AMP tree and channel clearing, etc.). 702 
By complex estimates: 703 


1. Cottonwood Ranch Complex 704 
a. Property Maintenance           $24,500 705 


2. Elm Creek Complex 706 
a. Property Maintenance           $26,000 707 


3. Ft. Kearny Complex 708 
a. Property Maintenance           $60,000 709 
b. Agricultural Operations           $30,000 710 


Total           $90,000 711 
4. Plum Creek Complex 712 


a. Property Maintenance           $56,800 713 
5. Shoemaker Island Complex  714 


a. Property Maintenance      $112,500 715 
6. New Properties  (6)    $100,000 716 


Total $409,800 717 
 718 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 719 
N/A 720 
 721 
Products 722 
Program lands managed properly according to Program guidelines and “Good Neighbor” policy. 723 
 724 
Notes on Cost 725 
Based on estimates for work on five Program complexes, and an estimated six additional acquisitions.  726 
For more details, please see tract-specific annual work plans. 727 
 728 
 729 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-4.  Land Management 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 18 of 58 


 


Budget 730 
 731 


Program Task LP-4 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Land Management $0 $0 $500,000 $588,800 $365,500 $409,800 


 732 
 733 
 734 
 735 
 736 
 737 
 738 
 739 
 740 
 741 
 742 
 743 
 744 
 745 
 746 
 747 
 748 
 749 
 750 
 751 
 752 
 753 
 754 
 755 
 756 
 757 
 758 
 759 
 760 
 761 
 762 
 763 
 764 
 765 
 766 
 767 
 768 
 769 
 770 
 771 
 772 
 773 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 19 of 58 


 


 774 
 775 
 776 
Program First Increment Timeline 777 
Annual 778 
 779 
FY 2012 Start Date 780 
January 1, 2012 781 
 782 
FY 2012 End Date 783 
December 31, 2012 784 
 785 
Task Completed by 786 
ED Office; Contractor 787 
 788 
Task Location 789 
ED Offices; Contractor Offices 790 
 791 
Task Description 792 
Continued land management will be needed by American Realty and Agriaffiliates for the transformation 793 
from cropland at Fox, Hostetler, Morse, and Binfield. FSA records need to be adjusted next year to move 794 
into grass. Broadfoot will still be a corn crop with marketing and input costs but will finish at the end of 795 
2012. Continued grassland leases for haying and grazing on all properties will happen next year and 796 
annually to the end of the first increment. At a point the combined costs will reduce to a maintenance 797 
level and with multiple year leases those numbers can become stable. 798 
 799 
Products 800 
 Meeting participation 801 
 Memoranda and reports 802 
 803 
Notes on Cost 804 
N/A 805 
 806 
Budget 807 
 808 


Program Task LP-6 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved  


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Land Plan Special 


Advisors 


$0 $0 $0 $50,000 $150,000 $120,000 


 809 
 810 
 811 
 812 
 813 
 814 
 815 
 816 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-6.  Land Plan Special Advisors 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 20 of 58 


 


 817 
 818 
 819 
Program First Increment Timeline 820 
Annual 821 
 822 
FY 2012 Start Date 823 
January 1, 2012 824 
 825 
FY 2012 End Date 826 
December 31, 2012 827 
 828 
Task Completed by 829 
ED Office; Contractors (TBD) 830 
 831 
Task Location 832 
All Available PRRIF properties  833 
 834 
Task Description 835 
This program will need to plan for additional costs as the first year ends. If successful it will have 836 
additional land in upcoming years and we need to prepare for increases in costs from the provider 837 
Nebraska Game and Parks Commission.  838 
 839 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 840 
N/A 841 
 842 
Products 843 
Opportunities for the general public to use Program lands for outdoor recreation and access under 844 
acceptable guidelines without interfering with Program Goals and primary species needs.  845 
 846 
Notes on Cost 847 
N/A 848 
 849 
Budget 850 
 851 


Program Task LP-7 


 2007 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Public Access 


Management 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 


 852 
 853 
 854 
 855 
 856 
 857 
 858 
 859 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-7.  Public Access Management 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 21 of 58 


 


 860 
 861 
 862 
Program First Increment Timeline 863 
Annual 864 
 865 
FY 2012 Start Date 866 
January 1, 2012 867 
 868 
FY 2012 End Date 869 
December 31, 2012 870 
 871 
Task Completed by 872 
ED Office; Contractor  873 
 874 
Task Location 875 
ED Offices; Contractor Offices; North Platte River and Platte River between North Platte and Chapman 876 
 877 
Task Description 878 
The objective of the Active Channel Capacity Improvements task is to increase and maintain the active 879 
river channel capacity.  Channel capacity improvements will assist the Program in managing water for the 880 
Short Duration High Flow tests made under the Adaptive Management Plan and in delivery of Program 881 
water to meet shortage reduction to target flow goals under the Water Plan. There are two sub-tasks:  882 
 WP-1(a) continues efforts toward increasing channel capacity upstream of the Central Nebraska 883 


Public Power and Irrigation District (CNPPID) diversion dam to at least 3,000 cfs. Additional 884 
technical and/or contracting services will be engaged to update the assessment of ongoing channel 885 
issues, recommendations for further efforts, and implementing recommendations. May also include 886 
cost-share efforts to collaborate with the National Weather Service to improve probabilistic weather 887 
forecasting methods, in preparation for Short Duration High Flow reservoir releases.  888 


 WP-1(b) is a cost share with Platte Valley and West Central Weed Management Areas to clear 889 
biomass from the river channel between Kingsley Dam and the CNPPID diversion dam and between 890 
Elm Creek and Chapman.  891 


 892 
Products 893 
 Cleared channel. 894 
 Model analyses performed by the ED Office and/or consultant for PRRIP purposes and summary 895 


report/briefing documents. 896 
 Cost estimates for 2013 and 2014 maintenance and additional clearing efforts to complete all channel 897 


sections between Kingsley Dam and Chapman.  898 
 899 
Notes on Cost 900 
Costs for WP-1(b), Active Channel Capacity Maintenance Platte River for the Platte River between the 901 
CNPPID Diversion Dam and Chapman, are based on a cost-share program with the Platte Valley and 902 
West Central Weed Management Areas. The Program funds will provide matching funds for this effort on 903 
a one-for-one match basis.  904 
 905 


906 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-1 (a-b).  Active Channel Capacity Improvements 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 22 of 58 


 


Budget 907 
 908 


Program Task WP-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved  


2010 


Approved 


 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


WP-1(a): N Platte 


Channel Above 


CNPPID 


Diversion Dam 


$241,000 $40,000 $80,000 $50,000 $250,000 $100,000 


WP-1(b): North 


Platte and Platte 


River Biomass 


Clearing
 a
 


$0 $0 $0 $400,000
 


$200,000 $200,000 


a 
Matching funds in a cost-share program with Platte Valley and West Central Weed Management Areas 909 


 910 
 911 
 912 
 913 
 914 
 915 
 916 
 917 
 918 
 919 
 920 
 921 
 922 
 923 
 924 
 925 
 926 
 927 
 928 
 929 
 930 
 931 
 932 
 933 
 934 
 935 
 936 
 937 
 938 
 939 
 940 
 941 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 23 of 58 


 


 942 
 943 


 944 
Program First Increment Timeline 945 
Annual 946 
 947 
FY 2012 Start Date 948 
January 1, 2012 949 
 950 
FY 2012 End Date 951 
December 31, 2012 952 
 953 
Task Completed by 954 
ED Office; Contractor 955 
 956 
Task Location 957 
ED Offices; Contractor Offices; Nebraska, Colorado, Wyoming 958 
 959 
Task Description 960 
Advancing projects from the 2009 Water Action Plan Update through feasibility into full implementation, 961 
including design construction. The ED Office will work with the Water Advisory Committee and 962 
associated Work Groups to evaluate potential yield, permitting requirements, and costs associated with 963 
various projects. Potential benefits of joint project operations will also be considered (e.g. ground water 964 
recharge projects may assist in mitigating impacts of ground water management activities). Following is a 965 
brief description of the anticipated sub-tasks:  966 


 WP-4(a) J2 Reregulating Reservoir – Land acquisition, final geotechnical work, final design, and 967 
construction of the J-2 Reregulating Reservoir.  Reservoir design initiated in 2012. 968 


 WP-4(b) Nebraska Ground Water Recharge – Continue feasibility analysis of ground water recharge 969 
projects in the central Platte River.  Budget for the Phelps County Canal pilot-scale ground water 970 
recharge test commenced in fall 2011,continuing through spring 2012, is previously approved under 971 
the 2011 budget.  Anticipated 2012 activities include water permitting, minor canal-related 972 
infrastructure improvements, installation of monitoring equipment, and operation and maintenance 973 
associated with canal recharge.   974 


 WP-4(d) Pathfinder Municipal Account – Up-front lump sum payment for 38,400 acre-feet released 975 
from Pathfinder Reservoir over 8 years ($51/acre-foot for 4,800 acre-feet per year). 976 


 WP-4(f) Nebraska Water Leasing – Working with Nebraska Public Power District, Central Platte 977 
Natural Resources District, and private landowners to evaluate potential purchase/leasing 978 
opportunities under the Dawson County Canal, related to leasing surface water flows with direct 979 
returns during the irrigation season; potential for project expansion to include winter ground water 980 
recharge. Also working with Central Platte Natural Resources District to evaluate water leasing and 981 
ground water recharge opportunities under the Orchard-Alfalfa, 30-Mile, and Cozad Canals. 982 
Economists from private practice, University of Nebraska at Lincoln, Colorado State University, and 983 
potentially University of Wyoming may be engage and to identify ways to value water and establish a 984 
water leasing market. Efforts will be coordinated with similar efforts underway by Nebraska 985 
Department of Natural Resources and the Natural Resource Districts. The ED Office will also explore 986 
lease agreements with willing landowners and power/irrigation districts. 987 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-4 (a-h).  Water Action Plan 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 24 of 58 


 


 WP-4(h) Nebraska Ground Water Management – Feasibility studies investigating opportunities for 988 
supply development through ground water management actions including conjunctive use of surface 989 
and ground water resources focused primarily downstream of Lake McConaughy. 990 


 991 
Products 992 
 Landowner and project sponsorship agreements. 993 
 Reservoir and canal improvement design-related documents. 994 
 Monitoring plans. 995 
 Contract with CNPPID and/or other entities for long-term recharge.   996 
 Water supply-related permits.   997 
 Water rights evaluations. 998 
 Water rights permits/proof of ownership  999 
 Cost estimates for 2013 and long-term operations and maintenance.   1000 
 1001 
Notes on Cost 1002 
Specific expenditures will require authorization of Finance Committee. Cost estimates are based on pre-1003 
feasibility study information, and will be updated based on feasibility studies currently being completed.  1004 
Estimates do not account for any project sponsor contributions. 1005 
 1006 
Budget 1007 
 1008 


Program Task WP-4 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


WP-4(a): 
Reregulating 


Reservoir 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $4,500,000 $9,000,000 


WP-4(b): 
Nebraska Ground 


Water Recharge 


$0 $0 $0 $0
 


$600,000 $200,000 


WP-4(d): 
Pathfinder 


Municipal 


Account 


$0 $0 $0 $0
 


$0 $2,000,000 


WP-4(d): NE 


Water Leasing 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,000 


WP-4(f): NE 


Ground Water 


Management 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 


WP-4 Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,100,000 $11,800,000 


 1009 


 1010 
 1011 
 1012 
 1013 
 1014 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 25 of 58 


 


 1015 
 1016 


 1017 
Program First Increment Timeline 1018 
Annual 1019 
 1020 
FY 2012 Start Date 1021 
January 1, 2012 1022 
 1023 
FY 2012 End Date 1024 
December 31, 2012 1025 
 1026 
Task Completed by 1027 
ED Office; Contractor 1028 
 1029 
Task Location 1030 
ED Offices; Contractor Offices 1031 
 1032 
Task Description 1033 
The COHYST Tool, as it is being developed, will provide an integrated surface water, ground water, and 1034 
watershed model for the Platte River between Lake McConaughy and Duncan, Nebraska. It is anticipated 1035 
to be a valuable tool for planning efforts under the PRRIP Water Plan. The COHYST Tool is being 1036 
funded by several PRRIP participants, and in 2009 the PRRIP received authorization from these 1037 
participants to use the tool for PRRIP purposes. Under this agreement, model enhancements or analyses 1038 
specifically for PRRIP purposes, as well as any ED Office staff training or software needed, must be 1039 
provided directly by PRRIP funds. 1040 
 1041 
Further, the question of a need for a comprehensive operational tool for evaluation of the integrated 1042 
effects of multiple Water Action Plan projects remains unresolved. The OPSTUDY model was used for 1043 
the EIS, but may not be a viable tool for use now. Assessing the viability of OPSTUDY and other models 1044 
such as STELLA, RiverWare, and others may require the assistance of a contractor skilled in water 1045 
resource systems operations and the standardized modeling tools available. 1046 
 1047 
Products 1048 
 ED Office training and software needed to run the model(s). 1049 
 Model analyses performed by the ED Office and/or consultant for PRRIP purposes. 1050 
 Briefing documents or reports with model evaluations and recommendations. 1051 
 1052 
Notes on Cost 1053 
Specific expenditures of budget will be subject to Finance Committee approval. 1054 
 1055 
Budget 1056 
 1057 


Program Task WP-5 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009  


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Management Tool $0 $0 $0 $100,000 $200,000 $50,000 


 1058 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-5.  Management Tool 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 26 of 58 


 


 1059 
 1060 
 1061 
Program First Increment Timeline 1062 
Annual 1063 
 1064 
FY 2012 Start Date 1065 
January 1, 2012 1066 
 1067 
FY 2012 End Date 1068 
December 31, 2012 1069 
 1070 
Task Completed by 1071 
ED Office; Contractor 1072 
 1073 
Task Location 1074 
ED Offices; Contractor Offices 1075 
 1076 
Task Description 1077 
The ED Office may rely on special advisors to assist in Water Plan-related issues beyond staff expertise 1078 
or to assist with short-term schedule challenges. These areas may include, but not be limited to: 1079 
economics, water infrastructure, structural, and hydro-geology/ground water. Anticipated Special 1080 
Advisors include: 1081 
         Estimated Range of  1082 
Area of Expertise    Name   Expenditures                             1083 
Economics and Water Markets   George Oamek  $20,000-$30,000 1084 
Hydrogeology and GW Recharge  Bill Hahn  $50,000-$75,000 1085 
Civil Infrastructure    Tara Schutter  $30,000-$75,000 1086 
Water Projects Permitting    TBD   $20,000-$30,000 1087 
TOTAL        Not to Exceed $150,000 1088 
 1089 
Products 1090 
 Meeting participation 1091 
 Memorandums and reports 1092 
 1093 
Notes on Cost 1094 
N/A 1095 
 1096 
Budget 1097 
 1098 


Program Task WP-8 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved  


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Water Plan 


Special Advisors 


$0 $0 $0 $150,000 $200,000 $150,000 


 1099 
 1100 
 1101 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-8.  Water Plan Special Advisors 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 27 of 58 


 


 1102 
 1103 
 1104 
Program First Increment Timeline 1105 
Annual 1106 
 1107 
FY 2011 Start Date 1108 
January 1, 2012 1109 
 1110 
FY 2011 End Date 1111 
December 31, 2012 1112 
 1113 
Task Completed by 1114 
ED Office; Contractor 1115 
 1116 
Task Location 1117 
ED Offices; Contractor Offices 1118 
 1119 
Task Description 1120 
The purpose of this task is to establish reserved but readily accessible funds for water resources studies 1121 
and investigations, if necessary, to meet the Water Plan objectives. These investigations would be related 1122 
to, but not necessarily limited to, specific Water Action Plan alternatives, such as investigations to better 1123 
define fundamental hydrologic and water balance components such as evapotranspiration of non-crop 1124 
areas, channel loss/bank storage, and surface/ground water interactions. 1125 
 1126 
Products 1127 
Reports and study results 1128 
 1129 
Notes on Cost 1130 
Specific expenditures would require approval from the Finance Committee. 1131 
 1132 
Budget 1133 
 1134 


Program Task WP-9 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009  


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Misc. Water 


Studies 


$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $100,000 $50,000 


 1135 
 1136 
 1137 
 1138 
 1139 
 1140 
 1141 
 1142 
 1143 
 1144 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-9.  Miscellaneous Water Resources Studies 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 28 of 58 


 


 1145 
 1146 
 1147 
Program First Increment Timeline 1148 
FY2009-FY2012 1149 
 1150 
FY 2012 Start Date 1151 
January 1, 2012 1152 
 1153 
FY 2012 End Date 1154 
December 31, 2012 1155 
 1156 
Task Completed by 1157 
ED Office; AMWG; TAC; Contractor (Tetra Tech) 1158 
 1159 
Task Location 1160 
ED Office (Kearney, NE; Lincoln, NE; Denver, CO); various meeting locations 1161 
 1162 
Task Description 1163 
New money for existing model Consultant (Tetra Tech and HDR) to complete model simulations per 1164 
EDO direction, and to provide technical assistance to EDO with existing models.  Potential model runs 1165 
include SDHF planning with the unsteady hydraulic model, hydraulic characterization with the steady 1166 
state model for habitat assessment (e.g., water surface elevation estimation at various flow rates to be 1167 
used for estimating channel characteristics pertinent to target species’ minimum habitat criteria), and 1168 
sediment augmentation scenarios with sediment transport model). 1169 
 1170 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1171 
Fundamental to generating information related to all priority hypotheses and related big questions.  1172 
 1173 
Products 1174 
Technical memoranda documenting modeling results.  Model output files such as water surface digital 1175 
elevation models and digital terrain models to be used by the EDO to estimate habitat characteristics 1176 
related to target species’ minimum habitat criteria.  Technical assistance to EDO for the operation of 1177 
existing models (e.g., phone calls and model work sessions). 1178 
 1179 
Notes on Cost 1180 
Extension of existing contract with HDR/Tetra Tech 1181 
 1182 
Budget 1183 
 1184 


Program Task PD-12 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Model Application $0 $0 $360,000 $400,000 $150,000 $20,000 


 1185 
 1186 
 1187 
 1188 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-12.  Model Application 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 29 of 58 


 


 1189 


 1190 


Program First Increment Timeline 1191 
FY2009-FY2013 1192 
 1193 
FY 2012 Start Date 1194 
January 1, 2012 1195 
 1196 
FY 2012 End Date 1197 
December 31, 2012 1198 
 1199 
Task Completed by 1200 
ED Office; AMWG; TAC; contractor (The Flatwater Group) 1201 
 1202 
Task Location 1203 
ED Office (Kearney, NE and Lincoln, NE); Central Platte River, NE 1204 
 1205 
Task Description 1206 
Implementation of Year 2 of Pilot-Scale Management Action (sediment augmentation at Plum Creek 1207 
Complex and Cottonwood Ranch); includes management of contractor 1208 
 1209 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1210 
Fundamental to priority hypotheses related to sediment deficit and implementation of Flow-Sediment-1211 
Mechanical management strategy identified in AMP. 1212 
 1213 
Products 1214 
Implementation of Year 2 of Pilot-Scale Management Action; data analysis and final report (by mid-1215 
2013) of two-year implementation cycle. 1216 
 1217 
Notes on Cost 1218 
Year 1 implementation costs (final design, permits, bid package, first year of implementation) covered by 1219 
Unliquidated Obligations from FY 2011; FY 2012 funding will be for implementation in 2012 and final 1220 
data analysis and reporting, which will conclude by mid-2013; FY 2012 funding will require fourth and 1221 
final amendment to existing sediment augmentation contract; FY 2012 costs include estimated $215,888 1222 
for Flatwater Team (implementation management, monitoring, data analysis, reporting) and estimated 1223 
$325,000 for actually placing sand in river ($200,000 for sand pumping at Plum Creek Complex and 1224 
$125,000 for mechanical placement at Cottonwood Ranch).  See Pilot-Scale Management Action 1225 
Technical Memo for more details. 1226 
 1227 
Budget 1228 
 1229 


Program Task PD-13 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Sed. Aug. Feas., 


Analysis, Design, Perm. 


$0 $0 $400,000 $200,000 $350,000 $540,888 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-13.  Sediment Augmentation Feasibility 


Analysis, Design, and Permitting 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 30 of 58 


 


 1230 
 1231 
 1232 
Program First Increment Timeline 1233 
FY2011-FY2013 1234 
 1235 
FY 2012 Start Date 1236 
January 1, 2012 1237 
 1238 
FY 2012 End Date 1239 
December 31, 2013 1240 
 1241 
Task Completed by 1242 
ED Office; NPPD; contractor 1243 
 1244 
Task Location 1245 
ED Office (Kearney, NE; Lincoln, NE; Denver, CO); Cottonwood Ranch 1246 
 1247 
Task Description 1248 
Two part scope of work: 1) Design, permitting and construction of two small channel plugs to close 1249 
secondary channels that were eroded open during 2011 high flow event. 2) Partial implementation design 1250 
for flow consolidation including evaluation of potential outcomes/performance (using Sed Aug 2-D 1251 
model) and development of preliminary design plans/drawings.     1252 
 1253 
If the GC decides to proceed with implementation, permit applications would be submitted and 1254 
implementation design would be completed in spring of 2013 with construction in fall/winter of 2013. 1255 
 1256 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1257 
Flow consolidation is considered a primary action in the AMP as part of the FSM management strategy. 1258 
 1259 
Products 1260 
1) Design drawings and construction specifications, construction permits, and construction of channel 1261 
plugs. 2) Partial implementation design document including management option review, analysis of 1262 
potential outcomes, and civil design sections.  1263 
 1264 
Notes on Cost 1265 
Budget consists of $200,000 for engineering consulting services (Phase 1 approximately $30,000; Phase 2 1266 
approximately $170,000) and $30,000 for construction of channel plugs.  See Final CWR Flow 1267 
Consolidation Conceptual Design Report for more details. 1268 
 1269 
Budget 1270 
 1271 


Program Task PD-19 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Flow Consolidation 


Conceptual Design 


$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 $230,000 


 1272 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-19.  Flow Consolidation Conceptual Design 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 31 of 58 


 


 1273 
 1274 
 1275 
Program First Increment Timeline 1276 
FY2011 – FY2012 1277 
 1278 
FY 2012 Start Date 1279 
March 1, 2012 1280 
 1281 
FY 2012 End Date 1282 
December 1, 2012 1283 
 1284 
Task Completed by 1285 
ED Office, Contractor 1286 
 1287 
Task Location 1288 
Program Tract 2009001 located in the Kearney – Minden bridge segment. 1289 
 1290 
Task Description 1291 
Construction of conversion of Tract 2009001 to a wet meadow / grassland complex for whooping cranes 1292 
and other species of concern. Construction will include excavation of approximately 200,000 cubic yards 1293 
of earth to restore linear swale features.  Task includes groundwater monitoring on site. 1294 
 1295 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1296 
Testing of priority hypotheses related to wet meadows. 1297 
 1298 
Products 1299 
Construction drawings and specifications 1300 
 1301 
Notes on Cost 1302 
N/A 1303 
 1304 
Budget 1305 
 1306 


Program Task PD-20 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Wet Meadow 


Restoration 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $324,000 


 1307 
 1308 
 1309 
 1310 
 1311 
 1312 
 1313 
 1314 
 1315 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-20.  Wet Meadow Restoration on Tract 2009001 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 32 of 58 


 


 1316 
 1317 
 1318 
Program First Increment Timeline 1319 
Annual 1320 
 1321 
FY 2012 Start Date 1322 
January 1, 2012 1323 
 1324 
FY 2012 End Date 1325 
December 31, 2012 1326 
 1327 
Task Completed by 1328 
ED Office; contractors 1329 
 1330 
Task Location 1331 
Plum Creek Complex, Cottonwood Ranch Complex; Elm Creek Complex; Fort Kearny Complex; and 1332 
Shoemaker Island Complex  1333 
 1334 
Task Description 1335 
Plum Creek = $15,900, CWR = $193,290, Elm Creek = $72,080, Ft. Kearny=$80,770, Shoemaker Island 1336 
= $177,090,  $100,000 new properties channel widening, island building/shaping, vegetation 1337 
management, prescribed fire, other AMP activities.  Specific activities include: 1338 
 1339 
Plum Creek Complex 1340 


 Pre-emergent herbicide application on Tract 2009003 OCSW habitat 1341 
 In-channel vegetation control as needed to maintain unobstructed view widths 1342 
 Prescribed fire to manage woody vegetation encroachment in grassland restoration areas and 1343 


protect unobstructed view width 1344 
 1345 
Cottonwood Ranch Complex 1346 


 Forest clearing and seeding on approximately 80 acres (Tracts 2008002, 2009006) to improve 1347 
unobstructed view widths and remove predator perches 1348 


 Pre-emergent herbicide application on Tract 2008002 OCSW habitat 1349 
 Prescribed fire to maintain vegetation structure for whooping crane habitat 1350 
 Electrical service and irrigation pump replacement on Tract 2010001 SW ¼ to protect irrigation 1351 


right and provide supplemental water for palustrine wetlands 1352 
 1353 
Elm Creek Complex 1354 


 In-channel nesting island construction below the diversion 1355 
 In-channel cross disking and overbank mowing to maintain unobstructed view widths 1356 
 Prescribed fire to manage woody vegetation encroachment in grassland restoration areas and 1357 


protect unobstructed view width 1358 
 Construction of crane viewing blind 1359 


 1360 
  1361 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-2.  FSM/MCM Actions at Habitat Complexes 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 33 of 58 


 


Fort Kearny Complex 1362 
 Pre-emergent herbicide application on Tract 2009008 and 2010002 OCSW habitat 1363 
 Forest clearing on Tract 2001002 to improve unobstructed view widths 1364 
 NPPD transmission line marking with bird flight diverters 1365 
 Permanent woven wire predator fence on OCSW nesting peninsulas on Tract 2009008 1366 
 Prescribed burn to manage woody vegetation in grassland areas and protect unobstructed view 1367 


width 1368 
 1369 
Shoemaker Island Complex 1370 


 Construction for habitat selection experiments and habitat improvements including tree and 1371 
vegetation clearing and in-channel nesting island construction 1372 


 Pre-emergent herbicide application on OCSW habitat 1373 
Prescribed burns to produce suitable vegetation structure for whooping crane use 1374 
 1375 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1376 
Habitat complexes for implementation of AMP actions and testing of priority hypotheses 1377 
 1378 
Products 1379 
Tern/plover nesting islands, minimum channel widths, and minimum unobstructed widths at habitat 1380 
complexes for evaluation of target species use 1381 
 1382 
Notes on Cost 1383 
Bid packages will be developed for FC approval once permits process is underway or completed; work 1384 
will be completed in late summer/fall/winter 2012.  See complex work plans for more details. 1385 
 1386 
Budget 1387 
 1388 


Program Task LP-2 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


FSM/MCM Actions at 


Habitat Complexes 


$0 $1,400,000 $200,000 $1,270,000 $483,000 $639,130 


 1389 
 1390 
 1391 
 1392 
 1393 
 1394 
 1395 
 1396 
 1397 
 1398 
 1399 
 1400 
 1401 
 1402 
 1403 
 1404 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 34 of 58 


 


 1405 
 1406 
 1407 
Program First Increment Timeline 1408 
Annual 1409 
 1410 
FY 2012 Start Date 1411 
January 1, 2012 1412 
 1413 
FY 2012 End Date 1414 
December 31, 2012 1415 
 1416 
Task Completed by 1417 
ED Office; contractor (HDR) 1418 
 1419 
Task Location 1420 
ED Office (Kearney, NE and Lincoln, NE) 1421 
 1422 
Task Description 1423 
Contract services from HDR (extension of existing permit work) to secure site-specific Individual Permits 1424 
or Regional General Permit for AMP management actions (island building, vegetation clearing, channel 1425 
widening). 1426 
 1427 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1428 
Necessary to ensure implementation AMP management actions 1429 
 1430 
Products 1431 
Permit(s) 1432 
 1433 
Notes on Cost 1434 
N/A 1435 
 1436 
Budget 1437 
 1438 


Program Task PD-15 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


AMP Permits $0 $0 $10,000 $50,000 $200,000 $150,000 


 1439 
 1440 
 1441 
 1442 
 1443 
 1444 
 1445 
 1446 
 1447 
 1448 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-15.  AMP Permits 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 35 of 58 


 


 1449 
 1450 
 1451 
Program First Increment Timeline 1452 
Annual 1453 
 1454 
FY 2012 Start Date 1455 
January 1, 2012 1456 
 1457 
FY 2012 End Date 1458 
December 31, 2012 1459 
 1460 
Task Completed by 1461 
ED Office 1462 
 1463 
Task Location 1464 
Central Platte River 1465 
 1466 
Task Description 1467 
Program buy-back of equipment.  Headwaters Corporation will own equipment and will charge the 1468 
Program a use rate for Program-related activities. 1469 
 1470 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1471 
Specific equipment important as management and monitoring tools related to AMP implementation. 1472 
 1473 
Products 1474 
Program equipment use and maintenance. 1475 
 1476 
Notes on Cost 1477 
N/A 1478 
 1479 
Budget 1480 
 1481 


Program Task PD-18 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


AMP-Related 


Equipment 


$0 $0 $140,000 $50,000 $55,000 $66,215 


 1482 
 1483 
 1484 
 1485 
 1486 
 1487 
 1488 
 1489 
 1490 
 1491 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-18.  AMP-Related Equipment 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 36 of 58 


 


 1492 
 1493 
 1494 
Program First Increment Timeline 1495 
Annual 1496 
 1497 
FY 2012 Start Date 1498 
January 1, 2012 1499 
 1500 
FY 2012 End Date 1501 
December 31, 2012 1502 
 1503 
Task Completed by 1504 
Contractor (Kucera International, Inc.) 1505 
 1506 
Task Location 1507 
Central Platte River, NE (Program associated habitats in central Platte) 1508 
 1509 
Task Description 1510 
Acquire annual LiDAR data and aerial photography 1511 
 1512 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1513 
Critical topographical data for analysis of river response to Program actions.  Aerial photography for 1514 
analysis of vegetation, river morphology, target species habitat availability. 1515 
 1516 
Products 1517 
Processed LiDAR point data, bare earth digital elevation model including special in-channel processing 1518 
using breaklines (hydro-flattening), 2-foot resolution 4-band (CIR and true-color) aerial photography 1519 
from May/June, 6-inch resolution CIR aerial photography flown simultaneously with LiDAR in 1520 
November/December 1521 
 1522 
Notes on Cost 1523 
N/A 1524 
 1525 
Budget 1526 
 1527 


Program Task G-1 & G-2 (combined) 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


LiDAR $0 $260,000 $0 $0 $75,000 
$118,100 


Aerial Photography $10,000 $10,000 $40,000 $21,000 $25,000 


 1528 
 1529 
 1530 
 1531 
 1532 
 1533 
 1534 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  G-1 & G-2 (combined).  LiDAR & Aerial Photography 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 37 of 58 


 


 1535 
 1536 
 1537 
 1538 
Program First Increment Timeline 1539 
Annual 1540 
 1541 
FY 2012 Start Date 1542 
January 1, 2012 1543 
 1544 
FY 2012 End Date 1545 
December 31, 2012 1546 
 1547 
Task Completed by 1548 
Contractor 1549 
 1550 
Task Location 1551 
Central Platte River 1552 
 1553 
Task Description 1554 
Implementation of Program geomorphology/in-channel vegetation monitoring protocol; field work, data 1555 
analysis (analysis of collected data according to performance measures of importance for addressing Big 1556 
Questions and Tier 1 hypotheses), and reporting. 1557 
 1558 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1559 
Collected data critical to evaluating numerous AMP priority hypotheses related to river process and 1560 
habitat creation/maintenance 1561 
 1562 
Products 1563 
Protocol data – transect surveys, longitudinal profile, vegetation surveys, etc.; data analysis and reporting. 1564 
 1565 
Notes on Cost 1566 
New contractor to be selected through RFP process in late 2011/early 2012; FY 2012 costs estimated 1567 
based on 2009-2011 monitoring costs. 1568 
 1569 
Budget 1570 
 1571 


Program Task G-5 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Geomorphology/In-


Channel Vegetation 


Monitoring 


$0 $95,000 $395,000 $300,000 $447,500 $450,000 


 1572 
 1573 
 1574 
 1575 
 1576 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  G-5.  Geomorphology/In-Channel Vegetation 


Monitoring 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 38 of 58 


 


 1577 
 1578 
 1579 
Program First Increment Timeline 1580 
Annual 1581 
 1582 
FY 2012 Start Date 1583 
January 1, 2012 1584 
 1585 
FY 2012 End Date 1586 
December 31, 2012 1587 
 1588 
Task Completed by 1589 
ED Office; contractor 1590 
 1591 
Task Location 1592 
Central Platte River 1593 
 1594 
Task Description 1595 
Gage maintenance and research gages; real-time Program gage data on Program web site. 1596 
  1597 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1598 
Stream gages provide data to test priority hypotheses, including all key Tern/Plover, Whooping Crane, 1599 
Flow, Sediment, and Mechanical hypotheses. 1600 
 1601 
Products 1602 
Gage maintenance, new gages, and data. 1603 
 1604 
Notes on Cost 1605 
Roughly $15,000 for two new gages for Nebraska DNR (maintenance and support fee), Verizon bills to 1606 
operate gages, USGS fee for gage at Cottonwood Ranch. 1607 
 1608 
Budget 1609 
 1610 


Program Task H-2 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Program Stream 


Gages 


$0 $29,500 $30,000 $50,000 $50,000 $40,000 


 1611 
 1612 
 1613 
 1614 
 1615 
 1616 
 1617 
 1618 
 1619 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  H-2.  Program Water Gages 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 39 of 58 


 


 1620 
 1621 
 1622 
 1623 
Program First Increment Timeline 1624 
Annual 1625 
 1626 
FY 2012 Start Date 1627 
January 1, 2012 1628 
 1629 
FY 2012 End Date 1630 
December 31, 2012 1631 
 1632 
Task Completed by 1633 
ED Office; contractors 1634 
 1635 
Task Location 1636 
Central Platte River 1637 
 1638 
Task Description 1639 
1) Detailed report by independent expert on linkages between bird cognition (primarily terns and 1640 


plovers) and habitat selection. 1641 
2) Monitoring/research for potential impacts on channel, wet meadows, and other habitat related to 1642 


planned 2012 EA releases (no SDHF in 2012);  The Service also identifies a need to: 1) assess the 1643 
groundwater/streamflow interaction on all Program sites containing wet meadows or those targeted 1644 
for future wet meadow creation/restoration including the Fox Tract, and 2) develop wet meadow 1645 
vegetation monitoring protocol.  Recent meetings at the LAC and TAC identified the planned 1646 
development or inclusion of wet meadow habitats for the PRRIP on the Binfield, Cottonwood Ranch, 1647 
Fox, McCormick, and Stall properties.  As indicated in the wet meadow information review, multiple 1648 
studies have linked Platte River stage to groundwater levels. The Program EDO identified the 1649 
willingness to develop a groundwater/surface water assessment for Fox tract.  The Service encourages 1650 
the Program to initiate a study that could be used to develop tools to monitor and evaluate the 1651 
groundwater/surface water interaction for all current and future Program properties containing wet 1652 
meadows.  This may require additional budget allocations.  Additionally, the October 12, 2011, LAC 1653 
land management plan development meeting identified potential impacts and/or benefits that could 1654 
occur to wet meadow habitat conditions as a result of management actions.  The need to assess initial 1655 
conditions and to evaluate changes in habitat over time could be accomplished by developing a wet 1656 
meadow vegetation monitoring program.  This would allow an adaptive management approach to 1657 
achieving target wet meadow conditions (i.e. assess change in vegetative community from 1658 
management action such as burning); include a process for assessing Platte River effects on wet 1659 
meadow hydrology for all Program lands with existing or proposed wet meadow habitats. This would 1660 
include a monitoring protocol that records groundwater levels at wet meadow sites, surface water 1661 
acres at wet meadow sites, and river stage over time; include development of a wet meadow 1662 
monitoring protocol. This could be combined with the groundwater monitoring study or a stand-alone 1663 
study.  The focus of this protocol would be to monitor changes in vegetation communities over time 1664 
on wet meadows.  This would provide the TAC a tool to evaluate how our management actions affect 1665 
habitat. 1666 


 1667 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-2.  Adaptive Management Plan Directed 


Research Projects 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 40 of 58 


 


Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1668 
1) Detailed report intended to consolidate current literature and thinking on the role of cognition in 1669 


selecting habitat; informative for Tier 1 tern and plover hypotheses, as well as helping to ensure that 1670 
management actions such as island building incorporate all potential parameters of importance. 1671 


2) TBD 1672 
 1673 
Products 1674 
1) Research results in the form of a detailed report. 1675 
2) Monitoring/research results (groundwater monitoring at Fox Tract and other locations, channel 1676 


changes relative to EA releases, etc.). 1677 
 1678 
Notes on Cost 1679 
1) Estimated costs include $30,000 for independent expert to conduct research and draft detailed report, 1680 


and $5,000 for possible assistance from Atkins to help identify the independent expert (similar to peer 1681 
review panel selection process). 1682 


2) Estimate for 2012 monitoring/research; TAC will hold a workshop in late 2011 and/or early 2012 to 1683 
discuss the questions intended to be addressed by the monitoring/research, the relationship to target 1684 
flow releases to FSM, and other related topics. 1685 


 1686 
Budget 1687 
 1688 


Program Task IMRP-2 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Adaptive 


Management Plan 


Directed Research 


Projects 


$0 $0 $700,000 $325,000 $450,000 $335,000 


 1689 
 1690 
 1691 
 1692 
 1693 
 1694 
 1695 
 1696 
 1697 
 1698 
 1699 
 1700 
 1701 
 1702 
 1703 
 1704 
 1705 
 1706 
 1707 
 1708 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 41 of 58 


 


 1709 
 1710 
 1711 
 1712 
Program First Increment Timeline 1713 
Annual 1714 
 1715 
FY 2012 Start Date 1716 
January 1, 2012 1717 
 1718 
FY 2012 End Date 1719 
December 31, 2012 1720 
 1721 
Task Completed by 1722 
ED Office; special advisors 1723 
 1724 
Task Location 1725 
ED Office (Kearney, NE and Lincoln, NE); various locations of advisors 1726 
 1727 
Task Description 1728 
Advisors on AMP-related specialty topics such as ecological statistics, geomorphology, and decision 1729 
analysis; review Program documents, attend workshops and meetings, assist with development of 1730 
experimental design, research/monitoring goals and objectives, and data analysis 1731 
 1732 
Area of Expertise   Name   Estimated Range of Expenditures 1733 
Geomorphology & Sed. Transport Brad Anderson & $60,000 1734 
        Chester Watson 1735 
Vegetation Scour & Lateral Erosion Andrew Simon & $40,000 1736 
        Natasha Bankhead 1737 
Ecological Statistics & Exper. Design Darcy Pickard  $40,000 1738 
TOTAL       Not to Exceed $140,000 1739 
 1740 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1741 
Special advisors fill important areas of expertise necessary to evaluate effects of Program management 1742 
actions and progress toward AMP management objectives 1743 
 1744 
Products 1745 
Review of Program documents and advice on specific actions related to AMP implementation 1746 
 1747 
Notes on Cost 1748 
 Brad Anderson and Chester Watson – Evaluation of effective discharge and changes in effective 1749 


discharge over time (detailed report); advice on canal operations and civil engineering design (as-1750 
needed advice) 1751 


 Andrew Simon and Natasha Bankhead – Vegetation scour and lateral erosion (as-needed advice; 1752 
possible basic analysis in detailed report on lateral erosion rates) 1753 


 Darcy Pickard – As-needed advice on experimental design and ecological statistics 1754 
 1755 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-3.  Adaptive Management Plan Special 


Advisors 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 42 of 58 


 


Budget 1756 
 1757 


Program Task IMRP-3 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Adaptive 


Management Plan 


Special Advisors 


$0 $0 $0 $150,000 $150,000 $140,000 


 1758 
 1759 
 1760 
 1761 


 1762 
 1763 
 1764 
 1765 
 1766 
 1767 
 1768 
 1769 
 1770 
 1771 
 1772 
 1773 
 1774 
 1775 
 1776 
 1777 
 1778 
 1779 
 1780 
 1781 
 1782 
 1783 
 1784 
 1785 
 1786 
 1787 
 1788 
 1789 
 1790 
 1791 
 1792 
 1793 
 1794 
 1795 
 1796 


 1797 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 43 of 58 


 


 1798 
 1799 
 1800 
 1801 


 1802 
Program First Increment Timeline 1803 
FY2011-FY2016 1804 
 1805 
FY 2012 Start Date 1806 
January 1, 2012 1807 
 1808 
FY 2012 End Date 1809 
December 31, 2012 1810 
 1811 
Task Completed by 1812 
ED Office; Contractors 1813 
 1814 
Task Location 1815 
Elm Creek Complex 1816 
 1817 
Task Description 1818 
Implementation of monitoring protocol (two event-based topographic and vegetation surveys during the 1819 
spring and end of summer 2012), and related data analysis for Elm Creek proof of concept ($135,000).  1820 
2D hydraulic and sediment transport model updates per annual topographic survey, design of 1821 
management experiments for Elm Creek Complex (e.g., selective sandbar leveling and vegetation 1822 
clearing), and completion of model simulations for management experiments ($68,000).   1823 
 1824 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1825 
Integral to learning about physical process priority hypotheses and related big questions.  Supporting 1826 
information for flow-vegetation-sediment relationships and what FSM management strategy will do on 1827 
the central Platte River. 1828 
 1829 
Products 1830 
Monitoring and modeling results documented in related reports (model construction technical 1831 
memorandum, model application memorandum, management experiment statistical design memorandum, 1832 
and annual topographic and vegetation monitoring report).  Consultant presentations and participation in 1 1833 
TAC meeting and the spring 2012 Adaptive Management Reporting Session. 1834 
 1835 
Notes on Cost 1836 
Cost estimates prepared by existing contractor (Tetra Tech), and reviewed by EDO.  Cost also includes 1837 
purchase and replacement costs for a pressure transducer to monitor stage-discharge relationship in the 1838 
Elm Creek reach downstream of the Kearney Canal Diversion.  For more details, seem Elm Creek 1839 
Complex “Proof of Concept” Design Document. 1840 
 1841 
 1842 
 1843 
 1844 
 1845 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-4.  FSM “Proof of Concept” Activities @ Elm 


Creek Complex 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 44 of 58 


 


Budget 1846 
 1847 


Program Task IMRP-4 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


FSM “Proof of 


Concept” 


Activities @ Elm 


Creek Complex 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $250,000 $203,185 


 1848 
 1849 
 1850 
 1851 
 1852 
 1853 
 1854 
 1855 
 1856 
 1857 
 1858 
 1859 
 1860 
 1861 
 1862 
 1863 
 1864 
 1865 
 1866 
 1867 
 1868 
 1869 
 1870 
 1871 
 1872 
 1873 
 1874 
 1875 
 1876 
 1877 
 1878 
 1879 
 1880 
 1881 
 1882 
 1883 
 1884 
 1885 
 1886 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 45 of 58 


 


 1887 
 1888 
 1889 
 1890 


Program First Increment Timeline 1891 
FY2012-FY2016 1892 
 1893 
FY 2012 Start Date 1894 
January 1, 2012 1895 
 1896 
FY 2012 End Date 1897 
December 31, 2012 1898 
 1899 
Task Completed by 1900 
ED Office; Contractors 1901 
 1902 
Task Location 1903 
Shoemaker Island Complex 1904 
 1905 
Task Description 1906 
Implementation of Elm Creek FSM monitoring protocol at Shoemaker Island Complex; application of 2-1907 
D model.   1908 
 1909 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1910 
Integral to learning about physical process priority hypotheses and related big questions.  Supporting 1911 
information for flow-vegetation-sediment relationships and what FSM management strategy will do on 1912 
the central Platte River. 1913 
 1914 
Products 1915 
Monitoring and modeling results; contractor presentations and participation in one TAC meeting and the 1916 
spring 2012 Adaptive Management Reporting Session. 1917 
 1918 
Notes on Cost 1919 
Cost estimate based on initial estimate for similar work at Elm Creek Complex; contractor for Shoemaker 1920 
Island Complex to be selected through RFP process in early 2012; $100,000 for implementation 1921 
monitoring protocol and $150,000 for application of 2-D model at Shoemaker Island Complex 1922 
 1923 
Budget 1924 
 1925 


Program Task IMRP-5 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


FSM “Proof of 


Concept” 


Activities @ 


Shoemaker Island 


Complex 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250,000 


 1926 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-5.  FSM “Proof of Concept” Activities @ 


Shoemaker Island Complex 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 46 of 58 


 


 1927 
 1928 
 1929 


Program First Increment Timeline 1930 
Annual 1931 
 1932 
FY 2012 Start Date 1933 
January 1, 2012 1934 
 1935 
FY 2012 End Date 1936 
December 31, 2012 1937 
 1938 
Task Completed by 1939 
ED Office; Contractor (RBJV) 1940 
 1941 
Task Location 1942 
Central Platte River, NE 1943 
 1944 
Task Description 1945 
LTPP Habitat Availability Analysis (2007 and 2012; 2008-2011 under existing contract) 1946 


Tasks: Classify imagery by cover type (bare sand, vegetation, and water); develop and overlay HEC-RAS 1947 
model on the classified imagery to identify suitable nesting habitat; create a model that includes all 1948 
Program minimum habitat criteria buffers (1.5’ above 1,200cfs, 200’ to trees, 50’ water buffer, 1.5 1949 
acres/0.25 mile reach of river, etc.) to automate the process; create a geodatabase to house results of all 1950 
annual habitat availability analyses; create a methods document and report outlining methods used, 1951 
assumptions, and results; and assist EDO with preparing a presentation for the AMP Reporting Session. 1952 


Deliverables: Summary report presenting acres of on- and off-channel bare-sand habitat and Program 1953 
defined ‘suitable’ nesting habitat by year (2008-2011); geodatabase of available on- and off-channel 1954 
habitat by year; detailed methods document covering procedures and assumptions; and a presentation for 1955 
the AMP Reporting Session. 1956 


WC Habitat Availability Analysis (2007-2012) 1957 


Similar to above with a much more detailed classification of imagery and a geodatabase that includes the 1958 
amount and location of all the various landcover classes suitable for WC use. 1959 


Tasks: Classify imagery by cover type (sandbar, river, wet meadow, lacustrine wetland, corn, soybean, 1960 
alfalfa, rangeland, wheat, etc.); develop and overlay HEC-RAS model on classified imagery to identify 1961 
suitable roosting habitat (water 2-12” deep); create a model that includes all Program minimum habitat 1962 
criteria buffers (distance to trees and disturbance, channel width, unobstructed view widths, etc.) to 1963 
automate the process; create a geodatabase to house results of all annual habitat availability analyses; 1964 
create a methods document and report outlining methods used, assumptions, and results; and assist EDO 1965 
with preparing a presentation for the AMP Reporting Session. 1966 


Deliverables: Summary report presenting acres of WC foraging and roosting habitat by habitat type and 1967 
year (2007-2012); geodatabase of available habitat by type and year; detailed methods document covering 1968 
procedures and assumptions; and a presentation for the AMP Reporting Session. 1969 
 1970 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 1971 
Integral to all priority tern and plover and whooping crane hypotheses. 1972 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-6.  Habitat Availability Analysis 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 47 of 58 


 


Products 1973 
See above. 1974 
 1975 
Notes on Cost 1976 
 Rainwater Basin Joint Venture (RBJV) was contracted during 2011 to complete Tern and Plover 1977 


Habitat Availability Analyses for 2008-2011 (2011 Budget Line Item TP-1).  Sole-source cost 1978 
proposal from RBJV for 2012-2015 work to be discussed during December 2011 GC meeting.  1979 
Funding during 2012 will cover costs for conducting Tern and Plover Habitat Availability Analyses 1980 
for 2007 and 2012 and for conducting six annual Whooping Crane Habitat Availability Analyses 1981 
(2007-2012). 1982 


 RWBJV is currently performing a similar analysis for tern and plover habitat 1983 
o Sole-source approved by GC via email vote from May 13 to May 20, 2011. 1984 
o RWBJV reported year 1 LTPP analysis results to the TAC in October and the TAC was very 1985 


pleased with what has been produced so far. 1986 
 As with LTPP analysis, RWBJV possesses specialized experience and software used to perform 1987 


analysis. 1988 
 As a non-profit organization interested in management and maintenance of habitat for migratory 1989 


birds, they have performed similar habitat classification analyses for public lands in their project area 1990 
(south-central Nebraska Rainwater Basins, eastern Nebraska tallgrass prairie).  They possess trained 1991 
staff and equipment to perform this type of analysis. 1992 


 The WC analysis is subject to a great deal of uncertainty on the Program’s part that is being worked 1993 
through in 2012, and the agreement with RWBJV will be set up in such a way that they will work 1994 
closely and cooperatively with the Program committees and ED staff to run and re-run analyses as the 1995 
Program’s habitat definitions are developed. 1996 


 The agreement is intended to be set up as an effort-based not-to-exceed agreement to deal w/ the 1997 
possibility that the Program’s uncertainty may draw the project out longer than 1 year.  At this time, 1998 
the intent is to set up an agreement not to exceed ~$134,227, with a duration of 18 months from 1999 
January 2012 through June 2013. 2000 


 The billing rates for this project are substantially less than you can expect from any consultant if this 2001 
project was put out for bid. 2002 


 The project and the level of uncertainty and expected commitment have been discussed with RWBJV 2003 
and they are ready and willing to work cooperatively and collaboratively with the Program to 2004 
complete the project. 2005 


 2006 
Budget 2007 
 2008 


Program Task IMRP-6 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Habitat 


Availability 


Analysis 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $143,227 


 2009 
 2010 
 2011 
 2012 
 2013 
 2014 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 48 of 58 


 


 2015 
 2016 
 2017 
 2018 
Program First Increment Timeline 2019 
Annual 2020 
 2021 
FY 2012 Start Date 2022 
January 1, 2012 2023 
 2024 
FY 2012 End Date 2025 
December 31, 2012 2026 
 2027 
Task Completed by 2028 
ED Office; Riverside Technology, Inc. (RTi) 2029 
 2030 
Task Location 2031 
ED Office (Kearney, NE); contractor (RTi) in Ft. Collins, CO 2032 
 2033 
Task Description 2034 
Ongoing database development and management by RTi. 2035 
 2036 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2037 
System will house and manage all Program administrative and technical data. 2038 
 2039 
Products 2040 
Database maintenance, website support and hosting for meeting coordination and interface with Program 2041 
technical data, public Program website and document library support and hosting. 2042 
 2043 
Notes on Cost 2044 
N/A 2045 
 2046 
Budget 2047 
 2048 


Program Task PD-8 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Database 


Management 


System 


Development & 


Maintenance 


$150,000 $159,000 $200,000 $370,000 $140,000 $165,615.18 


 2049 
 2050 
 2051 
 2052 
 2053 
 2054 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-8.  Database Management System Development 


& Maintenance 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 49 of 58 


 


 2055 
 2056 
 2057 
Program First Increment Timeline 2058 
Annual 2059 
 2060 
FY 2012 Start Date 2061 
April 1, 2012 2062 
 2063 
FY 2012 End Date 2064 
December 31, 2012 2065 
 2066 
Task Completed by 2067 
ED Office; Program partners; USGS 2068 
 2069 
Task Location 2070 
Central Platte River, NE 2071 
 2072 
Task Description 2073 
Implement monitoring protocol during nesting season; Program staff will coordinate and lead field work, 2074 
but seasonal technicians and contracted personnel (USGS) will be necessary to work with Program staff 2075 
and partners to properly collect all data.  Monitoring effort will remain elevated in FY2012 to: ensure 2076 
proper data collection at nest sites (elevation, vegetation, etc.); conduct independent observer counts on 2077 
Program Associated Habitats to evaluate techniques used to monitor tern and plover adults, nests, chicks, 2078 
and fledglings (inside versus outside counts); band least tern and piping plover chicks and adults; and to 2079 
document habitat conditions (availability and elevation of nesting habitat, vegetation establishment on 2080 
islands, etc.) on the central Platte River.  2081 
 2082 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2083 
Links to all priority tern and plover hypotheses 2084 
 2085 
Products 2086 
Annual report detailing nest activity, bird activity, and habitat conditions; data for longer-term analysis of 2087 
effects of Program actions 2088 
 2089 
Notes on Cost 2090 
Funding during 2012 will cover costs associated with hiring a USGS crew to assist with collecting data 2091 
and banding chicks and adults ($150,000); $25,000 for USDA Wildlife Service to trap predators (January-2092 
February and May-August) at Program managed sites (Dyer, CWR, Elm Creek Complex, Broadfoot 2093 
South, Newark, Leaman, etc); $40,000 for Program costs associated with implementation-related 2094 
activities (technician, fencing materials, etc).  Due to FWS budget constraints, EDO staff and USGS will 2095 
conduct semi-monthly river surveys between Alda and Chapman during 2012. 2096 
 2097 
Budget 2098 


Program Task TP-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Tern & Plover Monitoring $14,000 $20,000 $100,000 $150,000 $300,000 $215,000 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  TP-1.  Tern & Plover Monitoring 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 50 of 58 


 


 2099 
 2100 


 2101 
Program First Increment Timeline 2102 
Annual 2103 
 2104 
FY 2012 Start Date 2105 
March 1, 2012 2106 
 2107 
FY 2012 End Date 2108 
December 31, 2012 2109 
 2110 
Task Completed by 2111 
Contractor (WEST, Inc.; AIM Consultants subcontracted for field work) 2112 
 2113 
Task Location 2114 
Central Platte River, NE 2115 
 2116 
Task Description 2117 
2012 implementation of the whooping crane monitoring protocol and data analyses associated with the 2118 
four-year contract (Fall 2011 – Spring 2015) established with WEST Inc. 2119 
 2120 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2121 
Provides whooping crane use and occurrence data linked to all whooping crane hypotheses. 2122 
 2123 
Products 2124 
Spring and fall report; data analysis 2125 
 2126 
Notes on Cost 2127 
The Program entered into a 4-year contract spanning 8 migration seasons (fall 2011 – Spring 2015) with 2128 
WEST; WEST will analyze and report on data collected during the 2012 spring and fall migrations. 2129 
 2130 
Budget 2131 
 2132 


Program Task WC-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Whooping Crane 


Monitoring 


$130,000 $130,000 $150,000 $150,000 $170,000 $225,091 


 2133 
 2134 
 2135 
 2136 
 2137 
 2138 
 2139 
 2140 
 2141 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WC-1.  Whooping Crane Monitoring 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 51 of 58 


 


 2142 
 2143 
 2144 
Program First Increment Timeline 2145 
FY2011-FY2016 2146 
 2147 
FY 2012 Start Date 2148 
January 1, 2012 2149 
 2150 
FY 2012 End Date 2151 
December 31, 2012 2152 
 2153 
Task Completed by 2154 
Whooping Crane Tracking Partnership including Canadian Wildlife Service, Crane Trust, U.S. Fish and 2155 
Wildlife Service, Platte River Recovery Implementation Program, and U.S. Geological Survey. 2156 
 2157 
Task Location 2158 
Whooping crane migration route; central Platte River, NE 2159 
 2160 
Task Description 2161 
Funding to purchase GPS-PTT Transmitters, capture and affix telemetry equipment to ~20 (total) 2162 
whooping cranes during spring and fall 2012, and to download and store WC location data from the 2163 
Argos System. 2164 
 2165 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2166 
Links to all priority whooping crane hypotheses 2167 
 2168 
Products 2169 
Spring and fall migration reports and database through 2012 2170 
 2171 
Notes on Cost 2172 
The Program entered into a 6-year agreement (2011-2016) with the Whooping Crane Tracking 2173 
Partnership during 2011 that allows the Program access to telemetry data and reports through 2016 and 2174 
the ability to evaluate whooping crane response to management actions along the central Platte River. 2175 
 2176 
Budget 2177 
 2178 


Program Task WC-3 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Whooping Crane 


Telemetry Tracking 


$0 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $167,100 


 2179 
 2180 
 2181 
 2182 
 2183 
 2184 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WC-3.  Whooping Crane Telemetry Tracking 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 52 of 58 


 


 2185 
 2186 


 2187 
 2188 
Program First Increment Timeline 2189 
FY2012-FY2013 2190 
 2191 
FY 2012 Start Date 2192 
January 1, 2012 2193 
 2194 
FY 2012 End Date 2195 
December 31, 2012 2196 
 2197 
Task Completed by 2198 
ED Office; UNL IGERT student (Trevor Hefley) 2199 
 2200 
Task Location 2201 
Kearney, NE (EDO); Lincoln, NE (UNL) 2202 
 2203 
Task Description 2204 
Organize and process Nebraska WC location database; develop methodology and implement elicitation 2205 
sessions with WC experts; develop analysis code and perform expert-informed WC habitat selection 2206 
analysis to test whooping crane priority hypotheses and inform management; prepare final report and 2207 
present findings at the Program’s AMP Reporting Session. 2208 
 2209 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2210 
Links to all priority whooping crane hypotheses 2211 
 2212 
Products 2213 
Summary report presenting methods and results of WC habitat selection analysis in a manner that can be 2214 
used to inform management decisions; annotated statistical code for repeating analyses in the future; and 2215 
a presentation at the Program’s AMP Reporting Session. 2216 
 2217 
Notes on Cost 2218 
One-time Program commitment of funds to IGERT Program at UNL. 2219 
 2220 
Budget 2221 
 2222 


Program Task WC-5 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Whooping Crane 


Telemetry Tracking 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 


 2223 
 2224 
 2225 
 2226 
 2227 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WC-5.  IGERT Whooping Crane Habitat Selection 


Project 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 53 of 58 


 


 2228 
 2229 
 2230 
Program First Increment Timeline 2231 
Annual 2232 
 2233 
FY 2012 Start Date 2234 
January 1, 2012 2235 
 2236 
FY 2012 End Date 2237 
December 31, 2012 2238 
 2239 
Task Completed by 2240 
Contractor (TBD through RFP in late 2011/early 2012) 2241 
 2242 
Task Location 2243 
Central and lower Platte River, NE; specific monitoring on Program lands in central Platte River 2244 
 2245 
Task Description 2246 
Water quality monitoring of key parameters based on specific Program actions (e.g. sediment 2247 
augmentation, island building in the channel) at locations in the central Platte and lower Platte. 2248 
 2249 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2250 
Data for evaluation of several pallid sturgeon priority hypotheses (PS-1, PS-5, PS-9) for the lower Platte 2251 
River and target species priority hypotheses in the central Platte River (T2, T2a, P2, WC1). 2252 
 2253 
Products 2254 
Annual report and data analysis; annual budget estimates; involvement in the annul AMP Reporting 2255 
Session. 2256 
 2257 
Notes on Cost 2258 
New contractor selected through RFP process in late 2011/early 2012; cost estimates based on 2009-2011 2259 
monitoring costs and estimates for 2012 from current contractor (EA). 2260 
 2261 
Budget 2262 
 2263 


Program Task WQ-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


Water Quality 


Monitoring 


$0 $40,000 $184,000 $180,000 $280,000 $150,000 


 2264 
 2265 
 2266 
 2267 
 2268 
 2269 
 2270 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WQ-1.  Water Quality Monitoring 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 54 of 58 


 


 2271 
 2272 


 2273 
Program First Increment Timeline 2274 
Annual 2275 
 2276 
FY 2012 Start Date 2277 
January 1, 2012 2278 
 2279 
FY 2012 End Date 2280 
December 31, 2012 2281 
 2282 
Task Completed by 2283 
ED Office; Independent Scientific Advisory Committee (ISAC) 2284 
 2285 
Task Location 2286 
Basin meeting locations TBD 2287 
 2288 
Task Description 2289 
 Six ISAC members x 3 meetings x 3-day meetings x $1,300 per ISAC member per day = $70,200 2290 
 2291 
EDO proposed three, 3-day meetings (two meeting days, one travel day per meeting) as follows: 2292 


1) AMP Reporting Session in Denver, CO (March) – ISAC interaction with EDO staff, Program 2293 
participants, and contractors; review and discussion of “State of the Platte” Report; review and 2294 
discussion of latest drafts of AMP documents such as Synthesis Report 2295 


2) Summer workshop in Kearney, NE (June-July) – field visits to implementation sites; focused 2296 
discussion on Q1.5 flow issues 2297 


3) Fall meeting in Denver, CO (October-December) –opportunity for ISAC to meet together to 2298 
build 2012 ISAC Report to GC 2299 


 2300 
 Additional stipend for ISAC chair to complete FY2011 report = $10,000 2301 
 Ten days of additional document review x six ISAC members x $1,300 per day = $78,000 2302 
 Total travel expenses for ISAC members and associated meeting expenses = $25,000 2303 
 2304 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2305 
Key element of independent scientific review of AMP, IMRP, management strategies, and associated 2306 
priority hypotheses 2307 
 2308 
Products 2309 
ISAC review of Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) implementation, experimental design, and other 2310 
Program products and activities; work will culminate in annual report by the end of 2012 2311 
 2312 
Notes on Cost 2313 
N/A 2314 
 2315 
 2316 
 2317 
 2318 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  ISAC-1.  ISAC Stipends & Expenses 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 55 of 58 


 


Budget 2319 
 2320 


Program Task ISAC-1 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


ISAC Stipends & 


Expenses 


$75,000 $115,000 $70,000 $150,000 $185,000 $185,000 


 2321 
 2322 
 2323 
 2324 
 2325 
 2326 
 2327 
 2328 
 2329 
 2330 
 2331 
 2332 
 2333 
 2334 
 2335 
 2336 
 2337 
 2338 
 2339 
 2340 
 2341 
 2342 
 2343 
 2344 
 2345 
 2346 
 2347 
 2348 
 2349 
 2350 
 2351 
 2352 
 2353 
 2354 
 2355 
 2356 
 2357 
 2358 
 2359 
 2360 
 2361 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 56 of 58 


 


 2362 
 2363 
 2364 
Program First Increment Timeline 2365 
Annual 2366 
 2367 
FY 2012 Start Date 2368 
January 1, 2012 2369 
 2370 
FY 2012 End Date 2371 
December 31, 2012 2372 
 2373 
Task Completed by 2374 
Contractor (Atkins); Peer Review panelists 2375 
 2376 
Task Location 2377 
Various locations of Peer Reviewers 2378 
 2379 
Task Description 2380 
Peer review of five (5) Program documents as defined below: 2381 
 2382 


 2383 
 2384 
Atkins under contract through 2013 to provide on-demand, as-needed science review services for 2385 
Program peer review panels.  Services include: 2386 
 Recommend candidates for each panel according to appropriate areas of expertise 2387 
 Provide background information for all potential candidates 2388 
 Recommend panelists and provide conflict of interest statements for all panelists 2389 
 Communicate with panelists (Program provides scope of work and handles contracting for payment) 2390 
 Summarize comments from each panel 2391 
 Deliver final report to EDO for each panel 2392 


 2393 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2394 
Independent peer review of key documents to ensure projects are consistent with Program goals and 2395 
objectives 2396 
 2397 
 2398 


Document # Reviewers


per Reviewer 


Cost


Total Review 


Panel Cost


PBS&J 


Services


Total 


Cost


Elm Creek FSM & Bird 


Response Design 


Document 4 $5,000 $20,000 $5,000 $25,000


Additional Document 3 $5,000 $15,000 $5,000 $20,000


Additional Document 3 $5,000 $15,000 $5,000 $20,000


Additional Document 3 $5,000 $15,000 $5,000 $20,000


Potential assistance with 


replacing ISAC members


1-3 new 


members $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000


$90,000


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-3.  AMP & IMRP Peer Review 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 57 of 58 


 


Products 2399 
Peer review reports for each reviewed document 2400 
 2401 
Notes on Cost 2402 
Cost estimate includes $5,000 for Atkins assistance with potentially replacing 1-3 ISAC members for 2403 
2013. 2404 
 2405 
Budget 2406 
 2407 


Program Task PD-3 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


AMP & IMRP 


Peer Review 


$50,000 $105,000 $50,000 $50,000 $115,000 $90,000 


 2408 
 2409 
 2410 
 2411 
 2412 
 2413 
 2414 
 2415 
 2416 
 2417 
 2418 
 2419 
 2420 
 2421 
 2422 
 2423 
 2424 
 2425 
 2426 
 2427 
 2428 
 2429 
 2430 
 2431 
 2432 
 2433 
 2434 
 2435 
 2436 
 2437 
 2438 
 2439 
 2440 
 2441 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/22/2011 


 


PRRIP FY 2012 Work Plan  Page 58 of 58 


 


 2442 
 2443 
 2444 
Program First Increment Timeline 2445 
Annual 2446 
 2447 
FY 2012 Start Date 2448 
January 1, 2012 2449 
 2450 
FY 2012 End Date 2451 
May 31, 2012 2452 
 2453 
Task Completed by 2454 
ED Office; TAC 2455 
 2456 
Task Location 2457 
ED Office (Kearney, NE and Lincoln, NE); Denver, CO 2458 
 2459 
Task Description 2460 
AMP Reporting Session in Denver, CO 2461 
 2462 
Linkage to Priority Hypotheses in AMP 2463 
Evaluation of AMP experimental design, planned data analysis, and discussion of likely outcomes of 2464 
management actions will help to keep monitoring, research, and data analysis on target for evaluation of 2465 
priority hypotheses and AMP management activities. 2466 
 2467 
Products 2468 
AMP Reporting Session in Denver, CO 2469 
 2470 
Notes on Cost 2471 
AMP-related contractors will be required to attend the AMP Reporting Session (tentatively March 2012 2472 
in Denver) so travel and associated meeting expenses will be covered if not already covered under 2473 
existing contracts/agreements. 2474 
 2475 
Budget 2476 
 2477 


Program Task PD-11 


 2007 


Approved 


2008 


Approved 


2009 


Approved 


2010 


Approved 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Estimated 


AMP Reporting $0 $10,000 $10,000 $70,000 $25,000 $25,000 


 2478 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-11.  AMP Reporting 








 


 


 


Fourth Amendment  


To the agreement between 


the Nebraska Community Foundation, Inc. 


 and Headwaters Corporation, Private Consultant 
 


 


This Fourth Amendment to the Agreement between the Nebraska Community Foundation, Inc. 


(“Foundation”) of Lincoln, Nebraska and Headwaters Corporation (“Consultant”), a private consultant of 


Kearney, Nebraska is made effective January 1, 2012.   


 


The purpose of this amendment is to: 


 


(1) Extend the contract between Foundation and Consultant for Executive Director’s Office services 


from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 to provide the services as described in Exhibit A 


(2) To provide Consultant with the budget as described in Exhibit B. 


 


All other terms of the original agreement remain in effect as originally written. 


 


 


The following parties agree to the terms of this Agreement. 


 


For the Consultant: 


 


 


 


________________________________ 


Jerry F. Kenny, Ph.D. 


President and CEO 


Headwaters Corporation      


 


For the Foundation: 


 


 


 


_________________________________ 


Diane M. Wilson       


Chief Financial & Administrative Officer  


Nebraska Community Foundation, Inc. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Fourth Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office  


Exhibit A 


Scope of Services 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 


Executive Director and Staff 
 


Task 1. Basic Duties – Maintain the Office of the Executive Director (EDO) in Central 


Nebraska (4411 4
th


 Avenue, Suite 6, Kearney, Nebraska 68845) and provide the managerial, 


administrative, and technical assistance required of the Governance Committee to implement the 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program. 


 


Task 2. 2012 Work Plan Items – The Executive Director and staff are responsible for 


implementation, either directly or through oversight, of activities as defined in the 2012 Work 


Plan. The following lists provide an overview summary of the activities that the EDO will 


perform in 2012: 


 


Provide direction and oversight and review work progress for contract conformance and payment 


approval for on-going work by contractors and consultants including: 


 All species and physical process monitoring activities 


 Sediment augmentation activities 


 FSM proof of concept activities  


 Permit activities for in-channel work 


 Directed research activities for Adaptive Management Plan requirements 


 Database management system development and maintenance activities 


 ISAC and peer review activities 


 Water Action Plan feasibility studies 


 J2 Regulating Reservoir investigations and design/construction activities 


 Ground water recharge and management investigations and implementation activities 


 Directed investigations for Water Plan requirements 


 Routine operations and maintenance of facilities, agricultural and range activities, and 


 basic land management 


 Land management and habitat rehabilitation projects 


 Recreational Access program activities 


 Special advisor activities as assigned by ED or EDO 


 


Provide services as appropriate in the following Program areas: 


 Engineering and hydrologic analyses in support of Water Plan  


 Develop hydrologic conditions report monthly or in prescribed time period blocks 


 Develop water purchase and lease agreements with various entities including NPPD, 


CPNRD, and CNPPID 


 Land evaluation and acquisition services 


 Land management services including oversight of tenants and agricultural operations 


 Implementation of Good Neighbor Policy 







Fourth Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office  


 Develop system-level hypothesis testing approach – spatial, temporal, sequencing, and 


experimental design aspects and proceed with implementation 


 Develop priority list of lands for each type of experiment and integrate with other 


ongoing efforts and proceed with implementation 


 Coordinate, attend, and provide support for scheduled meetings of Governance and 


Finance Committees, Land, Water, Technical, and Independent Science Advisory 


Committees, and other ad hoc committees as they occur 


 


Task 3. Project Library/Archive — Maintain a library and archive of materials generated for 


project, collection may include hard copy and electronic materials. The materials in the 


archive/library will include documents and other materials from both the Cooperative Agreement 


Phase and Phase I of the Implementation Program. 


 


Task 4. Other Duties — Perform other duties of the Office of the Executive Director, such as: 


 Coordination and communication among Program participants 


 Distribution of materials to participants 


 Communication with state, federal, and local organizations as appropriate 


 Prepare work plan and budget for review by the Finance Committee and approval by the 


Governance Committee 


 Prepare agreements/contracts and amendments 


 Process contractor invoices 


 Coordination with Nebraska Community Foundation on contractual and financial matters 


 Coordination with Platte River Recovery Implementation Foundation on land interest 


holding matters 


 Prepare and provide outreach/public education activities for the Program 


 Provide a review of Program tasks and periodically report on the status and progress of 


each task to the Governance Committee 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Fourth Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office  


Exhibit B 


Budget with Approved Hourly Rate 


& Reimbursable Expenses Price Schedules 
 


I. Budget 


 


A. Labor Cost 


      Average 


Item    No. Staff    Billing Rate ($)    Total Hours       Cost ($) 


Executive Director        1  121.53     1,800   218,754.00 


Senior Directors        5    79.58     8,490   675,634.20  


Assistant Support Staff       7     46.75   11,480   536,690.00 


Administrative Staff         2    39.50     1,900     75,050.00 


Subtotal-Labor Cost                 $1,506,128.20 


 


B. Direct Cost  


Item               Unit Rate ($) Months or Units     Cost ($) 


Office Rent      7,500.00  12     90,000.00 


Phones and Utilities     3,000.00  12     36,000.00 


Insurance    15,000.00  1     15,000.00 


Professional/Civic Memberships    


Equipment (off. - prchse&maint)      225.00  12       2,700.00 


Travel/Meeting Expenses    7,500.00  12                90,000.00 


Misc. Expenses (postage, supplies)      900.00   12     10,800.00 


Misc. Services (acct, payroll, legal)   2,000.00  12     24,000.00 


Contingency     25,000.00  1     25,000.00  


Subtotal-Direct Cost        $293,500.00 


 


Note: Direct costs such as rent, utilities, and insurance shown above represent the proportionate 


share of total such costs attributable to PRRIP based primarily on fee distribution amongst all 


Headwaters Corporation’s clients. A proportionate factor of 80% for PRRIP is used, which 


provides a conservative buffer to ensure that no client pays a disproportionate share of billable 


direct costs. 


 


C. Total Budget               $1,799,628.20 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Fourth Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office  


II. Approved Hourly Rate and Reimbursable Expenses Price Schedules 


 


A. Approved Hourly Rate Price Schedule 


Item        Maximum Billing Rate ($) 


Executive Director   121.53  


Senior Director Staff     94.95 


Assistant Support Staff    68.37 


Administrative Assistant      57.73 


 


Rates include salary, vacation, holiday, professional development, health insurance, life 


insurance, FICA, retirement, unemployment insurance and other similar items, and profit. 


 


The billing rate for the Executive Director is fixed.  The remaining billing rates will remain 


under the caps established by category, but will be set and reported on an individual basis by 


employee. Invoices will provide detail of hours expended during billing period and applicable 


billing rate by individual. 


 


B. Reimbursable Expenses Price Schedule 


 


All direct costs will be supported by invoice and billed at actual cost. 


 


There will be no charges for computer usage and related technology. 


 


Mileage will be charged at a rate of $0.500 per mile or the IRS approved rate for Business. 








HEADWATERS CORPORATION 


STAFFING PLAN FOR 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


SERVING AS 


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S OFFICE 


 


November 1, 2012 


INTRODUCTION 


The organization of Headwaters Corporation follows the basic structure of the Program. The 


fundamental, functional areas of Water, Land, and Adaptive Management are mirrored 


specifically as discipline groups and are supported by the Outreach/Operations and Technical 


Support groups. This structure and the position descriptions corresponding to these groups are 


described below. 


Staff members are linked to the position descriptions and the percentages of time they are 


committed to the Program in the text and tables that follow. Of the fifteen current staff 


members, thirteen are full-time employees and two are part time, one at 80% and one at 50%. 


The Program is the primary focus of Headwaters Corporation to a very high degree, but not the 


exclusive focus of every staff member, as detailed below. Of the current staff members, eight 


are exclusive or functionally exclusive to the Program, five are 80% or more on the Program, 


and two are 50% to 70% on the Program.  Combining these percentages together translates 


into a staffing level of about 13 Full Time Equivalent staff. There are no plans to add staff for 


the Program in 2012 or beyond. A Summary Table of this information is provided at the end of 


the text. 


In addition to staff, there are contractors that provide Headwaters Corporation legal, payroll, 


accounting, IT, and various forms of operational support on an as-needed basis. These 


contractors are not included in this document.  


 







POSITION DESCRIPTIONS    


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 


Executive Director (J. Kenny, Ph.D., PE)   


[Full Time /2012 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Responsible for the implementation of the Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 


(Program) as directed by the Governance and Finance Committees.  Provide supervision and 


oversight of the managerial, administrative, and technical support required to accomplish 


Program implementation. Responsible for preparation of annual Program budget and work plan 


with review by the Finance Committee and approval by the Governance Committee, and 


implementation and execution of the actions contained therein. Oversee contractor selection 


process with approval of selection panels established by the Governance Committee.  Oversee 


the management and direction of consultants and contractors. Review invoices for accuracy 


and consistency with work accomplishments and compliance with contracts and amendments. 


Provide a review of Program tasks and periodically report on the status and progress of each 


task to the Governance Committee, Finance Committee, and appropriate Advisory Committees. 


 


 


WATER  


Director of Water Resources Engineering (B. Courtney, M.S., PE)  


[Full Time/2012 projection, 80% of the time on the Program, 20% on other projects.]  


Serves as Chief Engineer for the Program. Responsible for implementation of Program Water 


Plan. Develop, revise, and implement Water Action Plan, including securing facilities and supply 


for Short Duration High Flow and reductions in deficit to target flows. Collects and reviews State 


and Federal Depletion Plan reports. Provide primary EDO liaison with Water Advisory 


Committee (WAC). Develops, implements, and maintains programs, systems, and procedures to 


ensure compliance with environmental requirements and Water Action Plan.  Oversees and 


manages water resources contractors from administrative and technical perspectives. 


Independently determines and develops approaches to solutions and obtains management 


approval for implementation. Acts as lead person/subject matter expert and provides 


leadership and direction to technical and operations staff. Assist Executive Director with budget 


and work plan development and management, RFP development, contract development and 







negotiation, and general Program administration. Supervises Assistant Level Technical Support 


Water Resources staff. 


Areas of Focus: All aspects of planning and implementation of Water Plan, contractor 


procurement and oversight, assistance on annual budget and work plan development, 


coordination with Adaptive Management and Land Plans. 


 


Assistant Level Technical Support Water Resources (S. Sartori, B.S., HIT)  


[Full Time/2012 projection, 67% of the time on the Program, 33% on other projects.]  


Assist the Director of Water Resources Engineering in water supply planning, water supply 


modeling, hydrologic modeling, consumptive use estimation, permitting, and providing 


technical support and quality control review for water resources oriented projects and tasks. 


Provide project management support including invoice review, budgeting, deadline, quality 


control, and contract management. Provide support for WAC activities.  Coordinate with 


natural resource and regulatory agencies to clarify rules and obtain timely permit approvals. 


Areas of Focus: Water resources project planning and permitting with a watershed 


management emphasis. 


 


Assistant Level Technical Support Water Resources (M. Welsh, M.S., HIT)  


[Full Time/2012 projection, 55% of the time on the Program, 45% on other projects.]  


Assist the Director of Water Resources Engineering in water supply planning and permitting, 


hydrologic modeling, consumptive use estimation, conjunctive management operations, and 


providing technical leadership and quality control review for water resources oriented tasks. 


Provide project management assistance including invoice review, budgeting, deadline, quality 


control, and contract management. Provide support for WAC activities.   Coordinate with other 


entities and agencies to clarify expectations and obtain timely information transfers. 


Areas of Focus: Water resources project planning and permitting with a watershed 


management emphasis. 


 


 







Assistant Level Technical Support Water Resources (S. Smith, M.S., PE)  


[Full Time/2012 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Provide critical linkage between Water Plan and Adaptive Management Plan through hydraulic 


and sediment transport modeling for water supply conveyance and geomorphology aspects of 


Program efforts.  Provide oversight to water quality monitoring and data analysis. Provide 


project management assistance including invoice review, budgeting, deadline, quality control, 


and contract management. Provide support for WAC and TAC activities.   Coordinate with other 


entities and agencies to clarify expectations and obtain timely information transfers. 


Areas of Focus: Hydraulic and sediment transport modeling, geomorphology monitoring and 


data analysis, ground water monitoring and data analysis, water quality monitoring and data 


analysis. 


 


LAND 


Director of Land Acquisition (B. Sackett, B.S., Certified Broker & Appraiser) 


[Full Time /2012 projection, 100% of the time on the Program] 


Responsible for implementation of the Land Plan including all aspects of the acquisition and 


management of Program lands. Responsible for Program adherence with the Good Neighbor 


Policy. Provide primary EDO liaison with Land Advisory Committee (LAC). Establishes initial 


contact with landowners, evaluates landowner interest in selling, easements, or leasing the 


land, arranges for title search and surveys of land parcel, oversees the team that evaluates each 


parcel of land and reports on land. Presents recommended land parcels to Governance 


Committee and, if approved, contacts appraisers and arranges for appraisals. Lead negotiations 


for land acquisition and coordinate with legal counsel, Nebraska Community Foundation, and 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Foundation during acquisition process. Heavily involved 


in development of Land Management Plans. Assist Executive Director with budget and work 


plan development and management, RFP development, contract development and negotiation, 


and general Program administration. 


Areas of Focus: Land acquisition and land management activities, coordination with Water and 


Adaptive Management Plans, assistance on annual budget and work plan development. 


 


 







ADAPTIVE MANGEMENT 


Director of Natural Resources/Adaptive Management (C. Smith, M.P.A.)  


[Full Time/2012 projection, 85% of the time on the Program, 15% on other projects.]  


Serve as Chief Scientist for the Program. Responsible for implementation of the Adaptive 


Management Plan (AMP), including coordination of all scientific monitoring and research 


activities through the AMP’s Integrated Monitoring and Research Plan. Independently 


determines and develops approaches to solutions and obtains management approval for AMP 


implementation. Acts as lead person/subject matter expert and provides leadership and 


direction to technical and operations staff. Oversees science-related contractors. Develop, 


implement, and maintain programs, systems, and procedures to ensure compliance with 


environmental requirements and Adaptive Management Plan. Assists Executive Director with 


budget and work plan development and management, RFP development, contract 


development and negotiation and general Program administration.  Supervises Assistant Level 


Technical Support Natural Resources staff. 


 


 Areas of Focus: Scientific monitoring and research, all aspects of planning and implementing 


Adaptive Management Plan, contractor procurement and oversight, assistance on annual 


budget and work plan development, coordination with Water and Land Plans.  


 


Assistant Level Technical Support Natural Resources (D. Baasch, Ph.D.)  


[Full Time/2012 projection, 100% of the time on the Program] 


 Assist the Director of Natural Resources and Adaptive Management in protocol development 


and experimental design, implementation of experiments, data collection and analysis, and 


oversees the implementation of monitoring and research efforts by Program Staff or 


contractors. Responsibilities include; gathering, compiling and sometimes analyzing project-


specific data; participating in and preparing materials for project meetings and coordinating 


work flow; field sampling/monitoring of soil, water, plants and aquatic or avian species; 


supervision or direction of the work of subcontractors and junior staff; budget tracking; and 


proposal development responsibilities.  


Areas of Focus:   Development and implementation of species oriented monitoring and 


experimental design, data collection and analysis with a strong emphasis on statistical 


techniques. 







Assistant Level Technical Support Natural Resources (D. Zorn, B.S.)  


[Full Time/2012 Projection, 100% of the time on the Program] 


Assist in the implementation of experiments; field data collection associated with monitoring 


for species, physical process, and water action plan activities; data collection and analysis; 


participating in and preparing materials for project meetings; implementation of land 


management and public access actions; coordinating work flow and oversight of contractors. 


Areas of Focus:   Field implementation of monitoring and data collection, assistance with land 


management and public access, contractor oversight. 


 


 


TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES 


Director of Technical Support (J. Farnsworth, B.S.)  


[Full Time/2012 Projection, 100% of the time on the Program] 


 


Provide field and office support services to Land, Water, Adaptive Management, and 
Operations staff as required, including the oversight and management of Program staff and 
contractors. Provide to Executive Director review and recommendations of overall processes, 
procedures, database systems, and management systems to improve Program functioning. 
Assist Executive Director with budget and work plan development and management, RFP 
development, contract development and negotiation, and general Program administration.  In 
conjunction with Director of Water Resources Engineering and Director of Natural 
Resources/Adaptive Management, provides monitoring and oversight of specific aspects of 
Water Action Plan and Adaptive Management Plan. In conjunction with Land Director works on 
land evaluation, environmental ranking, and restoration planning. Oversee specific support 
contractors. Supervise the Assistant Level Technical Support staff and the Land Manager.    
 


Areas of Focus: Database Management System development and maintenance, land evaluation, 
land management planning and implementation, experimental design development and 
implementation, contractor/consultant procurement, assistance on annual budget and work 
plan development. 


 
 


 


 







Assistant Level Technical Support (J. Brei, B.S., EI)   


[Full Time /2012 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Provide Field and office support services to Land, Water, Adaptive Management, and 


Operations staff as required. As the staff GIS Specialist, applies knowledge of information 


system principles, spatial data processing function, spatial analysis of topological structured 


data, and computer programming languages and techniques to solve multi-discipline query and 


classification of spatial data. Develops complete GIS databases integrating graphic and database 


information to provide full GIS functionality. Serves as the staff resource for analysis and 


program development with respect to GIS and related applications. Coordinate LiDAR and aerial 


photography acquisition. Oversee database contractor in the development and maintenance of 


Program website and database. Develop habitat restoration designs, plans, and specifications. 


Provide contractor oversight during construction activities. 


Areas of Focus: LiDAR and aerial photography acquisition, mapping, GIS analysis, Land 


Evaluation coordination, data analysis, habitat rehabilitation design, construction contractor 


oversight 


 


Land Manager (Tim Tunnell, M.S.) 


[Full Time /2012 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Responsible for the development of land restoration and management plans. Assists Land 


Director in the evaluation of land parcels and provides supervision and oversight of the 


implementation of land-related activities performed by Program Staff and contractors. 


Activities include facility (buildings, fences, and wells), coordination of agricultural (cropping 


and grazing) operations with tenants, development of grassland seed mix and planting 


specifications, coordination of prescribed burns, control of noxious weeds, and oversight of all 


advisors and contractors implementing these activities. 


Areas of Focus: Planning and implementing land management actions, coordination with Platte 


Valley and West Central Weed Management Area efforts on invasive species control. 


 


OUTREACH/OPERATIONS 


Director of Outreach and Operations (B. Barron, Ph.D., MBA, Licensed Psychologist) 


 [Full Time/2012 projection, 85% of the time on the Program, 15% on other projects.]  







Responsible for developing and implementing a Public Information and Outreach effort:  


including identifying target audiences, defining and creating key messages for each audience, 


and developing strategies, materials, and measurements of success. Coordinate with Program 


partners to ensure consistent key messages and coordinated outreach efforts and handle all 


press releases for Program and media contacts for Program contractors. Assist in the 


implementation of public access policies for Program lands. Assist Executive Director in the 


operational aspects of staff management, office purchasing, and inventory maintenance and 


control. Supervise Administrative staff. 


Areas of Focus: Program outreach activities and operational aspects of Program functions, 


assistance on annual budget and work plan development 


 


Administrative Assistant – clerical (J. Liakos, B.S.)  


[80% Time/2012 projection, 85% of the time on the Program, 15% on other projects.]  


Provide administrative and clerical support services to Executive Director and all Program staff 


members. Responsibilities include; maintaining daily office operations, file maintenance, 


correspondence, scheduling meeting logistics and arrangements, maintaining contractor and 


sub-contractor contract files, assisting in the processing of contractor payments, answering 


phones, and processing employee and client paperwork. 


Areas of Focus: Clerical, reception, and logistical support aspects of administration. 


 


Administrative Assistant - accounting (P. Doyle, B.S., CPA [inactive registrant])  


[Half Time/2012 projection, 85% of the time on the Program, 15% on other projects.]  


Provide accounting and financial support services to Executive Director and all Program staff 


members. Responsibilities include; coordination with NCF, USBR, and Larry Schultz to reconcile 


Program costs and accounting, maintaining accounting records, invoice preparation for 


Program, accounting and financial file maintenance, tracking contractor and sub-contractor 


accounts, collecting and processing payments, and processing employee expenses and payroll 


paperwork. 


Areas of Focus: Accounting and financial aspects of administration. 


 







Summary of Headwaters Corporation Staff and Program Roles 


Name Title FT/PT % on Program 


J. Kenny Executive  Director FT 100% 


WATER    


B. Courtney Director of Water Resources Engineering FT 80% 


S. Sartori Assistant Level Technical Support Water 
Resources 


FT 67% 


M. Welsh Assistant Level Technical Support Water 
Resources 


FT 55%  


S. Smith Assistant Level Technical Support Water 
Resources 


FT 100% 


LAND    


B. Sackett Director of Land Acquisition  FT 100% 


ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT    


C. Smith Director of Natural Resources/Adaptive 
Management 


FT 85% 


D. Baasch Assistant Level Technical Support Natural 
Resources  


FT 100%  


D. Zorn Assistant Level Technical Support Natural 
Resources 


FT 100% 


TECHNICAL SUPPORT     


J. Farnsworth Director of Technical Support Services FT 100% 


J. Brei Assistant Level Technical Support FT 100% 


T. Tunnel Land Manager FT 100% 


OUTREACH & OPERATIONS    


B. Barron Director of Outreach/Operations FT 85% 


J. Liakos Administrative Assistant - Clerical PT – 80% 85% 


P. Doyle Administrative Assistant - Accounting PT – 50% 85% 


 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE FINAL  11/02/2011 


PRRIP Equipment Memo         Page 1 of 3 


 1 


TO:  Finance Committee and Governance Committee  2 


FROM:  Jerry F. Kenny, Executive Director  3 


DATE:  11/2/2011 4 


RE:  Proposal for Headwaters Equipment Purchase and Proposed Usage Fee   5 


 6 


Recommendation 7 


The Executive Director’s Office (EDO) recommends that the Finance Committee (FC) recommend to the 8 


Governance Committee (GC) for approval the proposal described below for Headwaters Corporation charging a 9 


usage fee for equipment utilized in Program-related activities.  For 2012, the total usage fee would be $66,215 10 


as noted in the draft FY 2012 PRRIP Budget and Work Plan in Program line item PD-18 (AMP-Related 11 


Equipment). 12 


 13 


Background 14 


An action item from the June 14, 2011 Governance Committee meeting requested that the Executive Director’s 15 


Office (EDO) develop a proposal for Headwaters Corporation to purchase equipment currently owned by the 16 


Program and to compute a usage fee to bill the Program for the use of the equipment once purchased by 17 


Headwaters Corporation. This equipment includes a 2009 Chevy Silverado truck, airboat, ARGO, and three 18 


trailers.  In addition to the equipment currently owned by the Program, a 2011 Toyota Tundra truck is leased by 19 


Headwaters Corporation for Program use, and other equipment owned by Headwaters Corporation is used for 20 


Program purposes. For simplicity, all of this equipment will be addressed in this memorandum with a proposal 21 


for a single, comprehensive usage fee for equipment necessary for Program work. 22 


 23 


Valuation of Equipment  24 


To determine a fair purchase price of the equipment currently owned by the Program, the remaining value after 25 


depreciation was used. Internal Revenue Services (IRS) Modified Accelerated Cost Recovery System 26 


(MACRS) schedules and property class tables were utilized to depreciate the truck, airboat with trailer, ARGO, 27 


ARGO trailer, and canoe trailer. Ten year depreciation schedules were used for all equipment except for the 28 


truck which is under a five year schedule. Year of purchase for the truck, airboat, ARGO, airboat trailer, and 29 


ARGO trailer was 2009; the canoe trailer was constructed and put into service in 2011. Following is a Table 30 


with the Purchase Price of each piece of equipment and the depreciated value.  31 


 32 


 
Truck 


Airboat with 
Trailer 


ARGO ARGO Trailer Canoe Trailer 


Purchase 
Price 


$26,884.00 $53,440.00 $24,987.00 $2,235.00 $2,393.63 


Depreciated 
Value 


$7,742.00 $30,782.00 $14,393.00 $1,287.86 $2,154.23 


 33 


Using the sum of the depreciated values as the total cost to Headwaters Corporation to purchase equipment, a 34 


purchase price of $56,359.09 results. Headwaters will pay this amount to the Nebraska Community Foundation 35 


by December 31, 2011 to complete this transaction. 36 


 37 


Headwaters Corporation Annual Usage Fee  38 


Once Headwaters purchases the equipment currently owned by the Program, Headwaters will be responsible for 39 


all aspects of use and maintenance of all equipment, purchased from the Program, leased, and previously owned 40 


by Headwaters Corporation. The usage fee billed back to the Program will cover the following; recovery of 41 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE FINAL  11/02/2011 


PRRIP Equipment Memo  Page 2 of 3 


 


 42 


purchase price of purchased equipment, maintenance, fuel, insurance and licensure.  To develop a single, 43 


comprehensive usage fee for the purchased equipment, the leased equipment, and the previously owned 44 


equipment, each category will be dealt with individually for cost recovery including maintenance and 45 


collectively for operating cost of licenses, insurance, and fuel. Annual costs will be developed, summed, and 46 


divided evenly by 12 to develop a monthly usage fee. 47 


 48 


Program Purchased Equipment 49 


Recovery of the purchase price of the truck, airboat and trailer, ARGO and trailer, and canoe trailer was 50 


calculated by dividing the purchase price by the remaining life on the equipment. This totals to $10,757 a year.  51 


Maintenance was calculated by reviewing costs in 2010 and 2011 and adding minor (tire replacement for truck 52 


at estimate of $900) and major (bottom of the airboat replaced at estimate of $6,000) maintenance that we know 53 


will be required. This totals to $5,750 a year.  54 


 55 


Leased Equipment 56 


In June 2011 Headwaters Corporation leased a 2011 Toyota Tundra truck for Program use and currently all 57 


lease payments, gasoline, and maintenance costs for that vehicle are billed to the Program.  From a cost 58 


perspective, nothing changes under the proposed system, except the format of charges.  Lease costs for the 2011 59 


Toyota Tundra truck will be passed through to the Program. This totals to $6,228 a year.  Maintenance was 60 


calculated based on experience with the 2009 Chevy Silverado and manufacturer’s recommendations for the 61 


Toyota Tundra. This cost was estimated at $2,000 a year. 62 


 63 


Previously Owned Equipment 64 


In addition to the equipment listed above there is equipment that was purchased by Headwaters Corporation that 65 


is used for the Program. This equipment includes an ATV, a trailer for the ATV and a 1987 4x4 Toyota truck. 66 


All maintenance, insurance, taxes and licensing on this equipment is paid for by Headwaters and has been 67 


charged to the Program on an intermittent use basis. The proposed system mirrors the past use based approach. 68 


 69 


The proposed ATV and trailer and 1987 truck usage fee is based on a rate per day and an estimate of days used 70 


based on usage in 2010 and 2011. Amounts for rate per day were calculated by contacting ATV and vehicle 71 


rental agencies in Kearney and asking for their daily rental rates for trucks, ATVs and ATV trailers. In each 72 


case, the Headwaters Corporation proposed rate is either at the bottom of their rental range or significantly 73 


below their cheapest quoted rate. The daily use fee is considered to include maintenance and licensing costs, so 74 


those are not called out separately or included in other cost lines. The daily use rate for an ATV with trailer is 75 


$100/day, with an estimated use of 20 days a year. The use rate for the 1987 Toyota is set at $65/day with an 76 


estimated use of 70 days a year. This totals to $6,550 a year.  77 


 78 


License, Insurance, and Fuel 79 


Licensure of vehicles and equipment was calculated by reviewing the costs in 2010 and 2011. License costs for 80 


all equipment, except the previously owned ATV, ATV trailer, and 1987 Toyota, were included. The licensing 81 


costs are estimated at $1,500.  Insurance costs were calculated by reviewing the Program’s current policies and 82 


assuming that Headwaters Corporation could purchase the auto, airboat, excess watercraft liability and inland 83 


marine (for the airboat and ARGO) insurance for the same amount as the Program paid in 2011. Excess 84 


watercraft liability and inland marine insurance constitute the bulk of the insurance cost. The insurance cost for 85 


all vehicles is estimated to be $8,450. 86 


 87 


 88 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE FINAL  11/02/2011 


PRRIP Equipment Memo  Page 3 of 3 


 


 89 


Fuel costs were calculated by reviewing historical fuel records, mileage, and miles per gallon data for the 90 


current (2011 Tundra) and previously leased truck (2008 Chevy Silverado), the owned truck (2009 Chevy 91 


Silverado), and the 1987 Toyota. Estimated fuel usage for the airboat, ARGO, and ATV were based on 92 


historical fuel records. The usage numbers were multiplied by an estimated future fuel cost of $3.90 per gallon 93 


over 2012. The total of fuel costs comes to $23,682 a year. These calculations are summarized in the table 94 


below: 95 


 96 


Vehicle Miles Miles per Gallon Gallons Cost 


2009 Silverado 25,000 12  $8,125 


2011 Tundra 30,000 12  $9,750 


1987 Toyota 7,000 18  $1,517 


Airboat   1,000 $3,900 


Argo   50 $195 


ATV   50 $195 


   TOTAL $23,682 


 97 


All the above detailed costs are compiled in the following table. A contingency fee of 2% is added to account 98 


for the fairly conservative approach used in arriving at costs and the high degree of uncertainty associated with 99 


some costs, in particular insurance and fuel.  100 


 101 


As shown in the table below, the annual usage fee including contingency would be $66,266. Rounding down to 102 


$66,000 and dividing by 12 to arrive at a monthly fee invoiced to the Program of $5,500. 103 


 104 


Calculations for Headwaters Corporation Annual Usage Fee 


Equipment Purchased from PRRIP (2009 Silverado Truck, 


ARGO & Trailer, Airboat & Trailer, Canoe Trailer  


 


Recovery Purchase Price $10,757 


Maintenance $5,750 


Leased Equipment (2011 Toyota Tundra)   


Lease Payment  $6,288 


Maintenance $2,000 


Existing Headwaters Corporation Equipment   


ATV & Trailer (Day Rate) $2,000 


1987 Toyota (Day Rate) $4,550 


Operating Costs   


Licenses (All Vehicles) $1,500 


Insurance (All Vehicles) $8,450 


Fuel  $23,682 


Sub-Total  $64,917 


Contingency (2%) $1,298 


TOTAL $66,215 


Monthly Usage Fee $5,500 


 105 


 106 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 


 


 


 


Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


Office of the Executive Director 


4111 4
th
 Avenue, Suite 6 


Kearney, Nebraska 68845 


 


 


 


 


November 14, 2011 


 


 


 


 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 2 of 11 


 


 


Contents 


 


I. OVERVIEW .................................................................................................................................... 3 


II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION & SCOPE OF WORK ......................................................................... 4 


III. PROJECT BUDGET ....................................................................................................................... 7 


IV. FIELD AND OFFICE EQUIPMENT .............................................................................................. 7 


V. CONTRACT TERMS ...................................................................................................................... 7 


VI. SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................. 8 


VII. AVAILABLE INFORMATION .................................................................................................... 10 


 


Attachment A – PRRIP Consultant Contract 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring RFP  Page 3 of 11 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 2 


 3 
SUBJECT:  Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis 4 
REQUEST DATE:    January 12, 2012 5 
PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING: January 24, 2012 6 
CLOSING DATE:   February 2, 2012 7 
POINT OF CONTACT:   Steve Smith 8 


Headwaters Corporation 9 
(720) 524-6115 10 
smiths@headwaterscorp.com 11 


 12 
I. OVERVIEW 13 
The Platte River Recovery Implementation Program (“Program” or “PRRIP”) was initiated on January 1, 14 
2007 between Nebraska, Wyoming, Colorado, and the Department of the Interior to address threatened 15 
and endangered species issues in the central and lower Platte River basin.  The species considered in the 16 
Program, referred to as “target species”, are the whooping crane, piping plover, interior least tern, and 17 
pallid sturgeon. 18 
 19 
A Governance Committee (GC) reviews, directs, and provides oversight for Program activities.  The GC 20 
is comprised of one representative from each of the three states, three water user representatives, two 21 
representatives from environmental groups, and two members representing federal agencies.  The GC has 22 
named Dr. Jerry Kenny to serve as the Program Executive Director (ED).  Dr. Kenny established 23 
Headwaters Corporation as the staffing mechanism for the Program.  Program staff is located in Nebraska 24 
and Colorado and are responsible for assisting in carrying out Program-related activities. 25 
 26 
In 2007, the Program began its 13-year First Increment, which will span the period from 2007 to 2019.  27 
The Program’s management objectives are to 1) improve survival of whooping cranes during migration, 28 
2) improve least tern and piping plover production, and 3) avoid adverse impacts on pallid sturgeon in the 29 
Lower Platte River (Program target species).  Systematic baseline water quality monitoring was 30 
completed from 2009 to 2011.  Future water quality monitoring will be aimed at helping to determine 31 
whether any water quality changes are related to Program activities (e.g., sediment augmentation, flow 32 
management, island building, and channel widening).  As a result, future monitoring will include Program 33 
action-based monitoring downstream of Program-related activities.   34 
 35 
Adaptive management will be used to reduce uncertainty associated with Program actions.  The 36 
Program’s Adaptive Management Plan (“AMP”) will be implemented to learn more about the response of 37 
the four target species to management actions.  Several critical scientific and technical uncertainties about 38 
Program target species response to management actions will be the focus of the application of rigorous 39 
adaptive management in the First Increment through implementation of the Program’s AMP.  These 40 
uncertainties are captured in statements of broad hypotheses on pages 14-17 of the AMP and, as a means 41 
of better linking science learning to Program decision-making, those uncertainties comprise a set of “Big 42 
Questions” that provide a template for linking specific hypotheses and performance measures to 43 
management objectives and overall Program goals. 44 
 45 
In the central Platte River,  water quality parameters such as turbidity are primarily of interest to the 46 
Program in terms of the potential impact of Program actions such as sediment augmentation, island 47 



mailto:smiths@headwaterscorp.com





PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 4 of 11 


 


building, and channel widening on those parameters.  Certain Program pallid sturgeon priority hypotheses 48 
are directly related to water quality in the lower Platte River, including: 49 
 50 
PS-5:  Pallid sturgeon habitat suitability is maximized between water temperatures of X and Y in the 51 
lower Platte River. 52 
 53 
PS-9:  Increasing Program flow releases will decrease water temperatures in the lower Platte River. 54 
 55 
Several Program protocols are being implemented to monitor target species, habitat, and physical 56 
processes to better understand relationships and provide data for evaluating species response to 57 
management actions.  This RFP is related to the Program’s protocols for water quality monitoring on the 58 
Platte River and the Kearney Canal.  Information from the protocols will be used to help evaluate the 59 
linkages between land and water management activities of the Program, and effects on water quality of 60 
the central and lower Platte River, as well as the Kearney Canal.   61 
 62 
The GC submits this Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit proposals from Consultants to complete the 63 
following overall tasks for water quality on the central and lower Platte River, and also for the Kearney 64 
Canal: 65 


1. Develop an addendum to the existing Program Water Quality Monitoring Protocol (2011), which 66 
will describe how Program action-based water quality monitoring will differ from baseline 67 
monitoring described in the protocol.  In general terms, the difference will be that the location and 68 
timing of water quality monitoring will be focused on assessing whether Program actions affect 69 
Platte River water quality. 70 


2. Develop annual monitoring plans to facilitate planning for the timing and location of monitoring 71 
to occur annually, according to anticipated Program activities in a given year.  72 


3. Implement annual Program action-based water quality monitoring according to the annual 73 
monitoring plan and the Program action-based monitoring protocol addendums. 74 


4. Data analysis and reporting to determine whether Program action-based water quality is 75 
statistically different than baseline water quality. 76 


 77 
The term Consultant shall be used throughout this document to describe both the RFP Respondent 78 
providing the proposal and the Consultant (the successful Respondent) who would be performing the 79 
work upon award of the project. 80 
 81 
This RFP describes a multi-year program of work encompassing annual water quality monitoring 82 
activities throughout the year with timing and location based on Program actions.  Annual budgets 83 
for implementing the protocol will be developed in conjunction with the selected Consultant. A 84 
four-year program of monitoring and reporting will occur from 2012 through 2015,  Under the 85 
final contract, annual written Notice to Proceed from the Program ED Office will be required 86 
before work begins. All work will be contingent on availability of Program funding and upon 87 
annual budget review and approval by the Program Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), 88 
Finance Committee (FC), and GC. 89 
 90 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION & SCOPE OF WORK 91 
The Consultant will develop an addendum to the existing Program water quality monitoring protocols 92 
focused on action-based monitoring, complete annual monitoring plans to specify timing and location of 93 
annual monitoring based on anticipated Program actions for a given year, implement the action-based 94 
water quality monitoring protocol, and complete data analyses and reporting.   95 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 5 of 11 


 


 96 
Water quality monitoring and data analysis for the Program generally falls into two categories as 97 
described below: 98 


 Platte River from Lexington to Louisville monitoring: discharge, continuous water quality 99 
monitoring parameters (temperature, turbidity, dissolved oxygen, pH, and specific conductance), 100 
discrete water quality monitoring (dissolved copper, dissolved lead, dissolved nickel, total 101 
selenium, total calcium, and total magnesium), and E. coli discrete monitoring. 102 


 Nebraska Public Power District’s (NPPD) Kearney Canal monitoring: discharge, continuous 103 
water quality monitoring (temperature, turbidity, dissolved oxygen, pH, and specific 104 
conductance), and discrete water quality monitoring (suspended sediment). 105 


 106 
Baseline water quality monitoring for the Platte River between Lexington and Louisville was completed 107 
for three years from 2009 to 2011.  Baseline water quality monitoring for the Kearney Canal was 108 
completed for one year in 2011.  Results of past water quality monitoring can be found in the Annual 109 
Data Summary Reports for 2009 and 2010 (see Section VII for information on these reports).  Action-110 
based water quality monitoring for the Platte River and for the Kearney Canal is expected to occur 111 
annually throughout the remainder of the Program’s First Increment.  This RFP will result in a contract 112 
for four years of water quality monitoring and data analysis from 2012 through 2015.  Water quality 113 
monitoring and data analysis for the final four years of the Program’s First Increment will likely be 114 
contracted through an additional RFP process in 2015. 115 
 116 
Protocol Addendum for Action-Based Monitoring 117 
Protocols have been developed for Program water quality monitoring: Water Quality Monitoring Protocol 118 
(2011) for Platte River monitoring between Lexington and Louisville; and Kearney Canal Water Quality 119 
Monitoring Protocol (2011) for the Kearney Canal.  The protocols describe methods, and also specify 120 
monitoring design considerations (e.g., monitoring locations and timing).  The design considerations in 121 
the protocols are focused on systematic baseline water quality monitoring.  However, the timing and 122 
location of water quality monitoring for the remainder of the Program’s First Increment will be action-123 
based, and will be focused on assessing effects on water quality associated with Program actions such as 124 
sediment and flow management.  As a result, addendums to the water quality monitoring protocols will be 125 
developed to specify guidelines for the timing and location of action-based water quality monitoring.   126 
 127 
The protocol addendums will also provide guidance as to what types of events should be categorized as 128 
minor vs. major, based on standard water quality monitoring protocols.  Action-based monitoring will 129 
include the same parameters of interest and monitoring methods and procedures as described in the 130 
existing protocols, but the frequency and location of monitoring will be different and will vary for minor 131 
vs. major events.  Protocol addendums will be completed for both the Platte River and Kearney Canal 132 
water quality monitoring protocols.  Monitoring locations and timing will be addressed in the addendum 133 
to the Platte River Water Quality Monitoring Protocol.  Monitoring locations for Kearney Canal water 134 
quality monitoring are not expected to vary from specifications in the Kearney Canal Water Quality 135 
Monitoring Protocol, but timing of Kearney Canal monitoring will need to be addressed in the protocol 136 
addendum to focus the timing of monitoring around anticipated Program actions. 137 
 138 
Examples of minor and major Program actions that may necessitate water quality monitoring are as 139 
follows (categorization of events may change, and these are only provided as examples to help 140 
Consultants in preparing proposals): 141 


 Minor event: island building and vegetation spraying/discing 142 
 Major event: sediment augmentation, channel widening, and short duration high flow test release 143 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 6 of 11 


 


 144 
Protocol addendums will also specify data analysis methods that will be used to assess Program-related 145 
effects on water quality.  Water quality data analysis methods will be focused on assessing whether 146 
action-based water quality (i.e., monitoring data from 2012 through 2019) is statistically different than 147 
baseline water quality (i.e., monitoring data from 2009 to 2011).  Statistical methods to be used in 148 
quantifying the variations in water quality over time will be specified in the protocol addendums. 149 
 150 
Annual Monitoring Plans 151 
Annual monitoring plans will be prepared by the Consultant based on Program actions anticipated for the 152 
upcoming year.  The Consultant will work with the ED Office to compile a list of minor and major 153 
actions, and the monitoring plan will include a description of the specific timing and locations of 154 
monitoring to occur for each of the anticipated Program actions (based on the general guidelines for 155 
monitoring frequency and locations outlined in the addendum to the water quality monitoring protocols 156 
described above).  One annual monitoring plan covering both Platte River and Kearney Canal monitoring 157 
timing and locations will be prepared annually in the spring. 158 
 159 
Monitoring 160 
Program action-based monitoring will be completed annually according to the water quality monitoring 161 
protocols, addendums to the protocols, and the annual water quality monitoring plan.  Monitoring will be 162 
completed for the Platte River between Lexington and Louisville, and also for NPPD’s Kearney Canal.  163 
Monitoring will be completed between March and November, with specific timing following Program 164 
actions as outlined in the annual monitoring plan.   165 
 166 
Discharge will be monitored using data from existing gaging stations.  No additional gaging stations will 167 
be installed to complete water quality monitoring.  River stage and discharge data will be collected, and 168 
will be used to understand links between flow and water quality. 169 
 170 
Continuous water quality monitoring (temperature, turbidity via optical sensor, dissolved oxygen by 171 
optical or Luminescent Dissolved Oxygen (LDO) technology, pH, and specific conductance).  Data will 172 
be collected using automated samplers such as sondes at key bridge crossings along the Platte River. 173 
 174 
Discrete water samples will be collected (metals and E. coli for the Platte River, and suspended sediment 175 
for the Kearney Canal), and will be analyzed by a National Environmental Laboratory Accredidation 176 
Program (NELAP)-certified laboratory.   177 
 178 
Data Analysis 179 
The successful Consultant will be expected to provide an analysis of collected water quality data 180 
according to the analysis methods described in the water quality monitoring protocol addendums as well 181 
as additional analyses and data presentations (graphs, tables, etc.) as requested by the Program through 182 
the ED Office.  The objective of the water quality data analyses is to assess whether Program-related 183 
actions, such as flow and sediment management, have an effect on the water quality of the Platte River 184 
and/or Kearney Canal.  As described above, analyses will focus on whether Program action-based water 185 
quality data (i.e., monitoring data from 2012 through 2019) are statistically different than baseline water 186 
quality data collected from 2009 to 2011.   187 
 188 
Reporting 189 
The successful Consultant will generate a draft (Microsoft Word) and final (Microsoft Word and PDF) 190 
report at the completion of each monitoring season that includes methods, results, data analysis, 191 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 7 of 11 


 


photographs of field work, and other associated data.  Reports will also provide any suggested revisions 192 
to the water quality monitoring protocols and related addendums based on lessons learned during the 193 
annual monitoring.  Reports will be delivered electronically to the ED Office for review and comment by 194 
the ED Office and the Program’s Technical Advisory Committee.  The Consultant will be responsible for 195 
uploading annual monitoring data to the Program’s online database in a format consistent with other 196 
Program data.  The successful Consultant will also be required to prepare for, attend, develop an 197 
Executive Summary for, and deliver a presentation at the Program’s annual AMP Reporting Session 198 
generally held in Denver, CO in early March of each year. 199 
 200 
III. PROJECT BUDGET 201 
An estimated project budget should be submitted in the proposal, on a not-to-exceed time and expense 202 
basis for the work to be completed.  The budget estimate will include projections for the Contract period 203 
from 2012 through 2015.  A final budget will be established as part of the Project Scoping and Kickoff 204 
and will depend upon the budget estimate provided in the proposal for the selected Consultant.   205 
 206 
Proposals will be evaluated on criteria described in Section VI below, including understanding of the 207 
objectives of the project, qualifications of the team members, and clarity/content of project schedule, 208 
scope, and budget.  The work will not be awarded based solely on a lowest cost basis.   209 
 210 
IV. FIELD AND OFFICE EQUIPMENT 211 
Field equipment required to implement water quality monitoring will be acquired and maintained as 212 
according to the following table.  Equipment to be acquired/maintained by the Consultant should be 213 
included in the Consultants’ estimated project budget described in Section III.  Equipment to be provided 214 
by the Program should not be included in the Consultants’ budget estimate. 215 
 216 


Equipment Party to Purchase 


Automated water quality devices for continuous 


water quality measurements (e.g., sondes) 
PRRIP 


Software to download data from automated water 


quality devices 
PRRIP 


Field computers to download automated water 


quality devices 
Contractor 


Sampling equipment for all discrete water samples Contractor 


Office equipment for summarizing and analyzing 


water quality data 
Contractor 


  217 
V. CONTRACT TERMS 218 
The selected Consultant will be retained by:  Nebraska Community Foundation 219 
 PO Box 83107  220 
 Lincoln, NE 68501  221 
 222 
Proposal should indicate whether the Consultant agrees to the contract terms, as outlined in the attached 223 
Program’s Consultant Contract (Attachment A), or provides a clear description of any exceptions to the 224 
terms and conditions. 225 
 226 
The initial term of the contract will be for a period beginning in February 2012 and terminating in May 227 
2016 with an option to renew at the sole discretion of the GC.  Contracted services will be performed on a 228 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 8 of 11 


 


time and material not to exceed basis.  Under the final contract, written Notice to Proceed from the ED 229 
will be required before works begins.  All work will be contingent on availability of Program funding. 230 
 231 
VI. SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 232 
All interested parties having experience providing the services listed in this RFP are requested to submit a 233 
proposal. 234 
 235 
Instructions for Submitting Proposals 236 
One electronic copy of your proposal must be submitted in PDF format to Steve Smith at 237 
smiths@headwaterscorp.com no later than 12:00 p.m. (noon) Central time on Thursday, February 2, 238 
2012.  Maximum allowable proposal PDF size is 8MB, and proposals are to be limited to a total of 50 239 
pages or less.  A proposal is late if received any time after 12:00 p.m. Central time and will not be eligible 240 
for consideration. 241 
 242 
Questions regarding the information contained in this RFP should be submitted to Steve Smith at 243 
smiths@headwaterscorp.com.  A list of compiled Consultant questions and responses will be maintained 244 
on the Program web site (www.PlatteRiverProgram.org) in the same location as this RFP solicitation.   245 
 246 
RFP Schedule 247 
The ED Office expects to complete the selection process and award the work by approximately February 248 
20, 2012.  The following table represents the RFP schedule: 249 


 250 
Description Date Time (Central) 


Issue RFP January 12, 2012 NA 


Pre-proposal meeting January 24, 2012 1:00 PM 


Last day for respondents to submit 


questions regarding the RFP 
January 30, 2012 12:00 PM 


Proposals due from respondents February 2, 2012 12:00 PM 


Evaluation of proposals   February 2, 2012 to February 10, 2012 


Award of Work On or before February 20, 2012 


Start of Work Approximately March 15, 2012 


Completion of Work Approximately March 31, 2016 


 251 
 252 
 253 
Pre-Proposal Meeting 254 
A non-mandatory pre-proposal meeting of interested parties will be held on January 24, 2012 from 1:00 255 
to 2:00 p.m. Central Time via conference call for the purpose of familiarizing the respondents with the 256 
work scope and requirements included herein before submitting a response to this RFP.  Please email 257 
Steve Smith (smiths@headwaterscorp.com) for the conference call dial-in information along with a list of 258 
people from your party expected to join in the pre-proposal conference call by 12:00 p.m. Central time on 259 
January 20, 2012.   260 
 261 
The meeting will include a brief overview by the ED Office regarding the objectives of the project, the 262 
scope of services, and the timeline.  It is the Consultant’s responsibility, while at the pre-proposal 263 
meeting/conference call, to ask questions necessary to understand the RFP so the respondent can submit a 264 
proposal that is complete and in accordance with RFP requirements.  It is highly recommended that all 265 



mailto:smithc@headwaterscorp.com

mailto:smithc@headwaterscorp.com

http://www.platteriverprogram.org/

mailto:smithc@headwaterscorp.com





PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 9 of 11 


 


prospective Consultants participate in the pre-proposal meeting/conference call as there shall be no 266 
minutes distributed by the ED Office regarding the meeting.  267 
 268 
Proposal Content 269 
Proposals should respond to the following general topics: 270 
 271 
1) Executive summary that presents a brief firm overview that condenses and highlights the contents of 272 


the proposal in such a way as to provide a broad understanding of the Consultant’s qualifications and 273 
proposal.   274 
 275 


2) Project understanding that demonstrates the Consultant understands project goals and objectives 276 
and identifies issues critical to project success. 277 


 278 
3) Project approach that documents how the Consultant would organize and execute the scope of work 279 


detailed in this RFP and provides project team organization, resumes, and responsibilities and 280 
specifies which team members will work on each specific task. 281 


 282 
4) Qualifications and project experience relevant to this project including the involvement/role of the 283 


proposed team in those projects.  Be clear which team members will work on specific tasks outlined 284 
in the Project Approach and focus on those team members’ qualifications specific to assigned task. 285 


 286 
5) Schedule for completing the tasks identified in the project approach.  Include potential constraints or 287 


challenges based on the tasks described above. 288 
 289 


6) Compensation for services to complete the project for the term of the contract (i.e., 4 years of 290 
monitoring, data analysis, and reporting) – see Section III above for additional details.  Assumptions 291 
used must be clearly stated and a total estimated cost must be included.  Consultant must specify the 292 
estimated number of labor hours for each team member, billable rate and estimated direct expenses 293 
(e.g., travel), and total project cost to complete the each task/subtask detailed herein and Consultant’s 294 
other recommended or optional tasks.   295 


 296 
7) Conflict of interest statement addressing whether or not any potential conflict of interest exists 297 


between this project and other past or on-going projects, including any projects currently being 298 
conducted for the Program.   299 
 300 


8) Description of insurance shall be provided with the proposal.  Proof of insurance will be required 301 
before a contract is issued.  Minimum insurance requirements are described in the attached Program’s 302 
Consultant Contract (Attachment B).   303 


 304 
9) Acceptance of the terms and conditions as outlined in the attached Program’s Consultant Contract, 305 


or clear description of any exceptions to the terms and conditions.   306 
 307 
Criteria for Evaluating Proposals 308 
The GC will appoint a Proposal Selection Panel that will evaluate all proposals and select a Consultant 309 
based on the following principal considerations:  310 
 311 
1. Understanding of the overall objectives of the project and approach to meeting those objectives and 312 


addressing critical project tasks and issues. 313 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 10 of 11 


 


 314 
2. Qualifications and the relevant experience of the proposed project team members. 315 
 316 
3. Clarity and content of the project schedule, scope, and budget. 317 
 318 
Award Notice 319 
After completing the evaluation of all proposals and, if deemed necessary, interviews, the Proposal 320 
Selection Panel will select a Consultant.  That firm will negotiate with the ED Office to establish a fair 321 
and equitable contract.  If an agreement cannot be reached, a second firm will be invited to negotiate and 322 
so on.  If the Program is unable to negotiate a mutually satisfactory contract with a Consultant, it may, at 323 
its sole discretion, cancel and reissue a new RFP.   324 
 325 
Program Perspective 326 
The Program GC has the sole discretion and reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received in 327 
response to this RFP and to cancel this solicitation if it is deemed in the best interest of the Program to do 328 
so.  Issuance of this RFP in no way constitutes a commitment by the Program to award a contract, or to 329 
pay Consultant’s costs incurred either in the preparation of a response to his RFP or during negotiations, 330 
if any, of a contract for services.  The Program also reserves the right to make amendments to this RFP by 331 
giving written notice to Consultants, and to request clarification, supplements, and additions to the 332 
information provided by a Consultant.   333 
 334 
By submitting a proposal in response to this solicitation, Consultants understand and agree that any 335 
selection of a Consultant or any decision to reject any or all responses or to establish no contracts shall be 336 
at the sole discretion of the Program.  To the extent authorized by law, the Consultant shall indemnify, 337 
save, and hold harmless the Nebraska Community Foundation, the states of Colorado, Wyoming, and 338 
Nebraska, the Department of the Interior, members of the GC, and the ED Office, their employees, 339 
employers, and agents, against any and all claims, damages, liability, and court awards including costs, 340 
expenses, and attorney fees incurred as a result of any act or omission by the Consultant or its employees, 341 
agents, sub-Consultants, or assignees pursuant to the terms of this project.  Additionally, by submitting a 342 
proposal, Consultants agree that they waive any claim for the recovery of any costs or expenses incurred 343 
in preparing and submitting a proposal. 344 
 345 
VII. AVAILABLE INFORMATION  346 
The following pertinent Program-related documents can be accessed from the Program’s website 347 
(www.PlatteRiverProgram.org): 348 
 349 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Final Program Document.  October 24, 2006.   350 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program, Attachment 3: Adaptive Management Plan.  October 351 


24, 2006. 352 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Water Quality Monitoring Protocol. Submitted by 353 


EA Engineering, Science, and Technology, Inc. April 28, 2011. 354 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Final Annual Data Summary Report. Platte River 355 


Water Quality. 2009 Monitoring Season. Submitted by EA Engineering, Science, and Technology, 356 
Inc..  August 2010.   357 


 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Draft Annual Data Summary Report. Platte River 358 
Water Quality. 2010 Monitoring Season. Submitted by EA Engineering, Science, and Technology, 359 
Inc..  January 2011.    360 



http://www.platteriverprogram.org/





PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2011 


 


PRRIP Water Quality Monitoring and Data Analysis RFP Page 11 of 11 


 


 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Draft Kearney Canal Water Quality Monitoring 361 
Protocol. Submitted by EA Engineering, Science, and Technology, Inc. April 2011. 362 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 


 


 


 


Channel Geomorphology and In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


Office of the Executive Director 


4111 4
th
 Avenue, Suite 6 


Kearney, Nebraska 68845 


 


 


 


 


September 27, 2011 


 


 


 


 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 2 of 14 


 


 


Contents 


 


I. OVERVIEW .................................................................................................................................... 3 


II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION & SCOPE OF WORK ......................................................................... 6 


III. PROJECT BUDGET ..................................................................................................................... 10 


IV. FIELD AND OFFICE EQUIPMENT ............................................................................................ 10 


V. CONTRACT TERMS .................................................................................................................... 10 


VI. SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................................... 11 


VII. AVAILABLE INFORMATION .................................................................................................... 13 


 


Attachment A – PRRIP Channel Geomorphology and In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring Protocol 


Attachment B – PRRIP Consultant Contract 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP  Page 3 of 14 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 2 
 3 
SUBJECT:  Systematic Monitoring of Channel Geomorphology and In-4 


Channel Vegetation  5 
REQUEST DATE:    January 12, 2012 6 
PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING: January 24, 2012 7 
CLOSING DATE:   February 2, 2012 8 
POINT OF CONTACT:   Steve Smith 9 


Headwaters Corporation 10 
(720) 524-6115 11 
smiths@headwaterscorp.com 12 


 13 
I. OVERVIEW 14 
The Platte River Recovery Implementation Program (“Program” or “PRRIP”) was initiated on January 1, 15 
2007 between Nebraska, Wyoming, Colorado, and the Department of the Interior to address threatened 16 
and endangered species issues in the central and lower Platte River basin.  The species considered in the 17 
Program, referred to as “target species”, are the whooping crane, piping plover, interior least tern, and 18 
pallid sturgeon. 19 
 20 
A Governance Committee (GC) reviews, directs, and provides oversight for Program activities.  The GC 21 
is comprised of one representative from each of the three states, three water user representatives, two 22 
representatives from environmental groups, and two members representing federal agencies.  The GC has 23 
named Dr. Jerry Kenny to serve as the Program Executive Director (ED).  Dr. Kenny established 24 
Headwaters Corporation as the staffing mechanism for the Program.  Program staff is located in Nebraska 25 
and Colorado and are responsible for assisting in carrying out Program-related activities. 26 
 27 
In 2007, the Program began its 13-year First Increment.  The Program’s management objectives are to 1) 28 
improve survival of whooping cranes during migration, 2) improve least tern and piping plover 29 
production, and 3) avoid adverse impacts on pallid sturgeon in the Lower Platte River.  One of the 30 
Program’s management strategies to achieve these objectives is the Flow-Sediment-Mechanical (FSM) 31 
management strategy, which includes flow management, sediment management, and land management 32 
(e.g., mechanically consolidating flow paths to increase stream power and braided nature of the Platte 33 
River).  The second management strategy is the Mechanical Creation and Maintenance (MCM) strategy, 34 
which includes a combination of off-channel sandpit management, mechanical creation and maintenance 35 
of bare sand riverine islands, and creation and maintenance of inundated wetlands and upland areas.   36 
 37 
Adaptive management will be used to reduce uncertainty associated with the potential performance of 38 
management actions.  This will be achieved by explicitly acknowledging uncertainty in the form of 39 
alternative hypotheses of management action performance, and collecting and analyzing data to reduce 40 
uncertainty associated with Program hypotheses and related management actions.  The Program’s 41 
Adaptive Management Plan (“AMP”) will be implemented to learn more about the physical processes of 42 
the central Platte River and the response of the four target species to management actions.   43 
 44 
Several critical scientific and technical uncertainties about Program target species, physical processes, and 45 
the response of the target species to management actions will be the focus of the application of rigorous 46 
adaptive management in the First Increment through implementation of the Program’s AMP.  These 47 
uncertainties are captured in statements of broad hypotheses on pages 14-17 of the AMP and, as a means 48 



mailto:smiths@headwaterscorp.com





PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 4 of 14 


 


of better linking science learning to Program decision-making, those uncertainties comprise a set of “Big 49 
Questions” that provide a template for linking specific hypotheses and performance measures to 50 
management objectives and overall Program goals. 51 
 52 
Three “Big Questions” relate directly to river morphology and are influenced by in-channel vegetation: 53 


 Big Question #6 – How do short-duration high flows (SDHF), restoring sediment balance, and 54 
mechanical channel alterations contribute to the maintenance of channel width and creation of a 55 
braided river channel? 56 


 Big Question #7 – What is the relationship between SDHF, sediment balance, and tern and plover 57 
riverine nesting habitat meeting Program minimum criteria? 58 


 Big Question #8 – What is the relationship between SDHF, sediment balance, and whooping crane 59 
habitat meeting Program minimum criteria? 60 


 61 
Broad hypotheses directly related to river morphology and influenced by in-channel vegetation include: 62 
 63 
S-1: A combination of flow management, sediment management, and land management (i.e., 64 
Clear/Level/Pulse) will/will not generate detectable changes in the channel morphology of the Platte 65 
River on Program lands, and/or habitats for whooping crane, least tern, piping plover, pallid sturgeon, and 66 
other species of concern. 67 
 68 
S-2: A combination of non-managed flows, sediment management, and land management (i.e., 69 
Clear/Level/Mechanical Maintenance) will/will not generate detectable changes in the channel 70 
morphology of the Platte River, and/or habitats for whooping crane, least tern, piping plover, pallid 71 
sturgeon, and other species of concern. 72 
 73 
S-4: Program management actions will/will not be of sufficient scale and magnitude to cause detectable 74 
system wide changes in channel morphology and/or habitats for the target species. 75 
 76 
PP-1: Flows of varying magnitude, duration, frequency and rate of change affect the morphology and 77 
habitat quality of the river, including: 78 
 79 


 Flows of 5,000 to 8,000 cfs magnitude in the habitat reach for a duration of three days at 80 
Overton on an annual or near-annual basis will build sand bars to an elevation suitable for 81 
least tern and piping plover habitat;  82 


 Flows of 5,000 to 8,000 cfs magnitude in the habitat reach for a duration of three days at 83 
Overton on an annual or near-annual basis will increase the average width of the vegetation-84 
free channel;  85 


 Variations in flows of lesser magnitude will positively or negatively affect the sand bar 86 
habitat benefits for least terns and piping plovers. 87 


 88 
PP-2: Between Lexington and Chapman, eliminating the sediment imbalance of approximately 400,000 89 
tons annually in eroding reaches will:  90 
 91 


 Reduce net erosion of the river bed;   92 
 Increase the sustainability of a braided river;  93 
 Contribute to channel widening;  94 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 5 of 14 


 


 Shift the river over time to a relatively stable condition, in contrast to present conditions 95 
where reaches vary longitudinally between degrading, aggrading, and stable conditions; and  96 


 Reduce the potential for degradation in the north channel of Jeffrey Island resulting from 97 
headcuts. 98 


 99 
PP-3: Designed mechanical alterations of the channel at select locations can accelerate changes towards 100 
braided channel conditions and desired river habitat using techniques including:  101 
 102 


 Mechanically cutting the banks and islands to widen the channel to a width sustainable by 103 
program flows at that site, and distributing the material in the channel;  104 


 At specific locations, narrowing the river corridor and increasing stream power by consolidating 105 
over 85 percent of river flow into one channel will accelerate the plan form change from 106 
anastomosed to braided, promoting wider channels and more sand bars. 107 


 Clearing vegetation from banks and islands will help to increase the width-to-depth ratio of the 108 
river 109 


 110 
More detailed hypotheses that address uncertainty in underlying physical process relationships are 111 
formalized in the AMP as flow, sediment, and mechanical priority hypotheses (AMP, Table 2).  The 112 
Program recently refined the list of priority hypotheses.  Tier I physical process priority hypotheses 113 
include: 114 
 115 
Flow #1: ↑ the variation between river stage at peak (indexed by Q1.5 flow @ Overton) and average 116 
flows (1,200 cfs index flow), by ↑ the stage of the peak (1.5-yr) flow through Program flows, will ↑ the 117 
height of sand bars between Overton and Chapman by 30% to 50% from existing conditions.   118 
 119 
Flow #3: ↑ Q1.5 with Program flows will ↑ local boundary shear stress and frequency of inundation @ 120 
existing green line (elevation at which riparian vegetation can establish).  These changes will ↑ riparian 121 
plant mortality along margins of channel, raising elevation of green line.  Raised green line = more 122 
exposed sand bar area and wider unvegetated main channel. 123 
 124 
Flow #5: ↑ magnitude and duration of flow will ↑ riparian plant mortality along the margins of the river.  125 
There will be different relations (graphs) for different species. 126 
 127 
Sediment #1: Average sediment augmentation near Overton of 185,000 tons/yr under existing flow 128 
regime and 225,000 tons/yr under GC proposed flow regime achieves a sediment balance to Kearney. 129 
 130 
Mechanical #2: ↑ the Q1.5 in the main channel by consolidating 85% of the flow, and aided by Program 131 
flow and a sediment balance, flows will exceed stream power thresholds that will convert main channel 132 
from meander morphology in anastomosed reaches to braided morphology with an average braiding index 133 
> 3. 134 
 135 
Several Program protocols are being implemented to monitor target species, habitat, and physical 136 
processes to better understand interrelationships and provide data for evaluating species response to 137 
management actions.  This RFP is related to the Program’s protocol for channel geomorphology and in-138 
channel vegetation monitoring.  Information from this protocol will be used to help evaluate the linkages 139 
between land and water management activities of the Program, and effects on the Central Platte’s channel 140 
geomorphology (e.g., river planform, width-to-depth ratio, and sand bar creation and maintenance) and 141 
in-channel vegetation.   142 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 6 of 14 


 


 143 
The GC submits this Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit proposals from Consultants to implement the 144 
Program’s protocol for monitoring channel geomorphology and in-channel vegetation in the central Platte 145 
River (Nebraska).  The term Consultant shall be used throughout this document to describe both the RFP 146 
Respondent providing the proposal and the Consultant (the successful Respondent) who would be 147 
performing the work upon award of the project. 148 
 149 
This RFP describes a multi-year program of work encompassing annual channel geomorphology 150 
and in-channel vegetation monitoring activities once a year (end of summer when flows are 151 
relatively low) from summer 2012 through summer 2015. Annual budgets for implementing the 152 
protocol will be developed in conjunction with the selected Consultant. A four-year program of 153 
monitoring and reporting will begin in 2012, with potential extension beyond 2015. Under the final 154 
contract, annual written Notice to Proceed from the Program ED Office will be required before 155 
work begins. All work will be contingent on availability of Program funding. 156 
 157 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION & SCOPE OF WORK 158 
The Consultant will rigorously implement the Program’s Channel Geomorphology and In-Channel 159 
Vegetation Monitoring Protocol (see Attachment A) for the Program’s approximate 95-mile associated 160 
habitat within the Central Platte River.  As described in the Protocol (Attachment A), 25 system-wide 161 
anchor points will be sampled each year.  Each anchor point will include several transects sampled 162 
systematically to determine representative in-channel geomorphology and vegetation characteristics.  The 163 
Protocol provides extensive detail about the study area, timing, and survey/data collection methods.  164 
Consultants responding to this RFP should provide information detailing their ability to implement all 165 
aspects of the Protocol. 166 
 167 
Monitoring Tasks 168 
In particular, potential Consultants should be aware of the following details related to implementation of 169 
the Protocol: 170 
 171 
1) The area of interest for geomorphology and vegetation monitoring is the Program’s associated habitat 172 
area, which consists of channels within an area 3.5-miles either side of the centerline of the Platte River 173 
from the junction of U.S. Highway 283 and Interstate 80 near Lexington, Nebraska, to Chapman, 174 
Nebraska (approximately 95 miles).  175 
 176 
2) Timing of annual monitoring should occur during an annual low flow (ideally between 250 and 500 177 
cfs) that typically occurs between July 1 and August 31.  This will maximize the amount of data available 178 
to track changes in channel topography and vegetation.  Although monitoring will ideally be completed 179 
during low flows, monitoring will be completed annually even in years when flows remain high.  180 
Consultants’ proposals should demonstrate their ability to complete annual monitoring at a variety of flow 181 
levels. 182 
 183 
3) Anchor points have been placed along the centerline of the main channel of the Platte River at 184 
approximately 2.5-mile intervals, and each point has been labeled with a UTM location and U.S. Army 185 
Corps of Engineers river mile.  Geomorphology and in-channel vegetation monitoring will use these 186 
anchor points and the accompanying geomorphology and vegetation transects as the basic sampling unit 187 
for data collection and analyses.  A total of 40 anchor points have been established within the area of 188 
interest.  Anchor points sampled in any given year will include 20 pure panel anchor points that are 189 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 7 of 14 


 


sampled each year (approximately 5 miles apart), and 5 rotating panel anchor points.  There are 4 groups 190 
of rotating anchor points, and each group will be revisited once every four years. 191 
 192 
4) Channel Geomorphology Monitoring – designed to document trends in channel geomorphology 193 
throughout the First Increment.  Monitoring will focus on measuring and tracking changes in river 194 
plandform, cross-section geometry, longitudinal bed profile, sediment loads, and grain size distribution.  195 
A group of three transects at 500 foot spacing, with the middle transect centered each of anchor point, will 196 
be used to survey topography. 197 
 198 
5) In-channel Vegetation Monitoring – designed to provide system-wide status in areal coverage and 199 
elevation range of in-channel seedling and invasive vegetation.  Vegetation monitoring will be conducted 200 
at the same pure panel and rotating panel anchor points as the geomorphology survey.  Seven linear 201 
vegetation transects spaced approximately 165 feet apart will be monitored at each of the anchor points, 202 
with three of the transects corresponding with the three geomorphology transects.  Vegetation monitoring 203 
data will be collected for all vegetation species, but data will be analyzed and reported only for Program 204 
species of interest.  Current vegetation species of interest include woody vegetation less than 1.5 meters 205 
tall, including willows, cottonwood, false indigo, sltcedar, and Russian olive, as well as purple lossestrife, 206 
phragmites, and cattails. 207 
 208 
6) Monitoring data to be collected by the Consultant will include topographic ground and vegetation 209 
surveys, bed material surveys, ground photography, flow measurements, and sediment transport 210 
measurements.  Additional data to be provided to the Consultant for analysis includes color-infrared 211 
(CIR) orthophotography and light detection and ranging (LiDAR).  Two annual sets of aerial photographs 212 
will be provided: early summer (May-June), and late fall (November-December).  Annual LiDAR data 213 
will also be provideded, which will be collected concurrently with aerial photographs during the late fall.  214 
Data from the Program’s 1-dimensional hydraulic model (e.g., stage-discharge rating curves) will also be 215 
provided to the Consultant to assist in the data analysis (described in the following section).   216 
 217 
Data Analysis 218 
The successful Consultant will be expected to provide an analysis of collected channel geomorphology 219 
and in-channel vegetation data in accordance with data needs as directed by the ED Office.  A data 220 
analysis plan is currently being developed by the ED Office and the existing channel geomorphology and 221 
in-channel vegetation monitoring contractor.  The following table summarizes data analyses that will be 222 
completed, and relates each of the analyses to the pertinent Program broad hypothesis.  Specific analyses 223 
and protocols for analyses will be detailed in the forthcoming data analysis plan.   224 
 225 
 226 
 227 
 228 
 229 
 230 
 231 
 232 
 233 
 234 
 235 
 236 
 237 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 8 of 14 


 


Program Hypothesis Supporting Data Analyses 


S-1: A combination of flow management, sediment 


management, and land management (i.e., 


Clear/Level/Pulse) will/will not generate detectable 


changes in the channel morphology of the Platte River 


on Program lands, and/or habitats for whooping crane, 


least tern, piping plover, pallid sturgeon, and other 


species of concern. 


 Total channel width at Program reference 


flows 


 Wetted width at Program reference flows  


 Width-to-depth ratio at Program reference 


flows  


 Unvegetated channel width at Program 


reference flows 


 Braiding index at Program reference flows 


S-2: A combination of non-managed flows, sediment 


management, and land management (i.e., 


Clear/Level/Mechanical Maintenance) will/will not 


generate detectable changes in the channel morphology 


of the Platte River, and/or habitats for whooping crane, 


least tern, piping plover, pallid sturgeon, and other 


species of concern. 


 Total channel width at Program reference 


flows 


 Wetted channel width at Program reference 


flows  


 Unvegetated channel width at Program 


reference flows 


 Width-to-depth ratio at Program reference 


flows  


 Braiding index at Program reference flows 


S-4: Program management actions will/will not be of 


sufficient scale and magnitude to cause detectable 


system wide changes in channel morphology and/or 


habitats for the target species. 


 Total channel width at Program reference 


flows 


 Wetted channel width at Program reference 


flows  


 Braiding index at Program reference flows 


 Reach-averaged width-to-depth ratio at 


Program reference flows  


 Longitudinal profile (e.g., change in thalweg 


elevation and channel slope) 


 Reach-averaged channel volume 


PP-1: Flows of varying magnitude, duration, frequency 


and rate of change affect the morphology and habitat 


quality of the river, including: 


 Flows of 5,000 to 8,000 cfs magnitude in the habitat 


reach for a duration of three days at Overton on an 


annual or near-annual basis will build sand bars to an 


elevation suitable for least tern and piping plover 


habitat;  


 Flows of 5,000 to 8,000 cfs magnitude in the habitat 


reach for a duration of three days at Overton on an 


annual or near-annual basis will increase the average 


width of the vegetation-free channel;  


 Variations in flows of lesser magnitude will 


positively or negatively affect the sand bar habitat 


benefits for least terns and piping plovers. 


 Sand bar height (e.g., bed relief index) 


 Total channel width at Program reference 


flows 


 Unvegetated channel width at Program 


reference flows 


 Green line elevation relative to Program 


reference flows 


 Green line elevation relative to peak annual 


flow 


 Green line elevation relative to flow 


frequency during vegetation germination 


season 


 Vegetation percent cover 


 Vegetation species elevation relative to 


Program reference flows 


PP-2: Between Lexington and Chapman, eliminating the 


sediment imbalance of approximately 400,000 tons 


annually in eroding reaches will:  


 Reduce net erosion of the river bed;   


 Sediment load 


 Bed and bar material grain size distribution 


 Bank material grain size distribution 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 9 of 14 


 


Program Hypothesis Supporting Data Analyses 


 Increase the sustainability of a braided river;  


 Contribute to channel widening;  


 Shift the river over time to a relatively stable 


condition, in contrast to present conditions where 


reaches vary longitudinally between degrading, 


aggrading, and stable conditions; and  


 Reduce the potential for degradation in the north 


channel of Jeffrey Island resulting from headcuts. 


 Channel volume 


 Braiding index at Program reference flows 


 Longitudinal profile 


 Total channel width at Program reference 


flows 


 Wetted width at Program reference flows 


PP-3: Designed mechanical alterations of the channel at 


select locations can accelerate changes towards braided 


channel conditions and desired river habitat using 


techniques including:  


 Mechanically cutting the banks and islands to widen 


the channel to a width sustainable by program flows 


at that site, and distributing the material in the 


channel 


 At specific locations, narrowing the river corridor 


and increasing stream power by consolidating over 


85 percent of river flow into one channel will 


accelerate the plan form change from anastomosed to 


braided, promoting wider channels and more sand 


bars 


 Clearing vegetation from banks and islands will help 


to increase the width-to-depth ratio of the river 


 Braiding index at Program reference flows 


 Total channel width at Program reference 


flows  


 Wetted channel width at Program reference 


flows  


 Width-to-depth ratio at Program reference 


flows  


 Unvegetated channel width at Program 


reference flows 


 Vegetation percent cover 


Flow 1: ↑ the variation between river stage at peak 


(indexed by Q1.5 flow @ Overton) and average flows 


(1,200 cfs index flow), by ↑ the stage of the peak (1.5-


yr) flow through Program flows, will ↑ the height of 


sand bars between Overton and Chapman by 30% to 


50% from existing conditions. 


 Sand bar height (e.g., bed relief index) 


Flow #3: ↑ Q1.5 with Program flows will ↑ local 


boundary shear stress and frequency of inundation @ 


existing green line (elevation at which riparian 


vegetation can establish).  These changes will ↑ riparian 


plant mortality along margins of channel, raising 


elevation of green line.  Raised green line = more 


exposed sand bar area and wider unvegetated main 


channel. 


 Unvegetated channel width at Program 


reference flows 


 Vegetation percent cover 


 Green line elevation relative to peak annual 


flow 


 Green line elevation relative to flow 


frequency during vegetation germination 


season 


Flow #5: ↑ magnitude and duration of flow will ↑ 


riparian plant mortality along the margins of the river.  


There will be different relations (graphs) for different 


species. 


 Green line elevation relative to peak annual 


flow 


 Green line elevation relative to flow 


frequency during vegetation germination 


season 


 Vegetation percent cover 


 Vegetation species elevation relative to 


Program reference flows 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 10 of 14 


 


Program Hypothesis Supporting Data Analyses 


Sediment #1: Average sediment augmentation near 


Overton of 185,000 tons/yr under existing flow regime 


and 225,000 tons/yr under GC proposed flow regime 


achieves a sediment balance to Kearney. 


 Sediment load 


 Bed and bar material grain size distribution 


 Bank material grain size distribution 


 Channel volume 


 Braiding index at Program reference flows 


 Longitudinal profile 


Mechanical #2: ↑ the Q1.5 in the main channel by 


consolidating 85% of the flow, and aided by Program 


flow and a sediment balance, flows will exceed stream 


power thresholds that will convert main channel from 


meander morphology in anastomosed reaches to braided 


morphology with an average braiding index > 3. 


 Braiding index at Program reference flows 


 238 
 239 
Reporting 240 
The successful Consultant will generate a draft (Microsoft Word) and final (Microsoft Word and PDF) 241 
report at the completion of each monitoring season that includes methods, results, data analysis (as 242 
requested by the Program), photographs of field work, and other associated data.  Reports will be 243 
delivered electronically to the ED Office for review and comment by the ED Office and the Program’s 244 
Technical Advisory Committee.  The Consultant will be responsible for uploading annual monitoring data 245 
to the Program’s online database in a format consistent with other Program data.  The successful 246 
Consultant will also be required to prepare for, attend, develop an Executive Summary for, and deliver a 247 
presentation at the Program’s annual AMP Reporting Session generally held in Denver, CO in early 248 
March of each year. 249 
 250 
III. PROJECT BUDGET 251 
An estimated project budget should be submitted in the proposal, on a not-to-exceed time and expense 252 
basis for the work to be completed.  A final budget will be established as part of the Project Scoping and 253 
Kickoff and will depend upon the budget estimate provided in the proposal for the selected Consultant.   254 
 255 
Proposals will be evaluated on criteria described in Section V below, including understanding of the 256 
objectives of the project, qualifications of the team members, and clarity/content of project schedule, 257 
scope, and budget.  The work will not be awarded based solely on a lowest cost basis.   258 
 259 
IV. FIELD AND OFFICE EQUIPMENT 260 
Potential Consultants will own or acquire all field and office equipment and software required to 261 
implement the In-channel Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring Protocol.  262 
  263 
V. CONTRACT TERMS 264 
The selected Consultant will be retained by:  Nebraska Community Foundation 265 
 PO Box 83107  266 
 Lincoln, NE 68501  267 
 268 
Proposal should indicate whether the Consultant agrees to the contract terms, as outlined in the attached 269 
Program’s Consultant Contract (Attachment B), or provides a clear description of any exceptions to the 270 
terms and conditions. 271 
 272 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 11 of 14 


 


The initial term of the contract will be for a period beginning in March 2012 and terminating in March 273 
2016 with an option to renew at the sole discretion of the GC.  Contracted services will be performed on a 274 
time and material not to exceed basis.  Under the final contract, written Notice to Proceed from the ED 275 
will be required before works begins.  All work will be contingent on availability of Program funding. 276 
 277 
VI. SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 278 
All interested parties having experience providing the services listed in this RFP are requested to submit a 279 
proposal. 280 
 281 
Instructions for Submitting Proposals 282 
One electronic copy of your proposal must be submitted in PDF format to Steve Smith at 283 
smiths@headwaterscorp.com no later than 12:00 p.m. (noon) Central time on Thursday, February 2, 284 
2012.  Maximum allowable proposal PDF size is 8MB, and proposals are to be limited to a total of 50 285 
pages or less.  A proposal is late if received any time after 12:00 p.m. Central time and will not be eligible 286 
for consideration. 287 
 288 
Questions regarding the information contained in this RFP should be submitted to Steve Smith at 289 
smiths@headwaterscorp.com.  A list of compiled Consultant questions and responses will be maintained 290 
on the Program web site (www.PlatteRiverProgram.org) in the same location as this RFP solicitation.   291 
 292 
RFP Schedule 293 
The ED Office expects to complete the selection process and award the work by approximately February 294 
20, 2012.  The following table represents the RFP schedule: 295 


 296 
Description Date Time (Central) 


Issue RFP January 12, 2012 NA 


Pre-proposal meeting January 24, 2012 1:00 PM 


Last day for respondents to submit 


questions regarding the RFP 
January 30, 2012 12:00 PM 


Proposals due from respondents February 2, 2012 12:00 PM 


Evaluation of proposals   February 2, 2012 to February 10, 2012 


Award of Work On or before February 20, 2012 


Start of Work Approximately March 15, 2012 


Completion of Work Approximately March 31, 2016 


 297 
 298 
 299 
Pre-Proposal Meeting 300 
A non-mandatory pre-proposal meeting of interested parties will be held on January 24, 2012 from 1:00 301 
to 2:00 p.m. Central Time via conference call for the purpose of familiarizing the respondents with the 302 
work scope and requirements included herein before submitting a response to this RFP.  Please email 303 
Steve Smith (smiths@headwaterscorp.com) for the conference call dial-in information along with a list of 304 
people from your party expected to join in the pre-proposal conference call by 12:00 p.m. Central time on 305 
January 20, 2012.   306 
 307 
The meeting will include a brief overview by the ED Office regarding the objectives of the project, the 308 
scope of services, and the timeline.  It is the Consultant’s responsibility, while at the pre-proposal 309 
meeting/conference call, to ask questions necessary to understand the RFP so the respondent can submit a 310 



mailto:smithc@headwaterscorp.com

mailto:smithc@headwaterscorp.com

http://www.platteriverprogram.org/

mailto:smithc@headwaterscorp.com





PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 12 of 14 


 


proposal that is complete and in accordance with RFP requirements.  It is highly recommended that all 311 
prospective Consultants participate in the pre-proposal meeting/conference call as there shall be no 312 
minutes distributed by the ED Office regarding the meeting.  313 
 314 
Proposal Content 315 
Proposals should respond to the following general topics: 316 
 317 
1) Executive summary that presents a brief firm overview that condenses and highlights the contents of 318 


the proposal in such a way as to provide a broad understanding of the Consultant’s qualifications and 319 
proposal.   320 
 321 


2) Project understanding that demonstrates the Consultant understands project goals and objectives 322 
and identifies issues critical to project success. 323 


 324 
3) Project approach that documents how the Consultant would organize and execute the scope of work 325 


detailed in this RFP and provides project team organization, resumes, and responsibilities and 326 
specifies which team members will work on each specific task. 327 


 328 
4) Qualifications and project experience relevant to this project including the involvement/role of the 329 


proposed team in those projects.  Be clear which team members will work on specific tasks outlined 330 
in the Project Approach and focus on those team members’ qualifications specific to assigned task. 331 


 332 
5) Schedule for completing the tasks identified in the project approach.  Include potential constraints or 333 


challenges based on the tasks described above. 334 
 335 


6) Compensation for services to complete the project for the term of the contract (i.e., 4 years of 336 
monitoring, data analysis, and reporting) – see Section III above for additional details.  Assumptions 337 
used must be clearly stated and a total estimated cost must be included.  Consultant must specify the 338 
estimated number of labor hours for each team member, billable rate and estimated direct expenses 339 
(e.g., travel), and total project cost to complete the each task/subtask detailed herein and Consultant’s 340 
other recommended or optional tasks.   341 


 342 
7) Conflict of interest statement addressing whether or not any potential conflict of interest exists 343 


between this project and other past or on-going projects, including any projects currently being 344 
conducted for the Program.   345 
 346 


8) Description of insurance shall be provided with the proposal.  Proof of insurance will be required 347 
before a contract is issued.  Minimum insurance requirements are described in the attached Program’s 348 
Consultant Contract (Attachment B).   349 


 350 
9) Acceptance of the terms and conditions as outlined in the attached Program’s Consultant Contract, 351 


or clear description of any exceptions to the terms and conditions.   352 
 353 
Criteria for Evaluating Proposals 354 
The GC will appoint a Proposal Selection Panel that will evaluate all proposals and select a Consultant 355 
based on the following principal considerations:  356 
 357 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 13 of 14 


 


1. Understanding of the overall objectives of the project and approach to meeting those objectives and 358 
addressing critical project tasks and issues. 359 


 360 
2. Qualifications and the relevant experience of the proposed project team members. 361 
 362 
3. Clarity and content of the project schedule, scope, and budget. 363 
 364 
Award Notice 365 
After completing the evaluation of all proposals and, if deemed necessary, interviews, the Proposal 366 
Selection Panel will select a Consultant.  That firm will negotiate with the ED Office to establish a fair 367 
and equitable contract.  If an agreement cannot be reached, a second firm will be invited to negotiate and 368 
so on.  If the Program is unable to negotiate a mutually satisfactory contract with a Consultant, it may, at 369 
its sole discretion, cancel and reissue a new RFP.   370 
 371 
Program Perspective 372 
The Program GC has the sole discretion and reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received in 373 
response to this RFP and to cancel this solicitation if it is deemed in the best interest of the Program to do 374 
so.  Issuance of this RFP in no way constitutes a commitment by the Program to award a contract, or to 375 
pay Consultant’s costs incurred either in the preparation of a response to his RFP or during negotiations, 376 
if any, of a contract for services.  The Program also reserves the right to make amendments to this RFP by 377 
giving written notice to Consultants, and to request clarification, supplements, and additions to the 378 
information provided by a Consultant.   379 
 380 
By submitting a proposal in response to this solicitation, Consultants understand and agree that any 381 
selection of a Consultant or any decision to reject any or all responses or to establish no contracts shall be 382 
at the sole discretion of the Program.  To the extent authorized by law, the Consultant shall indemnify, 383 
save, and hold harmless the Nebraska Community Foundation, the states of Colorado, Wyoming, and 384 
Nebraska, the Department of the Interior, members of the GC, and the ED Office, their employees, 385 
employers, and agents, against any and all claims, damages, liability, and court awards including costs, 386 
expenses, and attorney fees incurred as a result of any act or omission by the Consultant or its employees, 387 
agents, sub-Consultants, or assignees pursuant to the terms of this project.  Additionally, by submitting a 388 
proposal, Consultants agree that they waive any claim for the recovery of any costs or expenses incurred 389 
in preparing and submitting a proposal. 390 
 391 
VII. AVAILABLE INFORMATION  392 
The following pertinent Program-related documents can be accessed from the Program’s website 393 
(www.PlatteRiverProgram.org): 394 
 395 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Final Program Document.  October 24, 2006.   396 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program, Attachment 3: Adaptive Management Plan.  October 397 


24, 2006. 398 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program,.  October 24, 2006. 399 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Monitoring the Channel Geomorphology and In-400 


Channel Vegetation of the Central Platte River. April 23, 2010.  401 
 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Year 1 (2009) Report. Channel Geomorphology and 402 


In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring of the Central Platte River.  Prepared by Ayres Associates and 403 
Olsson Associates.  February 2010.   404 



http://www.platteriverprogram.org/





PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/27/2011 


 


PRRIP Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring RFP Page 14 of 14 


 


 Platte River Recovery Implementation Program: Year 2 (2010) Report. Channel Geomorphology and 405 
In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring of the Central Platte River.  Prepared by Ayres Associates and 406 
Olsson Associates.  March 2011.   407 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE MEMORANDUM   


 


PRRIP RBJV Sole-Source Memo  Page 1 of 2 


 


TO:  Governance Committee 


FROM:  Executive Director’s Office 


SUNJECT: Sole-Source Recommendation – Tern, Plover, & Whooping Crane Habitat Availability 


Analysis 


DATE:  November 29, 2011 


 


Request 


The ED Office (EDO) requests the Governance Committee (GC) approve entering into a contract with the 


Rainwater Basin Joint Venture (RBJV) for completion of tern and plover (LTPP) and whooping crane 


(WC) habitat availability analyses in the central Platte River associated habitats for the 2007 and 2012 


(LTPP) and 2007 through 2012 (WC) nesting/migration seasons.  Funding for work under this agreement 


is estimated at $143,227 and would come from Program budget line item IMRP-6 (Habitat Availability 


Analysis), if approved by the GC in December 2011. 


 


Summary of work to be performed: 


 Addition of years 2007 and 2012 to current least tern and piping plover habitat availability analysis 


(current scope is 2008-2011) 


 Whooping crane habitat availability analysis for 2007-2012 (six analysis years) 


 


This request will be discussed with the Technical Advisory Committee during their November 30, 2011 


meeting in Denver. 


 


Background 


In May 2011, the Governance Committee approved entering into a sole-source agreement with RBJV to 


perform tern and plover habitat availability analysis (TPHAA) using remote sensing.  In October 2011, 


RBJV presented results from the first year of tern and plover analysis to the TAC.  The RBJV discussed 


the methodology and shared the results, which were received well by the TAC.  The EDO believes the 


same techniques can be applied in analyzing habitat availability for whooping cranes, and contacted the 


RBJV to assess their interest in the project and to discuss a project approach.    


 


Initial habitat parameters for whooping cranes have not been developed to the same level of detail by the 


Program as has the tern and plover parameters.  As such, the EDO proposed to RBJV a much more 


collaborative project approach than was presented for the 2008-2011 TPHAA.  The EDO asked the RBJV 


to develop a scope and fee that provided for time and equipment commitment sufficient to perform 


analysis similar to the TPHAA, but with criteria not yet defined (and expected to be more complicated).  


With this approach, the TAC will retain a great deal of flexibility in the project as they actively define 


WC habitat parameters in 2012.  The proposed agreement would be set up as an effort-based not-to-


exceed agreement that will span from approximately January 2012 through June 2013.  Under this 


agreement, the RBJV will perform TPHAA for 2007 and 2012, create land cover classification of annual 


aerial photography pertinent to whooping crane habitat for 2007 through 2012, create and employ a 


variety of data inputs such as channel widths and unobstructed view widths, make use of Program LiDAR 


and 1D model outputs, and combine all of these pieces to create a spatial model of habitat availability for 


whooping cranes.   


 


The RBJV has extensive experience with spatial modeling and imagery analysis which are key 


components of the habitat availability analysis.  Imagery analysis requires very expensive specialized 


software and requires high-powered computers, and even then can take multiple days of computer 


processing time to complete.  The RBJV already possesses the specialized hardware and software 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE MEMORANDUM   


 


PRRIP RBJV Sole-Source Memo  Page 2 of 2 


 


necessary to perform the work, have been doing these types of analyses for a number of years, and have 


already successfully applied these skills to the TPHAA for the Program. 


 


The RBJV’s project area, being located in south-central Nebraska adjacent to much of the PRRIP 


associated habitats, offers familiarity with the habitats found in the Platte basin and experience modeling 


these habitats.  Some of the analyses performed by RBJV in the past (aside from PRRIP’s TPHAA) 


include modeling of potential sandhill crane roost habitat, lesser prairie chicken habitat, and quality and 


availability of habitat for migratory waterfowl in the Rainwater Basins.  There is a fair amount of skill 


involved in refining results of the computer modeling process so familiarity with the area will be very 


valuable in producing the best analysis possible.  RBJV’s physical location near the central Platte will 


make for a stronger working relationship with the Program through the EDO and TAC. 


 


Budget Estimate 


Table 1 below provides detail on budget categories and estimated costs for performing the tern and plover 


and whooping crane habitat availability analysis work described above.  The work to be covered by the 


agreement described in this memo would be for completing all tern/plover and whooping crane habitat 


availability analysis from 2007 through 2012.  That work would be completed in an 18-month timeframe 


with a total estimated cost of $143,227.  Funding for annual habitat availability analysis in 2013 and 


beyond is estimated at $20,000 and could be conducted by RBJV through an amendment to this 


agreement or possibly completed by the EDO depending on the results of the 2007-2012 work.  All of 


these funding estimates are built into budget line item IMRP-6 in the Program budget being discussed at 


the December 2011 GC meeting. 


 


Table 1. Budget estimates for completing all 2007-2012 tern/plover and whooping crane habitat 


availability analyses. 
Project Items Time / Unit Cost 2012 2013 Total Cost


Tern and Plovers (Two Analysis Years 2007 


& 2012) technician time 600 hrs x $15/hr  $          6,000  $         3,000  $              9,000 
Whooping Cranes (Six Analysis Years 2007 - 


2012) technician time 6,255 hrs x $15/hr  $         62,550  $       31,275  $            93,825 


Computer Hardware 1 time / $18,300  $         18,300  $              -    $            18,300 


Workstations 1 time / $7,000  $          7,000  $              -    $              7,000 


RWBJV Analyst; Quality 


Assessment/Quality Control for Datasets 600 hrs x $25.17/hr  $         10,068  $         5,034  $            15,102 


Totals  $       103,918  $       39,309  $    143,227  








PRRIP – ED OFFICEFINAL  11/28/2011 
 


 Page 1 of 5 
 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 
Land Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 2 
Executive Director's Office – Kearney, NE  3 


October 26, 2011 4 
 5 


 6 
Attendees 7 
Mark Czaplewski, Interim Chair, Local Nebraska Rep (Central Platte Natural Resources District) 8 
Jerry Kenny – Executive Director 9 
Bruce Sackett – ED Office 10 
Justin Brei – ED Office 11 
Jason Farnsworth – ED Office 12 
Tim Tunnell – ED Office 13 
Matt Rabbe – U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 14 
Ted LaGrange – State of Nebraska, Nebraska Game & Parks Commission 15 
Jennifer Schellpeper – State of Nebraska, Nebraska Dept. of Natural Resources 16 
Harry LaBonde – State of Wyoming, Wyoming State Engineer’s Office 17 
John Shadle – Downstream Water Users, Nebraska Public Power District 18 
Jim Jenniges – Downstream Water Users, Nebraska Public Power District 19 
Brock Merrill – U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (by phone) 20 
Kevin Urie – State of Colorado, Denver Water (by phone) 21 
Suzanne Sellers – State of Colorado, Colorado Water Conservation Board (by phone) 22 
Jonas Davis – Environmental Groups, Ducks Unlimited (by phone) 23 
Bill Taddicken – Environmental Groups, Audubon Rowe Sanctuary 24 
John Heaston – Environmental Groups, The Nature Conservancy 25 
Jim Bendfeldt – Local Nebraska Rep (Joint CPNRD/TBNRD) 26 
David Raffety – Local Nebraska Rep (Tri-Basin Natural Resources District) 27 
 28 
 29 
Welcome and Administrative 30 
Chairman Czaplewski called the meeting to order at 9:00 am Central Time and the group 31 
proceeded with introductions.  32 
 33 
Czaplewski asked for agenda modifications.  None were provided.  34 
 35 
Czaplewski requested a moment of silence in recognition of the passing of the Land Advisory 36 
Committee’s former chairman, Scott Woodman. 37 
 38 
LaBonde made a motion to approve the minutes from the August 26, 2011 LAC meeting, as 39 
modified. The motion was seconded by Rabbe and passed unanimously. 40 
 41 
GC Meeting Update 42 
Czaplewski updated the LAC on recent GC activity.  The GC met on September 13 & 14 in 43 
Scottsbluff, NE and held a conference call on October 18.  The GC had much discussion related 44 







PRRIP – ED OFFICEFINAL  11/28/2011 
 


 Page 2 of 5 
 


to the Platte River caddisfly with respect to the Program.  The GC asked the ED Office to 45 
prepare a proposal by June 2012 to ask the ISAC for recommendations on dealing with the PRCF 46 
in the Program.  The ED Office will consider planned tree clearing projects in PRCF areas low in 47 
priority for the time being.  The GC discussed progress on the proposed reregulating reservoir 48 
near J-2 Return on the Platte River east of Lexington, NE and formed a committee to begin 49 
negotiating the agreement among the partners of the project.   50 
 51 
In land-related GC action, the GC approved proceeding with appraisals and negotiations on tract 52 
0832 and 0901.  The GC accepted the LAC’s recommendation to cease pursuit of tracts 1105 and 53 
1107.  The GC approved providing a 14-day offer to a neighbor of tract 2009008 to resolve a 54 
boundary dispute and instructed the ED Office to construct a fence on the survey boundary if an 55 
agreement is not reached.  The GC approved an excavation project on tract 2011001 where a 56 
contractor will remove fill material from the area and create off-channel tern and plover nesting 57 
habitat in exchange for the material.   58 
 59 
LaGrange asked for further clarification on the discussion of Platte River caddisfly.  Farnsworth 60 
said there are currently two known PRCF populations on Program lands that could be impacted 61 
by tree clearing.  Those projects are still planned, but will be considered a low priority for 62 
execution until further information or instruction is available. 63 
 64 
The GC meets next on December 6 & 7, 2011 in Denver, CO, and will hold a conference call on 65 
November 18 to discuss the draft 2012 budget. 66 
 67 
Other Committee Coordination Information 68 
Farnsworth updated the LAC on recent TAC activities.  The TAC last met on October 5 & 6.  69 
The TAC elected to have the recent directed vegetation research project peer-reviewed, and 70 
recommended a 3-person peer review panel to the GC.  Contractors working on the sediment 71 
augmentation feasibility and pilot project presented an update to the TAC.  The project will not 72 
augment enough sediment for full reversal of the degradation, but the monitoring efforts should 73 
show a slowing of the effects.  The TAC also had a presentation by a contractor who is 74 
assembling a comprehensive database of whooping crane sightings from approximately 1940 to 75 
date.  The TAC approved a request for proposals for implementation of the geomorphology and 76 
in-channel vegetation monitoring protocol.  The current three-year contract expires this year.  77 
The TAC (and subsequently the GC) approved continued participation in the whooping crane 78 
telemetry project, and reviewed the TAC portion of the draft 2012 Program budget. 79 
 80 
Kenny updated the LAC on recent WAC activities.  The WAC met last on October 25 in Casper, 81 
WY.  The WAC is continuing to refine optimization of J-2 reregulating reservoir operations, and 82 
discussed the agreement progress with Nebraska DNR, CNPPID, and PRRIP.  The project has a 83 
potential yield of about 40,000 acre-feet, of which 30,000 AF is for Program use and 10,000 AF 84 
is for use by Nebraska DNR.  The Program has a groundwater recharge demonstration project 85 
under way.  A small 0.5-acre recharge pit was constructed and is being operated and intensely 86 
monitored through spring 2012.  The WAC has reconvened a subgroup working on water 87 
management incentives to start moving that alternative forward.  The WAC discussed the North 88 







PRRIP – ED OFFICEFINAL  11/28/2011 
 


 Page 3 of 5 
 


Platte chokepoint where, despite significant efforts to date including vegetation spraying and 89 
biomass removal, flow capacity has not improved.  The next step is to examine a few potentially 90 
under-sized culverts in a side-channel around the chokepoint. 91 
 92 
Czaplewski noted that, as vice-chair, he assumed the role of interim chairman for this meeting 93 
and that regular elections for the positions in 2012 will be held in December.  If you’re interested 94 
in either position, contact Bruce Sackett. 95 
 96 
Heaston said that the environmental groups are reorganizing their committee roles and he will 97 
likely be transitioning from the LAC to the WAC.  As a result he may no longer be able to serve 98 
as the GC-LAC liaison, and the LAC will need to recommend a replacement at the December 99 
meeting. 100 
 101 
Executive Session 102 
Shadle moved to go into executive session with LAC members, alternates, and technical 103 
staff to review details of land offerings.  The motion was seconded by LaGrange. The 104 
motion carried and the committee entered executive session at 9:34 a.m. 105 
 106 
Heaston moved to come out of executive session.  LaBonde seconded and the motion 107 
carried. The committee came out of executive session at 10:40 a.m. 108 
 109 
Czaplewski suggested that a small group be formed to recommend a plan for disposition of the 110 
east part of tract 2009008.  John Heaston will chair the group, and the members are: Rabbe, 111 
Czaplewski, Jenniges, Bendfeldt, Taddicken.  The group will consider what portion of the tract 112 
to keep and what to do with any excess portion, including irrigated acres.  Kenny and Heaston 113 
will coordinate with the WAC on recommendations for retiring irrigated acres. 114 
 115 


Sackett said that when 2011001 was purchased, the GC directed the USFWS and the LAC to 117 
form a recommendation on what should be done with the portion of tract 2011001 east of the 118 
highway.  USFWS has provided a letter recommendation to the LAC, recommending that part of 119 
the tract be retained as non-complex off-channel nesting habitat (Tract A, 62 acres approx.), and 120 
that part of the tract be considered excess (Tract B, 48 acres approx.).   121 


Revisit 2011001 East Portion 116 


 122 
The LAC had some discussion of whether or not to sell Tract B with a no-build easement.  123 
Sackett said with the tract’s location and current market conditions, a no-build easement is not 124 
likely to significantly affect the value.  The LAC discussed whether or not a no-build easement 125 
would have to be “counted” towards Program goals.  LaBonde would argue that a no-build 126 
easement is not the same as a management easement and should not count towards Program 127 
goals.  Heaston said that, if counting is an issue for the Governance Committee, the easement 128 
rights could be donated to another entity – such as The Nature Conservancy – who could then be 129 
the holder of the no-build easement after the property is sold.   130 
 131 







PRRIP – ED OFFICEFINAL  11/28/2011 
 


 Page 4 of 5 
 


Rabbe moved to recommend that the GC consider Tract B as excess acres and begin the 132 
process of sale with a no-build easement, including the possibility of donation of said 133 
easement to another environmental entity, and to recommend that the Program retain 134 
Tract A as non-complex land.  Motion seconded by Taddicken.  Heaston abstained.  Motion 135 
passed. 136 
 137 
Discuss 1109 Land Review 138 
Details of the land evaluation were discussed in executive session.  Shadle moved to accept the 139 
evaluation team recommendation and recommend that the GC continue pursuit of tract 140 
1109 as complex habitat.  Motion seconded by Urie and passed unanimously. 141 
 142 
Public Access Program Update 143 
Brei introduced Ryan Chramosta with the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission.  Ryan is 144 
administering the Program’s public access policy for NGPC, including visiting the properties 145 
frequently and ensuring user compliance with the access policy.  Ryan updated the LAC on 146 
what’s happened so far and the plans for the future.  Properties that are in the public access 147 
program have been posted with a number of signs and parking areas have been constructed.  The 148 
website has been created and is being fine-tuned.  A small test was run prior to October 1 where 149 
several people were asked to reserve sites and provide feedback.  Currently all sites are closed 150 
from October 1 through November 15 for whooping crane migration.  Chramosta also discussed 151 
the process for the November firearm deer season on Program property, from November 16 152 
through November 20.  Applications are being accepted for a lottery drawing through October 153 
31.  Names will be randomly drawn from valid applications to fill available permission slots.  As 154 
of the LAC meeting, 55 applications have been received.  A press release for this lottery drawing 155 
was issued statewide, so many more are expected.  Chramosta gave some general information on 156 
how the public contacts have gone so far.  He said often he relays the allowed activities (deer 157 
hunting, turkey hunting, bird watching, fishing, hiking, mushroom hunting), answering questions 158 
on why certain activities are or are not allowed, and giving other general access program 159 
information.  The website where sites can be reserved and permission slips obtained is 160 
http://www.platteaccess.org.  The site is currently down for maintenance during the whooping 161 
crane migration and should be available in mid-November to make reservations for dates after 162 
November 20.  LaGrange asked if requests have been received for activities other than hunting.  163 
Chramosta said most requests are for hunting.   164 
 165 
LaBonde requested that Chramosta come to the LAC in February after the hunting seasons and 166 
update the LAC again on the experience.     167 
 168 
Land Shaping and Potential Sale of Material at East 2011001 169 
Sackett and Brei updated the LAC on work in progress at 2011001.  Hooker Brothers of Grand 170 
Island, NE is removing the top three feet of soil to use as fill for some of their projects.  In 171 
exchange for the fill, Hooker Brothers is excavating an additional five feet in a “moat” 172 
configuration and placing the excavated sand in the center to form off-channel nesting habitat for 173 
terns and plovers for no cost.   174 
 175 



http://www.platteaccess.org/�





PRRIP – ED OFFICEFINAL  11/28/2011 
 


 Page 5 of 5 
 


Present Work in Progress 176 
Tunnell updated the LAC on recent activities on Program lands.  The update was accompanied 177 
by several pictures of work being discussed.   178 
 179 
Present 2012 Proposed Budget in Progress 180 
Sackett and Farnsworth updated the LAC on land-related line items for the 2012 Program 181 
budget, and the schedule for approval.  The FC go through the budget on November 9, and the 182 
GC will then go through the budget on November 18.  Any changes will be incorporated prior to 183 
final GC approval in December.   184 
 185 
Farnsworth walked the LAC through the line items related to land activities.  186 
LP-2:  AMP-related on the ground actions 187 
LP-3:  Land acquisition 188 
LP-4:  Operations and maintenance activities (fence, noxious weeds, etc) 189 
LP-6:  Special advisors (mostly ag-related) 190 
LP-7:  Platte River Recreation Access Program (public access to Program lands) 191 
PD-13:  Sediment augmentation activities including construction, monitoring, & consulting fees 192 
PD-15:  Permitting 193 
PD-19:  Flow consolidation at Cottonwood Ranch (partial implementation in 2012) 194 
PD-20:  2009001 wet meadow restoration 195 
IMRP-4, 5:  Flow-Sediment-Mechanical “proof of concept” experiment.  Construction activities 196 
and intensive monitoring efforts 197 
 198 
LaBonde asked for further information on the special advisors line item (LP-6).  Sackett said this 199 
is primarily agricultural land management consultants for cropped and grazed areas.  These 200 
consultants take care of leases (crop and grazing), sharecropping agreements, coordinate with 201 
tenants on appropriate practices (ie. no residuals for properties slated for grassland restoration), 202 
coordinate with grazing tenants to move cattle according to Program goals, etc.  LaBonde asked 203 
if this line item will go away when the Program sells or converts the cropland areas.  Sackett said 204 
the line item will likely decrease, but there will always be some cost associated with 205 
management of grazing operations.  Kenny said that the number in the current 2012 budget draft 206 
will be adjusted based on actual 2011 expenditures.   207 
 208 
Farnsworth said that a more detailed budget and work plan will be developed for the LAC’s next 209 
meeting.   210 
 211 


Chairman Czaplewski asked for public comments, none were offered. 213 
Public Forum/Next Meeting 212 


 214 
The next meeting of the LAC will be held via conference call on Monday, November 28, 215 
2011 at 9:00 a.m. central time.   216 
 217 
Closing Business 218 
With no further business, the meeting was adjourned by Chairman Czaplewski at 12:30 p.m. 219 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 11 


 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 
Water Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 2 


C’Mon Inn – Casper, WY 3 
October 25, 2011 4 


 5 
 6 


Meeting Attendees 7 
 8 


Water Advisory Committee (WAC)   Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 9 
State of Wyoming     Jerry Kenny, Executive Director (ED) 10 
Mike Besson – Member     Beorn Courtney 11 
Matt Hoobler – Alternate    Steve Smith 12 
       Sira Sartori 13 
State of Colorado     Matthew Welsh 14 
Suzanne Sellers  - Member    Bruce Sackett (call-in) 15 
 16 
State of Nebraska 17 
Pat Goltl – Alternate      18 
 19 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) 20 
Tom Econopouly – Member 21 
Jeff Runge – Alternate 22 
        23 
Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) 24 
Mahonri Williams – Member 25 
Brock Merrill – Alternate 26 
 27 
Downstream Water Users 28 
Cory Steinke – Member (WAC Chair)  29 
Duane Woodward – Member 30 
Jeff Shafer – Member 31 
Mike Drain – Alternate 32 
 33 
Colorado Water Users 34 
Jon Altenhofen – Member 35 
 36 
Environmental Groups 37 
Duane Hovorka – Alternate 38 
Larry Hutchinson – Alternate 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 11 


 


 


Welcome and Administrative:  Cory Steinke, WAC Chair 48 


Introductions were made.  There were no agenda modifications.  Sartori stated that all requested 49 


changes to the Draft July WAC Minutes were incorporated into the current version.  Altenhofen 50 


requested a grammatical revision to lines 74 and 75.  The July WAC Minutes were approved 51 


with modifications discussed during the meeting.     52 
 53 


Hydrologic Conditions Data:  Sira Sartori, ED Office 54 


Sartori explained the Draft Hydrologic Condition Designation Memorandum that was distributed 55 


to the WAC by the ED Office prior to the meeting.  The ED Office has compiled annual and 56 


periodic hydrologic designations that are used to determine Service target flows.  Periodic 57 


designations are at monthly to tri-monthly time-steps.  Sartori explained the methodology that 58 


was used by the Service to develop the annual designations from 1947 to 1994 data.  Since 1994 59 


the hydrologic condition has been based on designated flow thresholds for the applicable period.  60 


Periodic designations from June 2007 through present are available on the PRRIP website under 61 


“Hydrologic Conditions.”  Don Anderson, formerly with the Service, calculated the periodic 62 


designations from 1994 to 2009, and the ED Office has calculated the periodic designations since 63 


December 2009.  Altenhofen requested that the ED Office post the Memorandum on the PRRIP 64 


website.   65 


 66 


Woodward stated that CPNRD requested this information from the ED Office.  Courtney added 67 


that several other Program partners have also requested the historical monthly designations and 68 


explained that monthly information is not available before 1995.  Econopouly asked whether the 69 


ED Office could compare Anderson’s pre-2006 monthly designations to the designations that 70 


would be calculated using the current methodology.  Sartori was unsure whether the necessary 71 


data would be available.  Econopouly requested that the ED Office attach Anderson’s 2006 72 


Journal of American Water Resources Association (JAWRA) article explaining the periodic 73 


hydrologic condition designation approach as an appendix to the Memorandum.  Steinke asked 74 


about the current “normal” designations given the relatively wet conditions.  Sartori explained 75 


that there are only “dry” and “not dry” designations for some periods; in these instances the ED 76 


Office labels “not dry” as “normal” as was done by Anderson.  The ED Office will update the 77 


Hydrologic Condition Memorandum and post it to the PRRIP website on the hydrologic 78 


conditions page. 79 


 80 
WAP Project Updates:  Beorn Courtney, ED Office 81 


Courtney thanked Besson and Hoobler on behalf of the WAC for yesterday’s tour of Pathfinder 82 


Reservoir. 83 


 84 
J2 Reregulating Reservoir – The Program and the Nebraska Department of Natural Resources 85 


(NDNR) are continuing to negotiate a three-party sponsorship agreement with the CNPPID.  86 


Courtney explained that Olsson and the ED Office have been evaluating CNPPID’s request to 87 


use the J2 Reregulating Reservoir during the irrigation season to improve system efficiency.  The 88 


recommended alternative for meeting CNPPID’s request is to dedicate Area 2 of the 89 


Reregulating Reservoir to irrigation operations from June 15 to August 31.  If Area 2 is 90 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 11 


 


 


unavailable to the Program during that period, Olsson’s model shows the average yield will be 91 


reduced by approximately 6%.  The costs associated with this alternative are relatively small as 92 


compared to the other alternatives presented by Olsson.  The J2 Reregulating Reservoir project 93 


will continue into the feasibility design stage with short duration high flows (SDHFs), target 94 


flows, hydrocycling mitigation, and irrigation season uses by CNPPID.  The yields from a total 95 


of nine scenarios have been compared to the baseline yield, evaluated at an hourly time-step with 96 


Olsson’s model.  Courtney stated that the hourly analyses are maximizing the capabilities of the 97 


current models.  Olsson is evaluating incremental costs related to the expansion of the J2 98 


Reregulating Reservoir. 99 


 100 


The next step of the project is a feasibility level design and opinion of probable costs, anticipated 101 


to be complete in early 2012.  CNPPID and the ED Office have started working on the water 102 


supply permitting process. Altenhofen asked about the capacity of the pumping plant.  Steinke 103 


reported that the capacity would be 300 cfs.  Several scenarios are still being considered and the 104 


ED Office will be following up with Olsson and the workgroup in the coming week.   105 


 106 


Ground Water Recharge – Courtney reported that Bill Hahn, special advisor to the ED Office, 107 


has completed the numerical modeling for the project.  The excavation of the recharge basin was 108 


completed in late September.  Recharge operations commenced on October 3
rd


.  CNPPID and 109 


EA Engineering, Science, and Technology (EA) are collecting the monitoring data.  The 110 


preliminary data suggests that the infiltration rate of the recharge basin is approximately one-half 111 


of what was predicted, while the infiltration rate of the Phelps canal is approximately double 112 


what was predicted.  The meter on the line to the recharge basin will be replaced since the 113 


pumping rate is at the low end of the operating range for the meter currently installed.  Courtney 114 


discussed the status of the proposed Data Evaluation Plan.  EA will complete the Data 115 


Evaluation Plan with preliminary check point submittals.  The workgroup has a field visit to the 116 


project site scheduled for November 8
th


.  Steinke has agreed to provide intermittent preliminary 117 


field data to the workgroup as often as possible.  Altenhofen asked about the details of field work 118 


to date.  Steinke elaborated on the observed problems with the propeller meter that is being used 119 


to measure flows to the recharge basin and explained that the new meter will be installed soon.  120 


Steinke reported that the infiltration rate in the canal is approximately 5 cfs per mile.  There is 121 


approximately 40 to 50 cfs being diverted to the Phelps canal, as measured with the Parshall 122 


flume.  The water level in the canal is approximately 0.5 feet below the top of the canal to 123 


provide a buffer for precipitation events. 124 


 125 


Water Leasing & Water Management Incentives (WMI) – The Water Leasing and Water 126 


Management Incentives workgroups had a combined conference call on October 3, 2011.  The 127 


purpose of the call was to discuss the general status of these two Water Action Plan projects, to 128 


receive input from workgroup members on future activities, and to discuss methodologies to 129 


evaluate yield from potential projects.  Two landowners with property located in NPPD’s system 130 


are interested in leasing water to the Program.  The water right is under NPPD, and therefore 131 


NPPD would need to submit a temporary transfer for the relinquished acres to an instream use 132 


for the PRRIP.  Woodward has been assisting with the analysis of these potential lease 133 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 11 


 


 


agreements because the parcels will subsequently be irrigated with groundwater.  The 134 


workgroups agreed that it will be beneficial for the ED Office to continue working through the 135 


water leasing process for these projects.  The workgroups discussed opportunities to collaborate 136 


with Platte Basin Habitat Enhancement Project (PBHEP).  Kenny stated that the ED Office has a 137 


meeting with PBHEP scheduled in January 2012.  Woodward suggested that Kenny speak with 138 


Mark Czaplewski at CPNRD about PBHEP collaboration.  Kenny stated that PBHEP 139 


collaborates with NRCS programs that provide incentives and funding to farmers for removing 140 


lands from irrigation or crop production on a temporary or permanent basis.  Most Federal 141 


programs usually have a 10 to 15 year agreement, while PBHEP allows for more permanent 142 


agreements.  Kenny stated that most PBHEP agreements have been tied to acreage and that water 143 


yields still need to be quantified.  Altenhofen asked whether the NPPD water could be stored in 144 


the Environmental Account in Lake McConaughy.  Shafer stated that the surface water available 145 


for lease is a natural flow right and could not be stored in Lake McConaughy.   146 


 147 


Altenhofen asked if CPNRD would evaluate the effects of increased groundwater pumping 148 


associated with the irrigation of the lands formerly irrigated with NPPD surface supplies.  149 


Woodward responded that wells have existed on these lands for a number of years.  Since 150 


groundwater use will increase, they will use COHYST to evaluate the stream depletion 151 


associated with historical and future conditions. 152 
 153 
WAP Projects & Lake McConaughy Storage:  Beorn Courtney, ED Office and Mike Drain, 154 


CNPPID 155 


Drain described the types of permits that CNPPID has for the Environmental Account and other 156 


storage rights in Lake McConaughy.  He also explained that in Nebraska you need an additional 157 


permit to actually use the stored water.  The Environmental Account is a storage use permit.  158 


There is not a separate storage permit for the Environmental Account, as all of CNPPID’s 159 


storage rights are pooled together.  NPPD has a storage appropriation that allows water to be 160 


exchanged from Sutherland Reservoir to Lake McConaughy.  CNPPID had to modify their 161 


storage use permit to allow use for fish and wildlife and instream flows.  The volume of 162 


Environmental Account storage in Lake McConaughy is calculated as 10% of the storable 163 


natural inflows with 100,000 ac-ft and 200,000 ac-ft caps.  Drain added that the Program 164 


Agreement also has language regarding the storage of water from Tamarack, Net Controllable 165 


Conserved Water (NCCW), and Wyoming projects.  For example, water from the Pathfinder 166 


Reservoir will be released and stored in Lake McConaughy.  When Lake McConaughy is 167 


spilling, the Environmental Account resets to 100,000 ac-ft.  Drain reported that NCCW has 168 


been stored in the Environmental Account for seven years.  Drain indicated that there are legal 169 


questions with regard to whether NPPD’s water can be transferred to CNPPID’s Environmental 170 


Account.  All water stored in the Environmental Account is lumped together regardless of the 171 


source, as it would have been difficult to fairly account for which water was spilled when the 172 


account resets to 100,000 ac-ft after spilling. 173 


 174 


 175 


 176 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 11 


 


 


Choke Point:  Steve Smith, ED Office 177 


Smith gave an update on the analyses of the North Platte choke point and Kearney area flow 178 


capacity.  Flow capacity is important because it may limit SDHF releases from the 179 


Environmental Account in Lake McConaughy.  Smith indicated that the goal is to have a SDHF 180 


release in 2013.  Smith reviewed the ranked alternatives that were presented at the July WAC 181 


meeting.  As requested at the July WAC meeting, Smith completed sensitivity testing with the 182 


sediment transport model.  Smith summarized the recent shifts to the stage-discharge curve for 183 


the North Platte River at North Platte gage and stated that the NDNR plans to revise the official 184 


rating table in November.  The shifts suggest that capacity at the flood stage of 6.00 feet 185 


increased during high flows of summer 2011.  The maximum flood stage capacity was 186 


approximately 2,300 cfs and the current capacity is approximately 1,800 cfs.  Drain noted that 187 


the increased capacity may have been a short-term phenomenon and may not exist after flows 188 


decrease and the stream bed aggrades.   189 


 190 


The Program document states that releases, whether for SDHF or to reduce shortages to target 191 


flows, cannot cause river flows to exceed the flood stage.  The Army Corps of Engineers has 192 


been documenting flood levels in North Platte, and Smith will compare their observations to the 193 


6.00 feet flood stage that was defined by the National Weather Service.  This will shed light on 194 


who gets wet at what flows, and help to pinpoint problem areas.  Drain stated that Nebraska law 195 


requires reservoir owners to pay for damages caused by flooding.  Therefore, releases from the 196 


Environmental Account that have the potential to increase flows above the flood stage are 197 


concerning for CNPPID.  Sellers suggested that flood leases be considered for lands that would 198 


potentially be flooded by Program reservoir releases. 199 


 200 


Smith reported on the results of the sensitivity analysis of the sediment transport model.  201 


Sensitivity test results indicate that aggradation/degradation is consistently sensitive to sediment 202 


inputs, but that results vary with hydrologic inputs (i.e., less aggradation in some areas but more 203 


aggradation in other areas).  Additionally, differences between sensitivity runs seem to 204 


equilibrate near the Highway 83 Bridge, suggesting that the system is in sediment equilibrium.  205 


This indicates that sediment management would not necessarily lead to an increased capacity at 206 


the choke point.  It was speculated that the proliferation of Phragmites in the 1990s may have 207 


trapped the sediment.  Steinke reported that the maximum flow through North Platte in 2011 was 208 


5,700 cfs. 209 


 210 


Smith outlined potential structural and institutional solutions to the choke point.  Structural 211 


options include drainage improvements and levee construction.  One drainage improvement 212 


involves increasing the capacity of culverts along North River Road west of Highway 83 to 213 


convey ponded water that gets trapped behind driveways to private properties in the area.  These 214 


new culverts could potentially restore a historic flow path along the north bank of the river, and 215 


increase capacity at flood stage.  The flows would be routed to the east under Highway 83 and to 216 


an existing ditch that runs west to east along Hall School Road toward Whitehorse Creek. 217 


Lincoln County Roads has discussed this option with landowners who are agreeable to such a 218 


project.  But Lincoln County Roads does not have funding for these types of projects, and the 219 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 11 


 


 


federal government will not provide assistance because they are county roads.  Smith estimated 220 


that the improvements would cost approximately $1,500 per culvert site, and assuming 221 


approximately 10 driveways, the total cost would be less than $20,000.  If pursued in greater 222 


detail, then Smith suggested that a local engineering firm be hired to evaluate potential sites and 223 


complete preliminary design during 2012.  The landowners may be willing to cooperate and 224 


potentially share the cost given the recent flooding problems on their property.  Kenny stated that 225 


capacity increases associated with Phragmites removal has largely been maximized. 226 


 227 


Besson asked whether this would subsequently flood downstream landowners.  Kenny stated that 228 


there is a large undeveloped wet-meadow area downstream.  Runge pointed out that a 404 permit 229 


may be needed for this type of project, and if there are enough sites then an individual permit 230 


may be required. 231 


    232 


Smith presented earthen levees as another potential structural solution.  Given that part of the 233 


flooding issues in this area are a result of ground water, the overall effectiveness of levees may 234 


be limited. 235 


 236 


Institutional solutions include developing flood easements, modifying the Program document to 237 


allow flows to go past initial flood stage to moderate or major flood stage; or modifying the 238 


National Weather Service flood stage.  Smith recommended pursuing drainage improvements 239 


and modifications to the NWS flood stage.  Smith will follow up with the Lincoln County Roads 240 


Department about the feasibility of the drainage improvements.  241 


 242 


The flood stage at the Kearney gage is also 6.00 feet.  Flows have exceeded flood stage in 2008, 243 


2010, and 2011.  Smith indicated that local officials view 6.00 feet as overly conservative and 244 


they do not get concerned with river levels until the stage exceeds 7.00 feet.  The last event with 245 


a stage in excess of 7.00 feet was in 2008.  Even during 2008 high flows above 7.0 feet, there 246 


were only minimal effects (access limited to some properties) that property owners were not 247 


overly concerned about.  The USGS doesn’t plan to update the Kearney rating curve because 248 


they do not think there is a trend in the data.  Smith will follow up with the USGS on the shift 249 


trends he is seeing, and get the USGS’ interpretation of the trend. 250 


 251 


Runge asked about the level of interest by Program participants to consider the acceptable level 252 


of risk associated with EA releases for SDHFs.  Given the five day travel time to Kearney, there 253 


is potential for other operations or runoff events that could add to a Program release enough to 254 


increase flow above flood stage at Kearney.  Runge noted the long-term decline in flood channel 255 


capacity at flood stage near Kearney. The channel capacity at flood stage was at 12,340 cfs in 256 


1984, and there was a steady decline in capacity to 5,900-7,090 cfs in 2010. Runge also stated 257 


that, since the decline in channel capacity is long-term, the observed short-term improvements 258 


may be temporary similar to what was observed at the North Platte gage. Runge asked Smith to 259 


continue monitoring trends in gage shifts at Kearney.  Runge asked how much of the change in 260 


capacity is related to sediment transport versus Phragmites removal through flows and weed 261 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 11 


 


 


removal.  Kenny agreed that we should continue monitoring gage shifts.  Goltl suggested that 262 


Smith also look at 2009 and 2010 seasonal shifts at Kearney. 263 


 264 


Kenny pointed out that the North Platte choke point has been the focus on ED Office’s efforts 265 


since it is more restrictive than Kearney.  The ED Office will continue to monitor other choke 266 


points, but will focus on the bigger issues.   267 
 268 
Study of the Platte River Appropriation Status:  Duane Woodward, CPNRD 269 


Woodward presented on CPNRD and NDNR’s investigation of the approach for fully 270 


appropriated (FA) and over appropriated (OA) designations.  This presentation was postponed 271 


during the July 2011 WAC meeting due to time constraints.   272 


 273 


Legislature Bill 962 that was passed in 2004 requires that appropriation statuses must be 274 


evaluated annually before January 1
st
.  If FA status is determined then an Integrated Management 275 


Plan (IMP) must be completed within 3-5 years.  CPNRD started working on the IMP in 2009 276 


and needs to quantify the difference between FA and OA as required by LB 962.  The existing 277 


methodology does not determine the OA-FA difference, so CPNRD and NDNR have led the 278 


effort to develop a standardized methodology.  Their approach was to research what is being 279 


implemented elsewhere in the western U.S., identify the desired elements of the method, and 280 


develop a system for testing the method.   281 


 282 


The proposed method involves creating a virgin flow hydrograph that is meant to reflect the 283 


water supply without any diversions.  Virgin flow is calculated by adding surface water 284 


consumptive uses and ground water depletions to gaged streamflow data.  The virgin flow 285 


records are then used to create flow duration curves.  All surface water and ground water 286 


demands, including instream flows, are then compiled into a demand hydrograph and demand 287 


flow duration curve.  The demand curve is then compared to the virgin flow curve to evaluate the 288 


percentage of time that the virgin flow exceeds the demands.  If demands are less than the 289 


supply, then the system is not fully appropriated.  If demands exceed supply then the system may 290 


be fully or over appropriated and additional analyses are required. 291 


 292 


The interim report will be available for review and comment soon.  Woodward expects the report 293 


to be posted on the NDNR website.  Once approved, the rulemaking process will begin.   294 


 295 


Hutchinson asked whether there would be a peer review on the report being completed by HDR 296 


and Flatwater.  Woodward responded no, but public comment will allow for review during 297 


rulemaking.  Hovorka asked whether there would be a specific exceedance value that represented 298 


OA and FA.  Woodward explained that Texas uses a 75/75 exceedance rule (i.e., 75% of the 299 


demands would be met 75% of the time) to define fully appropriated (total demands versus 300 


virgin supply).  Woodward’s presentation is available on the NDNR website. 301 


 302 


2012 Draft Water Plan Budget:  Jerry Kenny and Beorn Courtney, ED Office 303 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 11 


 


 


Kenny reviewed the budget work plans that were distributed to the WAC prior to the meeting.  304 


Some of the work plans have subsequently been updated since being distributed.  The ED Office 305 


will distribute the updated budget to the WAC.  The 2012 budget will need to be approved at 306 


the December Governance Committee (GC) meeting.  There will be a preliminary GC meeting 307 


on November 18
th


.  There will be a Finance Committee session on the 2012 budget prior to the 308 


November meeting.  Kenny requested input from the WAC prior to the Finance Committee 309 


meeting.  Kenny summarized each of the Water Plan (WP) Implementation line items in the 310 


2012 budget.   311 


 312 


WP-1:  This task relates to active channel capacity improvements and has two sub-tasks. 313 


WP-1(a):  This sub-task pertains to the North Platte choke point.  As evidenced earlier during the 314 


meeting, future investigations are needed to evaluate opportunities to increase channel capacity 315 


through North Platte and other choke points.  Drainage improvements discussed above may 316 


require the hiring of a local engineering firm.  Another consultant may also be needed to evaluate 317 


the hydraulics of the north channel.  The budget request for this sub-task is $200,000. 318 


WP-1(b):  This sub-task pertains to the reach from the CNPPID diversion dam to Grand Island.  319 


The budget request would provide for an additional year of contributions to the Platte Valley and 320 


West Central Weed Management Area.  The budget request for this sub-task is $200,000.  The 321 


Program contributed funds in 2010 and 2011.  The 2012 funding would allow the project to be 322 


largely completed.  Funding after 2012 will be related to maintenance activities with a funding 323 


requirement between $50,000 to $100,000, declining over time to $50,000 and then remaining at 324 


that level.   325 


 326 


Altenhofen requested that the ED Office include a summary of previous expenditures in the 327 


WAP work plan summaries.  Kenny referred Altenhofen to the GC summary spreadsheets that 328 


have the expenditures from previous years (distributed at each GC meeting).  Kenny indicated 329 


that the work plan formats currently distributed reflect what was requested by the GC in previous 330 


years.  The more detailed spreadsheet with previous expenditures will be distributed along 331 


with the future drafts of the Work Plan summaries, but not included in the work plan 332 


summaries themselves.  333 


 334 
In an October 18 e-mail, the Service requested additional funding under WP-1(b) to develop a 335 


monitoring program, similar to WP-1(a), to ensure that channel capacity improvements are 336 


providing the desired channel conveyance. Runge noted that, given the long-term decline in 337 


channel capacity, it may be beneficial to have this monitoring in place. Members of the WAC 338 


asked for clarification on the additional studies, and revisited the monitoring that was conducted 339 


for the 2009 flow routing test.  Kenny also noted there may be places in the budget as drafted to 340 


support such studies upon further clarification by the Service and input from the WAC. The ED 341 


Office will continue monitoring trends in gage shifts at the Kearney gage. Runge and Drain 342 


discussed whether other choke points would warrant similar investigations in the future even if 343 


3,000 cfs at North Platte is achieved. 344 


 345 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 11 


 


 


WP-4: Advancing WAP projects from the feasibility stage.  Kenny indicated that the numbers 346 


are hard to estimate due to unknowns of how far projects will actually advance, such as if the J2 347 


Reregulating Reservoir project progresses.  The Program has historically asked for a maximum 348 


value in case projects advance faster than anticipated.  Funds are disbursed very conservatively, 349 


which leads to the perception that additional funds are not needed.  There is a federal reserve that 350 


needs to be drawn down or else it will be reassigned to other projects.  The current estimate of 351 


$2,200,000 includes $2,000,000 for the J2 Reregulating Reservoir and $200,000 for ground 352 


water recharge.  Altenhofen asked what was spent in 2011.  Kenny responded $0.  The J2 353 


Reregulating Reservoir work to date has been under WP-6 since it has not progressed past the 354 


feasibility stage.  Drain deferred to the recommendations being provided by the GC regarding the 355 


best approach to maximizing federal funding.  Williams inquired about the definition of new 356 


money requested.  Kenny explained that any unexpended money is not rolled over to the next 357 


year.  However, there is a “reserve” of unexpended federal dollars.  As previously discussed, that 358 


reserve will need to be drawn down before a large sum of new funds is requested.  Colorado 359 


keeps its money in the Nebraska Community Foundation holding entity. Wyoming keeps their 360 


funds in their own account and disburses quarterly as requested by the Program.  Federal funding 361 


is appropriated, but an expenditure request must be submitted for a specific amount and then it is 362 


electronically transferred. 363 


 364 


WP-5:  Management tool.  Upon completion of COHYST, the Program may need to buy or be 365 


trained to use software, or to build additional components into the model for the ED Office to 366 


make such runs.  COHYST will reportedly be completed before end of year with peer review 367 


thereafter.  Modeling will be useful for the Water Leasing and WMI projects.  COHYST may not 368 


provide the resolution required for specific projects.  The budget request for this task is 369 


$200,000. 370 


 371 


Altenhofen asked where Runge’s discussion items that were emailed to the WAC would be 372 


included in the budget.   (Runge’s discussion items pertained to hydraulic modeling and 373 


probabilistic modeling).  Kenny stated that these types of projects could be funded by WP-2 or 374 


under the special advisor task (WP-8) if they were completed by someone other than the ED 375 


Office.  The projects could also be viewed as a feasibility or miscellaneous study.  Runge would 376 


like to gauge the level of support for these projects prior to categorizing the requests.  377 


 378 


WP-6:  Feasibility studies.  The Program will continue to evaluate water leasing and WMI 379 


projects ($100,000) and groundwater management ($100,000). 380 


 381 


WP-7:  Water acquisitions.  If Pathfinder Reservoir is completed and the municipal agreement is 382 


executed, then the upfront payment will be $1,958,400.  Other acquisitions may also become 383 


available, so the total budget request for this task is $2,500,000. 384 


 385 


WP-8:  Water advisors.  The program intends to continue using three special advisors: Bill Hahn 386 


for ground water modeling, George Omeck for economics, and Tara Schutter for civil.  The 387 


budget request for 2012 was reduced to $150,000 based on previous expenditures.   388 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 11 


 


 


 389 


WP-9:  Miscellaneous Water Resources Studies.  The budget request for this task is $50,000. 390 


 391 


Kenny completed the 2012 budget discussion.  Kenny encouraged WAC members to discuss the 392 


budget items with their GC representatives. 393 


 394 


Runge reinitiated the choke point discussion.  Runge suggested potentially using HEC-RAS to 395 


back-calculate release flow targets and confirm a realistic estimate for the SDHF target at 396 


Overton.  Hovorka recalled that 3,000 was a rough estimate at the time it was selected.  Courtney 397 


discussed similar investigations that were completed in the past.  These were not hydraulic 398 


models, but water budget models.  Courtney asked if the objective was defined well enough to 399 


warrant a new tool as opposed to modifying existing tools.  Drain feels that the ED Office has 400 


always been able to complete these types of analyses in an acceptable manner in the past.  Runge 401 


believes the new model would help identify other choke points.  Smith noted that an unsteady 402 


hydraulic model already exists.  The consensus was that another consultant does not need to be 403 


hired to complete this work.  The ED Office will complete these types of analyses with 404 


cooperation from involved entities. 405 


 406 


Runge initiated a discussion about the willingness of the WAC to approach flood stage flows 407 


with the SDHF and other Program releases.  Econopouly added to the discussion about the time 408 


lag between the release at Lake McConaughy to the habitat, and the potential effect of a 409 


precipitation event during the transit period.  Runge and Econopouly would like to quantitatively 410 


evaluate the potential for a significant rainfall event during the transit period to determine what 411 


buffer may be required between the SDHF release and the flood capacity for the Kearney, North 412 


Platte, and other potential chokepoints.  Runge believes such an analysis would be useful for 413 


policy makers.  Smith asked how much of this modeling has already been completed by the 414 


NWS.  Econopouly indicated that while NWS may be completing the analysis, it would be 415 


helpful to have a consultant to advance the analysis.  Drain stated that the Program has 416 


historically assumed that NWS would evaluate the precipitation effects and define the buffer 417 


required.  Besson agreed.  The WAC is reluctant to be involved with defining the buffer due to 418 


liability concerns.  Besson pointed out that this issue will need to be discussed extensively if 419 


flood leases are pursued.  Flooding was a major concern for all parties when the Agreement was 420 


reached.  Drain noted that the J2 Reregulating Reservoir has been the focus for SDHFs since it 421 


does not involve flooding issues at the North Platte choke point.  Econopouly is recommending 422 


the development of a hydrologic model that uses a range of precipitation design storms to route 423 


the flows to see the effect of precipitation.  Steinke believes that these types of analyses were 424 


completed for the flow routing test.  The WAC requested more time to think about this issue, and 425 


Steinke pointed out that the issue will come down to the GC’s level of comfort with the buffer 426 


size. Regarding future SDHF implementation, the WAC pointed out the importance of the J2 427 


Reservoir project. 428 


 429 


Hovorka asked what budget task includes NCCW funding.  Kenny and Drain indicated that 430 


water acquisition discussions are still underway. 431 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/01/2011 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 11 


 


 


 432 


Additional Business:  Cory Steinke, WAC Chair 433 


 434 


2012 Meeting Schedule 435 


The draft 2012 meeting schedule was discussed. The next WAC meeting is scheduled for 436 


February 7, 2011, from 9:30 am – 3 pm (Central Time) at the Lake McConaughy Visitors 437 


Center.  The ED Office will update the schedule on the WAC website. 438 
 439 


Action Items 440 
General WAC 441 


 WAC members are to provide input on the Draft 2012 water plan budget work plans prior 442 


to the Finance Committee meeting on November 9, 2011.  443 


 444 


ED Office 445 


 The ED Office will update the Hydrologic Condition Memorandum and post it to the 446 


PRRIP website with Anderson’s 2006 JAWRA paper as an attachment.   447 


 The ED Office will continue monitoring trends in gage shifts at the Kearney gage. 448 


 The ED Office will distribute the updated Draft 2012 water plan budget work plans and 449 


attach the previous budget and expenditure spreadsheet. 450 


 The ED Office will update the October 2012 WAC meeting date on the schedule and post 451 


on the WAC website. 452 


  453 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 15 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 
Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 


Executive Director’s Office Conference Room – Kearney, NE 
October 5-6, 2011 


Wednesday, October 5th 
 


Meeting Attendees 


Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)   


State of Wyoming    
Mike Besson – Member (Chair) 


 


State of Colorado     
Suzanne Sellers – Member 


 


State of Nebraska    
Mike Fritz – Member 


Doug Hallum – Alternate 


 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service)   
Martha Tacha – Member 


Matt Rabbe – Alternate (via phone) 


 


Bureau of Reclamation (BOR)  


Brock Merrill – Member 


 


Environmental Entities    
Rich Walters – Member 


Mary Harner – Alternate  


 


Upper Platte Water Users 


 


Colorado Water Users 


Kevin Urie – Member 


 


Downstream Water Users 
Mark Czaplewski – Member 


Jim Jenniges – Member 


Mark Peyton – Member 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 


Jerry Kenny – Executive Director (ED) 


Chad Smith 


Dave Baasch 


Jason Farnsworth 


Steve Smith 


Justin Brei 


 


Other Participants 


Jeff Runge (FWS) 


Mike Drain (CNPPID) 


Pat Engelbert (HDR) 


Tom Riley (Flatwater) 


Andy Selle (InterFluve) 


Pat Goltl (Nebraska NRD) 


John Thorburn (Tri-Basin NRD) 


Aaron Pearse (USGS-NPWRC) 


Dan Bigbee (EA) 


Welcome and Administrative 


Besson called the meeting to order and the group proceeded with a roll call. Czaplewski asked to 


add a discussion about the plans the Middle Missouri River Basin Workgroup is developing 


regarding restocking pallid sturgeon to the agenda. Czaplewski moved to approve the August 


2011 TAC minutes with changes incorporated in the draft version the TAC reviewed; Jenniges 


seconded the motion; all approved. August TAC Minutes approved with incorporated 


changes. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 15 


EDO staff passed out an updated list of TAC members for the organizations to review and 


informed the group the membership list is on the Program’s website. Revisions are to be 


submitted to Baasch so we can keep the membership list and website up-to-date.  


Update on August TAC Meeting Action Items 


C. Smith updated the TAC on the status of action items from the August 2011 TAC meeting 


including peer reviews, caddisfly research project (only conduct surveys until GC decision in 


June, 2012 and seek input from the ISAC regarding how to proceed with research related to 


species of concern), and IGERT student project (GC supported providing $25,000 for an IGERT 


student and supported Trevor Hefley’s project).  


Runge stated the GC minutes appeared to indicate the Service discouraged tree removal on 


Program properties; however, the caddisfly documents provided to the GC indicate otherwise. 


Runge asked if the GC had the proper information to decide whether tree removal should occur 


in the proposed areas for the caddisfly study or not. Farnsworth said the GC discussed that the 


Service didn’t feel tree removal would impact caddisfly and wouldn’t hold the Program 


responsible for caddisfly listing and that part of the GC discussion was related to early 


discussions and consultation letters from the Service when the study plan was being developed. 


Runge stated the Service still encourages vegetation removal for target species in a phased 


approach when caddisfly are involved. Besson stated he isn’t sure where we are regarding tree 


removal on the McCormick and other properties. Farnsworth and Kenny stated we will not 


remove trees in the proposed caddisfly research areas where unobstructed views already exceed 


target species widths and that way we can preserve the possibility of conducting the study in the 


future.  


LiDAR/Aerial Photography RFP 


Farnsworth discussed the fact that an RFP is out for bid that includes the collection of LiDAR 


and Aerial Photography data annually and that the RFP includes potential buy-up options 


suggested by Nebraska DNR. At this point the selection committee needs guidance on how 


consider the buy-up options (i.e., what is the value of the additional buy-up options). Hallum 


stated his biggest concern was that the RFP was for a multiple year contract which might 


preclude the Program from adding additional technology (fusion, hyper-spectral imagery, auto-


correlation, etc) if we decided we should do so in the future. Hallum stated the new technologies 


could be used to classify vegetation and could augment or potentially replace the Program’s 


Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring Research. Besson asked if we would have the ability 


to apply the new technologies to the Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring Research data. 


Hallum stated he envisioned combining the LiDAR and Imagery collection with the 


Geomorphology and Vegetation Monitoring so we know the specs for LiDAR and Imagery are 


applied for the purposes of complimenting or replacing the Geomorphology and Vegetation 


Monitoring data collection. Brei stated we could apply these techniques, but we wouldn’t get 


accuracies we could use because methods of collecting the data would be different. Kenny asked 


if we would be collecting the data both ways; Brei said no. Brei stated that the buy-ups would 


replace portions of the base scope of work in the RFP as methods for collecting data would 


change (i.e., higher resolution imagery, lower elevation flights, etc).  







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 15 


Hallum stated the new technologies wouldn’t provide the Program a bare-ground model, but 


would allow us to determine relationships such as distance between bare sand areas and visual 


obstructions (object 1.5 meters tall). Farnsworth suggested we move forward with RFPs as 


written and collect LiDAR and Aerial Imagery data as we have in the past and consider 


contractors that have the ability to collect data both ways when selecting a contractor. Hallum 


and Farnsworth stated that based on the timeline for the RFP, the selection panel could select a 


contractor based on their ability to collect the base data, but consideration could be given to 


contractors that have the ability to collect the buy-up data. 


PRRIP Peer Review 


C. Smith stated that the Stage Change Study Peer Review was completed and Atkins is 


summarizing reviewer comments, but that he hasn’t received the comments from Atkins to date. 


Jenniges asked if the TAC could review the comments submitted by peer reviewers; C. Smith 


stated comments would be available for everyone to review.  


C. Smith asked if the group for a recommendation of supported for the draft Scope of Work for 


peer review of the Directed Vegetation Research. Czaplewski noted there was a typo error in the 


Scope of Work for the peer reviewers in that it said ‘Stage Change Study’ rather than Directed 


Vegetation Research; C. Smith said he would correct that error.  


Czaplewski moved to support the Scope of Work for the Directed Vegetation Research 


peer review; Jenniges seconded the motion; all supported the motion.  


C. Smith read the names of the panel of peer reviewers Atkins provided to the Program and 


stated the EDO recommends having John Stella, Anne Lightbody and Andrew Wilcox peer 


review the Directed Vegetation Research Study. Besson asked if the list of peer reviewers had 


been contacted by Atkins to determine if they are interested in conducting the review; C. Smith 


said they had been contacted. Besson asked who conducted the vegetation research; Farnsworth 


said USDA-ARS.  


Jenniges moved to recommend support of the list of individuals recommended by the EDO 


including John Stella, Anne Lightbody and Andrew Wilcox; Czaplewski seconded motion; 


all supported the motion. 


Sediment Augmentation Pilot Study Project 


Engelbert and Trubant discussed background information leading up to the Sediment 


Augmentation Pilot Study; baseline modeling that has been conducted to date; the various 


parameters that would be measure, how they would be measured, and what would be done with 


this information; the various decisions triggers and the decisions that would be made in response 


to various outcomes of the pilot study; and discussed progress made on obtaining a 401 Permit 


for the pilot study. 


Czaplewski asked if the models consider different flows and changes in sediment transport that 


occur throughout the year; Trubant said the models did. Czaplewski asked if the models assumed 


sediment would be augmented year round; Trubant said the models incorporated sediment 


augmentation during the 2 proposed scenarios; ~30 days and ~45 days. Runge asked river 


response was modeled with adding 50,000 ton of sediment; Trubant said it was modeled with 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 15 


adding 50,000 tons of sediment at both Dyer and Cottonwood Ranch. Goltl asked if the stage 


versus discharge plot represented the entire 20 year period or some subsection of the data as the 


plot has distinct clusters along 3 lines; Engelbert and Riley stated all data from 1991-2011 and 


represent field measured data collected during pre-drought (before 2003), drought and 


phragmites (2003-2008), and high flow periods (2009-2011). 


Tacha asked what temporal resolution they will be looking at during sediment augmentation 


periods (daily, weekly, or instantaneous flow); Engelbert said they would look at flow data on a 


daily basis. Tacha asked if the measures were instantaneous maximum measure an stated the 


river fluctuates continuously which could trigger several different decisions; Engelbert said they 


would look at daily maximum flows, but that they would compare the relationships in the 


performance measures to historic data (new measure within in historic spread of data or not) to 


make decisions. Farnsworth stated they will be measuring and looking at the stage/discharge 


relationship which is not as sensitive as looking at only change in stage so the number of 


decision triggers would be minimized. Jenniges stated the bed of the river during early 1990’s is 


much different than today and that we could raise the stage/discharge relationship by 2 feet and 


still not be as high as the river was in 1991 (i.e., not outside the scatter of historic data). Trubant 


said the stage/discharge relationship plots only include the scatter of change within a 1-year 


period which does not represent change in the stage/discharge relationship over the past 20 years 


so a change of 2 feet would fall outside the scatter so a decision trigger would met before this 


point.  


Besson asked what type of water the group would prefer to conduct the Pilot Study. Engelbert 


stated a normal water year would be most preferred. Besson asked if we should hold off on 


augmenting sediment until we are more certain of a normal water year. Engelbert, Farnsworth, 


and C. Smith stated a lot can be learned even during high flow years and that the Pilot Study is 


designed to learn about how to put sediment into the system, to update the models and determine 


if they are useful for predicting outcomes, and for revising the means and methods of sediment 


augmentation so that we are better able to implement full sediment augmentation. 


Jenniges asked if we were relying on the monitoring taking place to develop the 2-D models for 


the Elm Creek Proof of Concept Study which will be completed in a year; Farnsworth indicated 


the sediment augmentation study will have its own monitoring protocol, but that the other 


monitoring, LiDAR, and Aerial Imagery data would supplement the data they collect. 


Runge asked if there were any trends in the scatter in the discharge rating curves plot over time; 


Trubant indicated they hadn’t looked at that yet, but that it appears maybe there was slightly 


more scatter in the 2010 data when flows were high; however, the 2010 data were provisional 


when it was downloaded.  


Thorburn asked if they planned to monitor water quality in relation to the pilot study; Engelbert 


and Riley stated the source material would have to be monitored before it is put into the river, 


but that they weren’t sure what the monitoring requirements will be yet, however, they would 


used the Program’s water-quality monitoring data in addition to other required measures. Selle 


stated where and what data they are collecting and stated more specific monitoring related to 


various Program activities will occur in the future.  







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 15 


C. Smith asked the TAC to review the sediment Augmentation Pilot Study document and 


to submit any comments, concerns, or questions they had to him so that once the 


permitting process is complete and the GC approves the study we can start the project. 


Whooping Crane Telemetry Project 


C. Smith discussed the background of events that lead up to the current Partnership Agreement 


(including revisions made by project partners Oct 4, 2011 and shown to the group on the 5
th


) and 


the Budget projected through 2016. 


Tacha asked if we could write into the Partnership Agreement that the Program’s monitoring 


crew (currently WEST/AIM) would not have access to telemetry data to locate whooping cranes. 


Baasch and others stated the monitoring crew would not have knowledge of any information 


from the telemetry data other than to re-locate previously observed birds that are lost while 


monitoring them as written in the Program’s 2011 Whooping Crane Monitoring Protocol. C. 


Smith and Pearse stated information such as this probably should be left out of the Partnership 


Agreement otherwise other core partners would need to include similar information for their data 


use purposes. 


Tacha stated she hoped Tom Stehn’s replacement, as the whooping crane coordinator, would be 


included in the group of Core Partner Members; Pearse said we definitely revisit Fish and 


Wildlife Service representation once the whooping crane coordinator is replaced. 


C. Smith and Pearse stated the Program will receive migration reports like all other core partners. 


Czaplewski asked if the Program would receive previously written migration reports; Pearse and 


Smith stated all previous reports have been written by the Trust and the group discussed the 


Program has received 3 reports including a 3-page summary report presented at the 2011 AMP 


reporting session, a 2010 draft report submitted in June of 2011, and a 2011 Spring Report 


submitted in August 2011; these are the reports written to date. Pearse stated those were the only 


reports he is aware of.  


Pearse discussed that Data Costs in the budget were costs associated with accessing the data 


from the Argos system and that Data Management Costs were for miscellaneous costs associated 


with storing, accessing, and processing data. C. Smith stated the Program would be invoiced for 


costs associated with the Project and would pay the invoices rather than funneling money 


through another organization as has been done in the past. Jenniges asked if the Program’s in-


kind-contribution could be added to the budget to reflect actual Program costs; Pearse and C. 


Smith stated that would be a good idea. 


Tacha asked if the title of the project could be changed so that it will be clear in the future that 


this project is separate from the past project that had the same name; Pearse said he would call 


Tacha to come up with a different name for the project. 


Czaplewski asked if C. Smith felt the agreement fully addressed the concerns the EDO and TAC 


have raised in the past (data access, core partner assignment, etc); C. Smith and Baasch indicated 


the latest version of the agreement presented at the TAC meeting fully addressed all concerns. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 15 


Jenniges moved to support Program participation in the Whooping Crane Telemetry 


Project as proposed in the revised partnership agreement shown during the meeting and as 


budgeted in the proposed budget… Tacha seconded the motion; all approved. 


C. Smith stated the EDO would arrange a conference call with the GC (potentially during the FC 


call), to get GC approval for the project. 


Czaplewski stated that with all the information collected with this project he hoped that future 


reports would be more substantial than past reports; Harner agreed and said past reports have 


been limited because of data sensitivity, but that the core partners are working on ways to 


improve future reports. 


Cottonwood Ranch Flow Consolidation 


Selle presented information on the flow consolidation study including background information; 


work that has been done to date; potential options, benefits, and costs associated with the 


different options for consolidating flows; locations considered for consolidating flows; and next 


steps for the project. 


S. Smith clarified that the rough-scale model calibration Selle referred to throughout his 


presentation did not mean they made any changes to the original HEC-RAS 1-D model, but that 


such area-specific calibrations would likely be needed in the future; Selle agreed. Fritz asked if 


either of the consolidation methods would require a 404 permit and if additional effort would be 


required to obtain a permit for either method. Selle said he thinks both approaches would require 


permitting, but he wasn’t sure if there was a benefit to either approach. Jenniges stated he felt 


NPPD likely would not support permitting the log-jam approach due to risks associated with the 


Kearney Canal. Peyton added that another thing to consider is the costs of removing each type of 


structure (log jam versus sand diversion) in the event it was required. Besson asked how we 


would deal with new channel development as has been observed the past 2 years; Farnsworth 


stated we would probably need to plug the new channels and could add additional structures in 


the event new channels are cut around the diversion structures. Jenniges stated one of the next 


steps should be to identify what the function the south channel really should be. Runge stated 


one function was that side channels are important habitat for fish and that the Service would like 


to include that in the study design if possible. Jenniges added that another function would be to 


maintain the channel for downstream land owners; however, the channel is already consolidated 


on the Program’s Stall Property. Selle stated the channel would still be accessible by fish during 


periods of high flow (i.e., refuge during flood events) and that the design of the diversion 


structures would include passage ways for fish during periods of lower flows. Selle added that 


channel function, however it’s defined, could be maintained in either design. Besson said the 


report indicated the channel may be consolidating on its own so he wondered how active the 


Program should be in trying to consolidate flows at this site. Jenniges and Runge stated 


consolidating flows is part of the overall FSM strategy and consolidating flows at this site would 


add another replication along with the Elm Creek Complex. Runge asked if the project is likely 


to be permitted under 404 individual permit; Farnsworth stated this project may be tough to 


permit. C. Smith and Farnsworth stated we should probably move forward with obtaining a 


permit for the project so that if/when everything comes together to implement the full FSM 


strategy we could proceed. Besson asked if the EDO had heard any feedback from neighbors at 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 15 


this point yet; Farnsworth said NPPD has concerns with using log jams as discussed during the 


meeting, downstream neighbor has concerns with the Program removing all water from the 


channel used for watering cattle, and upstream neighbors don’t want the Program backing water 


up on their property. Rabbe stated the US Army Corps of Engineers would need to consider how 


much of the channel will need to be mitigated (entire stream or the area around the structures); 


Farnsworth said he agreed and that if the Program would need to mitigate the entire channel then 


flow consolidation may not be a viable option for the Program.  


Farnsworth and C. Smith said the next steps will be to put together a scope of services to 


move the flow consolidation project into a pilot study. The group agreed. 


Executive Session 


TAC entered Executive Session at 5:20 p.m. Central time to discuss 2012-2015 Independent 


Scientific Advisory Committee (ISAC) Membership. 


TAC exited Executive Session at 5:50 p.m. Central time. 
 


Meeting adjourned at 5:50 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 15 


Thursday, October 6th 
 


Meeting Attendees 


Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Table 


State of Wyoming    
Mike Besson – Member (Chair) 


 


State of Colorado     
Suzanne Sellers – Member 


 


State of Nebraska    
Mike Fritz – Member 


Doug Hallum – Alternate 


 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service)   
Martha Tacha – Member 


Matt Rabbe – Alternate (via phone) 


 


Bureau of Reclamation (BOR)  


Brock Merrill – Member 


 


Environmental Entities    
Rich Walters – Member 


Mary Harner – Alternate  


 


Upper Platte Water Users 


 


Colorado Water Users 


Kevin Urie – Member 


 


Downstream Water Users 
Mark Czaplewski – Member 


Jim Jenniges – Member 


Mark Peyton – Member 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 


Jerry Kenny – Executive Director (ED) 


Chad Smith 


Dave Baasch 


Jason Farnsworth 


Steve Smith 


Justin Brei 


 


Other Participants 


Jeff Runge (FWS) 


Stu Trubant (Tetra Tech) 


Mike Drain (CNPPID) 


Andy Selle (InterFluve) 


Pat Goltl (Nebraska NRD) 


Aaron Pearse (USGS-NPWRC) 


Trevor Hefley (UNL-IGERT) 


Karine Gil-Weir (Environmental Advisors) 


Enrique Weir (Environmental Advisors)


 


Welcome and Administrative 


Besson called the meeting to order and the group proceeded with a roll call.  


Whooping Crane Database 


Karine Gil-Weir and Enrique Weir discussed the sources of date they compiled, how the various 


databases were linked, how to access the data in the database, and next steps to complete the 


project. 


Tacha stated since 1999 site evaluation data typically hasn’t been collected and asked if the data 


collected in the site evaluations was left blank in the database; Gil-Weir and Weir said they 


included as much information in the database they could from the reports and hand-written notes. 


Tacha asked how GPS coordinates for the various sightings were obtained; Gil-Weir stated 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 15 


coordinates included in the original databases were not changed, but that missing coordinates 


that are included in the database are only approximate and were obtained from the legal 


description included in the report. Runge asked how coordinates were obtained (i.e., center of the 


field described in the legal description); Gil-Weir said the location of the crane groups were 


described in the reports. Tacha said it will be important to include the sources of information, the 


dates and purpose each type of data was collected, accuracy of data, etc in the documentation for 


the database. Gil-Weir agreed and said in addition to the database, they will submit Excel sheets 


that describe assumptions made while compiling the database as well as the discrepancies 


between the databases. Runge agreed with Tacha that a document should created to document 


how each of the data were collected and all the assumptions that should be considered when 


analyzing the data; Tacha said the Service has such a document for their database; Fritz indicated 


the Heritage database has a similar document. Baasch suggested they add a column to the 


database that specifies how accurate each location is (precise, within the quarter section, etc). C. 


Smith suggested they also add a column that identifies the information sources so data users can 


link sources of information to the “user’s manual” document that describes the type of data, 


quality of date, and timeframe the data was collected.  


Kenny suggested the next step in the whooping crane database project include QA/QC of the 


database and to work closely with EDO staff and the Service to ensure appropriate metadata is 


available so users know how, when and why the various data were collected and who collected 


it. Fritz suggested we also talk to Rachael Simpson (NGPC) because she has developed and 


included similar information (reference columns, comment fields, accuracy fields, etc) in the 


National Heritage Biotic Database. 


IGERT Student Project 


Hefley presented information on his proposed IGERT project (Whooping Crane Habitat 


Selection in Nebraska Using Observational Data and Expert Knowledge), how expert knowledge 


will be incorporated into the analyses, how results will be interpreted and reported, work 


products the Program will receive as a result of this work, and how the Program can use results 


of this work to guide management decisions. 


C. Smith asked if Hefley has had an opportunity to review the Program’s Rapid Prototype 


Models; Hefley said he hadn’t. C. Smith indicated we would provide those models to Hefley to 


consider when developing the models so both types of models fit together in the end. Gil-Weir 


asked how he planned to include a variable of Whooping Crane individuals (site fidelity, etc); 


Hefley indicated he could include a random effect to account for lack of independence in the data 


and that he would work with the Program and the experts to get a better understanding of 


whooping crane ecology. Fritz asked if Hefley intended on using different models for the 


different habitat areas within Nebraska (e.g., Platte River, Sandhills, habitat south of the Platte, 


etc); Hefley stated ideally he would prefer to have 1 model for all areas and include habitat type 


as a variable in the model. Baasch and Hefley indicated the data could be ‘blocked’ based on the 


various regions as well. Tacha asked if he could block the data by on and off-channel as well for 


detectability reasons as well; Hefley stated that was possible and that the models he proposed 


using will allow for such blocking. Jenniges stated it will be prudent for Hefley to have 


additional discussions with the TAC to refine habitat variables and data blocking to include in 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 15 


the analyses. Fritz indicated down the road he envisions the Program using the telemetry data 


into this modeling process to further evaluate habitat selection by whooping cranes in Nebraska.  


C. Smith asked the group if they were comfortable with the study as proposed; Jenniges 


indicated regular updates with the TAC as Hefley works through the process of developing 


methods and models will be important. Besson asked if Hefley would have the ability to contact 


Gil-Weir in the event he has questions while compiling the data; Kenny stated the Program will 


have additional funds in the line items so he can consult with her when necessary. Runge asked if 


Hefley’s work would be used to fill the gaps in the Synthesis Report and Data Analysis Plan; C. 


Smith indicated moving forward in parallel shouldn’t be a problem and that the group will set a 


meeting to refine whooping crane minimum habitat criteria. 


Geomorphology/In-channel Vegetation Monitoring RFP 


S. Smith discussed the contents of the Geomorphology/In-channel Vegetation Monitoring RFP 


(same as in the past except for additional data analyses) and stated the RFP is for a period of 4 


years, Ayers and Olson collected this data the past 3 years and that their contract expires the end 


of 2011, and that EDO staff are currently working on the data analysis plan for this work (hope 


to have it available for contractors while they are writing their proposals).  


Besson asked if the TAC will review the RFP again; S. Smith said the RFP will be submitted as 


written unless the TAC has additional feedback or comments; however, the TAC will review the 


data analysis plan that will be included in the RFP at the November joint TAC/ISAC meeting. C. 


Smith stated Ayers and Olson are going to conduct some basic data analyses for the Program 


with the remaining budget under the existing contract. The EDO is working on a data analysis 


plan related to addressing the Program’s big questions and priority hypotheses as well as the 


evaluation showing figures and results to date that the TAC and ISAC will review at the joint 


meeting in November. Jenniges asked if the TAC was being asked to move to support the RFP, 


data analysis plan, or both; C. Smith stated we were only asking for a motion of support for the 


RFP.  


Hallum moved to support the Geomorphology/In-channel Vegetation Monitoring RFP; 


Jenniges seconded the motion; all Approved. 


Water Quality Monitoring  


C. Smith indicated the Water Quality Monitoring did not need to be discussed because the EDO 


was informed on October 5
th


 that 2 signatories at the FC level won’t support extending EA’s 


Water Quality Monitoring Contract without re-bidding the project through the RFP process. The 


EDO will draft an RFP that the TAC can review for the discussion at the November meeting. 


Runge stated we need to think about how the water monitoring data fits into the good neighbor 


policy or addressing the big questions. C. Smith agreed and stated turbidity measures fit well 


with the sediment augmentation study. 


Pallid Sturgeon Update (agenda modification) 


Czaplewski stated a couple months ago the Middle Missouri River Basin Work Group issued a 


draft plan that, after review, would be submitted to the Pallid Sturgeon Recovery Team that 


emphasized pallid sturgeon stocking in the Lower Platte. The plan emphasized an approach 


working with stake holders extensively and one of the named stake holders was PRRIP; 


however, the language has changed in the revised version of the plan which de-emphasized 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 15 


interaction with stake holders. Czaplewski stated 2 points he had were 1) the TAC and Program 


need to stay informed of their work and 2) Czaplewski urged caution that the Program move 


cautiously in becoming involved in the work if at all. 


Runge stated the draft proposal required an agreement with the Program prior to stocking pallid 


sturgeon on the Lower Platte. Runge had sent an email to the workgroup stating that the Program 


has authority over water and land on the central Platte and that there was no financial interested 


in stocking pallid sturgeon in the lower Platte. Based on the above two reasons, Runge felt that 


Program authorization or signing an agreement was outside the scope of the Program. Runge’s 


comments supported the need for stake holders input  recognizing  Program support as a stake 


holder would be important to gain support from additional stake holders. Czaplewski said this 


information is good to know and that there are policy decisions that need to be made that will 


play a significant role in whether we are involved in the work or not. Runge stated that if there is 


an expansion of the Program’s authority into the lower Platte than that could include a need for 


an agreement with the Program. C. Smith said we will attempt to have a Middle Missouri River 


Basin Work Group member present information at one of the next 2 upcoming TAC meetings. 


Time-lapse Camera Project 


Kenny provided an update on the Time-lapse Camera Project and stated about 30 cameras have 


been installed in the central Platte and listed several sites where cameras have been installed. 


Kenny said there are several gaps where cameras are not located (Wyoming state line to 


McConaughy and the south Platte River have no cameras) so that will be the future focus. Kenny 


and Besson stated 2 cameras have been stolen to date one at Mahoney State Park and one at 


Pathfinder. Last year Program money was expended from the land management line item budget, 


but during 2012 we plan on using funds from the education and outreach budget line item and 


funding will be half ($25,000) what it was during 2011 ($50,000) with no long term Program 


obligation to provide funding to the project. The plan is to have access to the imagery available 


on the Program’s website. 


Czaplewski asked if anyone was analyzing the images collected; Kenny stated not thus far. 


Czaplewski asked that if we decrease funding will we lose access to the imagery; Kenny stated 


that the Program’s initial contribution would allow us access to imagery until the project ends. 


Tacha asked if any data analysis will be conducted on the data; Kenny stated imagery at sites 


such as Elm Creek Complex will be used to conduct species and behavior oriented analyses, but 


that the analyses will not be as quantitative as other analyses. 


PRRIP FY 2012 Budget (only include the TAC and Participants’ discussion and revisions) 


C. Smith went through the AMP portions of the draft 2012 Program Budget and updated the 


table as per discussions at the recent GC meeting and at the current TAC meeting. 


PD-4 Line item was set to $0 


PD-12 Czaplewski indicated there’s a lot of money for various types of advisors and technical 


support throughout the budget that he felt should all be linked to various project-specific tasks. 


C. Smith stated that each of the sections of the budget (land, water, and adaptive management), 


the EDO has built in a line item for special advisors and that the GC has supported including 


money in the budget in the past so we can seek expert assistance and knowledge when needed. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 12 of 15 


The money included under line item PD-12 is for assistance with applying the model our 


contractor developed. Czaplewski stated that, for example we should include an example of how 


we plan to use the model so it is clear money is needed in the 2012 budget for model application 


that year. C. Smith and additional item the GC reviews is the Program’s Annual Work Plan so 


we could include this level of detail in our Work Plan. Czaplewski agreed that including and 


seeing the details in the Work Plan would be beneficial. Kenny and others stated a few examples 


of how the model has been and will continue to be used including tern and plover habitat 


availability, developing the unsteady model to view SDHF, probability of inundation given 


various island heights, etc. Farnsworth stated the limited EDO staff doesn’t have time to spend 3-


weeks developing water surface DEMs. Jenniges stated that we should include the work products 


we anticipate receiving for the different special advisors. Runge asked if there would be another 


TAC meeting to discuss the additional detail for specific items that will be included in the annual 


work plan. Runge asked when the FC and GC meetings were; Kenny said the FC meeting will be 


November 9
th


 and the GC meeting will be in December. Runge asked the group if they could 


comment based on the level of detail included in the budget. Tacha asked if the TAC could 


review the annual work plan. Besson asked when the annual work plan would be ready for 


review; C. Smith stated EDO staff would compile the work plan soon so the TAC can review it.  


PD-13  


PD-19  


PD-20 Runge asked what the purpose of monitoring ground water; Farnsworth stated wet 


meadows are directly associated with ground/surface water relationships. Runge asked if we 


should model the relationship rather than simply collecting the data. Farnsworth stated Brei is 


conducting those analyses; Runge said there was no need to budget for those costs then.  


LP-2  


PD-15 Urie asked what kind of initial permit activities HDR will be working on; C. Smith stated 


we have individual permits under consideration for sediment augmentation and Elm Creek and 


they will also continue to seek a regional permit for the Program. Kenny added we intended on 


pursuing the regional permit during 2011, but the public hearings and other conflicts have 


expended the 2011 budget. Runge asked if HDR was retained through a sole source contract of if 


they were advisors; Kenny stated their permitting work is tied to the sediment augmentation 


project and has been expanded out to include the regional general permit. 


PD-18/ED-1 Kenny stated Headwaters is going to purchase all Program equipment and will bill 


the Program for the use of the equipment. Merrill stated the Bureau of Reclamation GC Member 


would likely prefer equipment costs be separated out in the budget rather than lumping those 


costs into line item ED-1 or PD-18. 


G-1 & G-2 Combined as per the RFP 


G-5 


H-2 Kenny stated is currently blank, but that money would be included in the final budget to 


cover costs associated with maintaining USGS gage station on Cottonwood Ranch, support DNR 


for maintaining the Shelton and Lexington gages, and fees for basic communication lines. Peyton 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 13 of 15 


stated CNPPID is being billed for costs associated water temperature monitoring ($300-$600) 


and asked if the Program would be willing to assume the costs ($300/year). Kenny asked if 


CNPPID still needed the information. Peyton said he thought he and Kenny had talked about 


this, but Peyton just needed to tell Don whether or not CNPPID would incur this cost in the 


future.  Smith stated $40,000 would be added to line item H-2 to cover costs associated with 


monitoring and maintaining gages. 


IMRP-2 Besson asked how we planned to evaluate bird cognition. Farnsworth stated most 


analyses are conducted on CIR imagery; however, birds see in near UV and we keep getting 


asked by ISAC members to consider this type of analysis. Jenniges and Czaplewski said they 


were skeptical and that the analysis will need be tied to the big questions and priority hypotheses. 


Urie stated we could potentially look at other studies to figure out how birds perceive the 


environment and select habitat. Tacha said research into bird cognition could prove to be 


valuable for determining why birds select the habitats they do at the landscape level. Urie 


suggested the Program hire someone familiar with this type of research to review available 


literature on bird cognition and to determine how useful it has been in other studies. Smith 


changed the budget line item to $20,000 to contribute to bird cognition literature review.  


Runge asked if the line item should be broken down to specific projects; Kenny said it would be 


better to have specific amounts of money tied specific projects. C. Smith asked the TAC to think 


about additional research projects we should conduct during 2012 and provide that to the EDO as 


soon as possible. Besson asked what we felt the risks of losing funding for the Program are. 


Kenny stated people are concerned about budgets and the basis for concerns is more justified 


now than in the past. 


IMRP-3 Farnsworth stated that since we are applying the results of the vegetation monitoring 


results, we need additional feedback to ensure we are applying their results appropriately. 


Jenniges suggested we include work products they’ll provide the Program in the budget. 


IMRP-5 Caddisfly monitoring during 2012 will be covered with carry over money under 


contract from 2011 


PD-8 Breakdown work Riverside will be conducting during 2012 will be included in the Annual 


Work Plan. Urie asked if we anticipate future budgets to be at a similar level; Farnsworth stated 


we expect costs beyond 2012 to drop to approximately $100,000. Tacha asked if we planned to 


include the whooping crane database into the Program’s database; Baasch stated we haven’t 


ironed out the details yet, but that there have been discussions to have that database available at 


some level on the Program’s website. Tacha stated there was a considerable amount of work that 


went into collecting the whooping crane data and that she felt the Program should pay a fee to 


get the data on an annual basis. Jenniges state that if the Service decides to charge a fee for the 


data in the future then it will probably have to charge everyone.    


TP-1  


TP-6  


WC-1  


WC-3 Line item changed to $167,100 based on proposed budget for 2012 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 14 of 15 


WC-5  


WQ-1 Runge asked if the extended budget was firm given the unknown application of a portion 


of the collected data; S. Smith stated the estimates are likely conservative where the contractor 


included 8 monitoring events. Runge suggested we commit to a 1 year budget.The TAC can 


evaluate the usefulness of the data for answering Program big questions which would dictate a 


new scope of work for 2013 and beyond. S. Smith stated that it will be like other multi-year 


contracts in that we will develop future budgets on an annual basis. Runge stated that a lot of the 


linkages between water quality and species response need to be developed so we can evaluate if 


we are collecting the right data at the right time of year. C. Smith said we could write the RFP 


for a 1-year term and we could determine the benefits of collecting water quality data and what 


data we should collect in the future during 2012. 


ISAC-1 


PD-3 changed line item to $60,000 to peer review 3 documents, but some of these reviews may 


happen during 2011 (e.g., tern and plover foraging habits study report).  C. Smith indicated the 


TAC reviewed the report and notice a significant error in fish identification in the report (Topeka 


shiner now classified as an unidentified shiner). Runge stated USGS has many levels of internal 


reviews and stated the GC should be made aware of this before deciding to have an additional 


peer review conducted. 


C. Smith stated EDO staff would try to put together the 2012 work plan for TAC review by 


October 14
th


.  


Closing Business 


TAC conference call to discuss the 2012 work plan and to revisit any issues related to the budget 


scheduled for Tuesday, November 1
st
, 10:00AM CST. 


Whooping Crane Minimum Habitat Criteria Workshop scheduled for 12 January, 2012, 9:00am− 


5:00pm CST at EDO conference room in Kearney. 


Next TAC meeting scheduled as a joint meeting with the ISAC on 29–30 November, 2011 9:00-


5:00MST each day at the Staybridge Suites in Denver. 


2012 TAC Chair 


Besson asked the group if anyone was interested in being TAC chair or was interested in 


nominating someone to chair the TAC committee for 2012; no one volunteered; Besson was 


asked and offered to continue to chair the committee. 


Tacha moved to support Besson remain the TAC chair for 2012; Fritz seconded the 


motion; all supported. 


 


Meeting adjourned at 12:20pm Central time. 


 


Summary of Action Items/Decisions from August 2011 TAC meeting 


1) Approved August 2011 TAC minutes with suggested revisions suggested during TAC 


reviews. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 15 of 15 


2) EDO staff handed participants a list of ‘official’ TAC members and alternates to review 


and informed the group the membership list is also on the Program’s website. Revisions 


are to be submitted to Baasch so we can keep the membership list and website updated. 


3) The TAC recommended support of the Scope of Work for the Directed Vegetation Research 


peer review. 


4) The TAC recommended support of the peer review panel recommended by the EDO to 


review the scope of work for the Directed Vegetation Research including John Stella, Anne 


Lightbody and Andrew Wilcox. 


5) The TAC will review the Sediment Augmentation Pilot Study document and submit any 


comments, concerns, or questions they have to C. Smith so that once the permitting 


process is complete and the GC approves the study the Program can start the project. 


6) The TAC recommended support of Program participation in the Whooping Crane Telemetry 


Project as proposed in the revised partnership agreement shown during the TAC meeting 


(October 5, 2011) and at the level budgeted in the proposed budget. 


7) EDO staff will put together a scope of services for the TAC to review to move the flow 


consolidation project into a pilot study phase. 


8) The next step in the whooping crane database project will include QA/QC of the 


database. 


9) EDO staff will work closely with Gil-Weir, the Service, and Rachael Simpson (NGPC) 


to ensure appropriate documentation and metadata is available so users know how, 


when and why various whooping crane data were collected and who collected it. 


10) The TAC supported contributing to the IGERT Program and the proposal presented during 


the TAC meeting on October 6, 2011 and recommended periodic updates for the project (no 


motion because the GC moved to support both items during the September, 2011 GC 


meeting). 


11) The TAC recommended support of the Geomorphology/In-channel Vegetation Monitoring 


RFP. 


12) EDO staff will compile the 2012 Work Plan and provide it to the TAC to review prior to 


October 14
th


. 


13) Scheduled a TAC conference call to discuss the 2012 Work Plan and to revisit any issues 


related to the budget (outlined above) for Tuesday, November 1
st
, 10:00AM CST. 


14) The TAC recommended support of Besson remaining the TAC chair during 2012. 


15) Next TAC meeting scheduled as a joint meeting with the ISAC on 29–30 November, 2011 


9:00-5:00MST each day at the Staybridge Suites in Denver. 


16) Whooping Crane Minimum Habitat Criteria Workshop scheduled for 12 January, 2012, 


9:00am− 5:00pmCST 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 7 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 
Technical Advisory Committee Conference Call Meeting Minutes 


November 1, 2011 


 
Meeting Participants 


Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)   


State of Wyoming    
Mike Besson – Member (Chair) 


 


State of Colorado     
Suzanne Sellers – Member 


 


State of Nebraska    
Mike Fritz – Member 


Doug Hallum – Alternate 


 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service)   
Matt Rabbe – Alternate (via phone) 


 


Bureau of Reclamation (BOR)  


Brock Merrill – Member 


 


Environmental Entities    
Rich Walters – Member 


 


Upper Platte Water Users 


 


Colorado Water Users 


 


Downstream Water Users 
Mark Czaplewski – Member 


Jim Jenniges – Member 


Mark Peyton – Member 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 


Chad Smith 


Dave Baasch 


Jason Farnsworth 


Steve Smith 


 


Other Participants 


Pat Goltl (Nebraska NRD) 


Welcome and Administrative 


Besson called the conference call meeting to order and C. Smith announced participants on the 


call. Besson asked if there were any agenda modifications; none offered. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 7 


PRRIP FY 2012 Budget  


C. Smith discussed the AMP portions of the draft 2012 Program Budget and Work Plan. 


PD-13 $540,888 in budget of which includes ~$220,000 for the contract team to finish up 


design, put bid package together, managing the work, data analysis, etc and ~$300,000 is the 


anticipated cost for augmenting sediment at Cottonwood Ranch and at the Plum Creek Complex. 


Farnsworth added the consultant provided the EDO a fairly wide range of costs associated with 


augmenting sediment and the EDO developed the budget off the lower end of their estimate.  


C. Smith informed the group that the consultant, EDO staff, and Tri-basin NRD met with the 


Corps and discussed the need of conducting a public hearing and that we expect to have a 


decision soon and that the Nebraska DEQ informed EDO staff that the Program would not have 


to mitigate sediment augmentation.  


Besson asked how much of the $540,888 (PD-13) would be spent during 2012 and how much 


would be carried over to 2013.  C. Smith stated $540,888 is the total remaining budget for the 2-


year sediment augmentation pilot study to be spent whenever we can augment sediment (spring 


and/or fall 2012?), but some of the money would likely be carried over to 2013 to finalize 


sediment augmentation and data analysis if needed; 2013 Line Item Budget will likely be $0.  


Merrill asked if money would be carried over from 2011budget; C. Smith stated some portion of 


the $350,000 budgeted during 2011 would be carried over; however, he wasn’t sure how much 


will be carried over at this point. Besson asked if the $540,888 in the 2012 budget is for new 


money; C. Smith indicated it was.   


PD-19 $230,000 in 2012 budget.  $200,000 for engineering and consulting and $30,000 for 


channel plug construction.  Besson asked if the estimate was based on sand or log plugs; 


Farnsworth stated it was based on sand plugs at this point.  Merrill asked what the $200,000 for 


engineering and consulting would be spent on; Farnsworth stated part of the money is for 


engineering design, permitting, and construction administration for building the plugs and the 


other part is for implementation design for flow consolidation including modeling anticipated 


channel response.  Merrill and Jenniges said we should include more detail in the Annual Work 


Plan explaining what the money will be used for.  Hallum asked how much of the $200,000 


would be for permitting; Farnsworth stated it is unclear, but $200,000 is the EDO’s best estimate 


for what this phase of the project will cost.  Besson asked if the money for modeling was for 


InterFluve or if there were more firms involved; Farnsworth said InterFluve and Tetra Tech plan 


to team up and will use the Program’s 2-D model as the platform for their analysis.  Jenniges 


stated we should break out what the $200,000 for engineering and consulting would be spent on.  


C. Smith and Farnsworth will include additional detail to the Annual Work Plan. 


PD-20 $324,000 in 2012 Budget.  Line Item includes costs associated with converting the Fox 


Tract into wet meadow habitat as well as ground water monitoring.  Fritz stated the budget 


description should include the site name (Fox Tract); Smith said he would include ‘Fox Tract’ in 


the description. 


LP-2 $639,130 in 2012 Budget.  C. Smith pointed out Shoemaker Island Complex included the 


Binfield Tract.  Jenniges asked what the money earmarked for Cottonwood Ranch would be 


spent on; Farnsworth stated the money would be spent on tree removal on the Stahl Tract, 


prescribed fire, and tree clearing between the river and off-channel sand and water.  Farnsworth 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 7 


and C. Smith said we would include additional complex-specific details in the Annual Work 


Plan.  


G-1 & G-2 Combined as per the RFP and budgeted at $118,100. 


G-5 $450,000 in Budget. Besson asked if the budget includes 1 or more years of work; C. Smith 


stated it was for 1 year of geomorphology/in-channel vegetation monitoring and data analyses. 


H-2 $40,000 in the Budget.  Includes 2 new DNR gages and fees, Verizon phone bill for 


downloading data, and USGS maintenance costs. 


IMRP-2 $35,000 in Budget for ‘white-paper’ report on bird cognition; $30,000 for report and 


$5,000 for Atkins to identify an expert.  Czaplewski stated we should get more than a ‘white-


paper’ report for $30,000; C. Smith changed the language to state ‘detailed report.’ 


IMRP-3 $140,000 in Budget. 


IMRP-4 $203,185 in Budget.  Updated estimate from Bob Mussetter; money is for monitoring, 


2-D modeling, and data analysis.  


IMRP-5 New Line Item – Shoemaker Island FSM Proof of concept – with $250,000. C. Smith 


said this complex would serve as a replicate for the Elm Creek Complex and would cover design 


costs, monitoring, and applying the model from the Elm Creek Complex to this complex.  Rabbe 


asked if 85% of the channel was consolidated in this reach; Farnsworth said it was not, but that 


consolidating flows would be impossible with the north channel. C. Smith state this is the best 


site the Program has to replicate efforts at the Elm Creek Complex.  Jenniges said we should 


implement FSM research activities at this complex because it’s the most downstream site the 


Program has. 


IMRP-6 $200,000 in the 2012 Budget.  New line item that includes tern and plover habitat 


availability analyses (2007 & 2012; 2008–2011 will be completed under a separate contract) and 


whooping crane habitat availability analyses (2007-2012).  Baasch state ESO staff will meet with 


Rainwater Basin Joint Venture on November 3 and we will have a better estimate then.  


Czaplewski and Jenniges stated the GC and FC might have a concern with sole sourcing the 


work out given it is a $200,000 item.  Baasch said we considered putting together an RFP for the 


work that includes the 8 analyses, but determined it is highly unlikely a contractor outside the 


Platte basin would be able to compete given the ground truthing that will likely be required for 


the off-channel land classification.   


TP-1 $215,000 in the 2012 Budget.  Baasch explained the budget includes funds for Wildlife 


Service to trap for 6 months at Dyer, Cottonwood Ranch, Broadfoot South, and Newark.  $9,000 


is included in the budget to cover costs associated with trapping at Leaman off-channel sand and 


water, Elm Creek islands, or other sites that are created prior to the 2012 nesting season.  


Czaplewski asked what the $40,000 for Program costs associated with implementation was for; 


Baasch said the money is included to cover potential costs of hiring a technician to assist with 


monitoring efforts and for other unforeseen costs.  Czaplewski asked if USGS and Program staff 


and technicians would be able to cover additional nesting sites between Alda and Chapman 


should they arise; Baasch said the budget will cover costs associated with monitoring additional 


sites. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 7 


WC-1 $225,091 in 2012 Budget.  Budget based on proposal and contract developed fall 2011. 


WC-3 $167,100 in 2012 Budget.  Estimate based on proposed budget for 2012 within the 


Whooping Crane Tracking Project Agreement. 


PD-3 $90,000 in the 2012 Budget.  Money would cover peer review of the Elm Creek FSM and 


Bird Response Document, peer review of 3 additional documents, and identifying potential ISAC 


replacement member(s). 


General Budget Comments 


Besson asked if we anticipated spending $26,700,000 during 2012 plus any unobligated funds 


during 2011.  C. Smith stated we anticipate spending ~$17,600,000 during 2012 and the 


remaining balance is for money put aside for the reregulating reservoir and other water related 


items (WP-4) and that the 2011 unliquidated funds is not very much.   


 


FWS 2012 Research Suggestions (blue font) 


Wet Meadow Monitoring – Currently, there is $10 K dedicated to monitoring of groundwater 


levels on Fox Tract. The Service also identifies a need to: 1) assess the groundwater/streamflow 


interaction on all Program sites containing wet meadows or those targeted for future wet meadow 


creation/restoration including the Fox Tract, and 2) develop wet meadow vegetation monitoring 


protocol.  Recent meetings at the LAC and TAC identified the planned development or inclusion 


of wet meadow habitats for the PRRIP on the Binfield, Cottonwood Ranch, Fox, McCormick, 


and Stall properties.  As indicated in the wet meadow information review, multiple studies have 


linked Platte River stage to groundwater levels. The Program EDO identified the willingness to 


develop a groundwater/surface water assessment for Fox tract.  The Service encourages the 


Program to initiate a study that could be used to develop tools to monitor and evaluate the 


groundwater/surface water interaction for all current and future Program properties containing 


wet meadows.  This may require additional budget allocations.  Additionally, the October 12, 


2011, LAC land management plan development meeting identified potential impacts and/or 


benefits that could occur to wet meadow habitat conditions as a result of management actions. 


The need to assess initial conditions and to evaluate changes in habitat over time could be 


accomplished by developing a wet meadow vegetation monitoring program.  This would allow 


an adaptive management approach to achieving target wet meadow conditions (i.e. assess change 


in vegetative community from management action such as burning).    


Recommendations:  


1)        Expand the scope of work for PD-20 to include a process for assessing Platte River 


effects on wet meadow hydrology for all Program lands with existing or proposed wet meadow 


habitats. This would include a monitoring protocol that records groundwater levels at wet 


meadow sites, surface water acres at wet meadow sites, and river stage over time.  


2)        Expand the scope of work for PD-20 to include development of a wet meadow monitoring 


protocol. This could be combined with the groundwater monitoring study or a stand-alone study. 


 The focus of this protocol would be to monitor changes in vegetation communities over time on 


wet meadows.  This would provide the TAC a tool to evaluate how our management actions 


affect habitat. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 7 


Rabbe lead the discussion and stated the Service felt it would be good for the Program to collect 


baseline data at wet meadow sites to tract changes associated with land (grazing, prescribed fire, 


etc) and water management activities.  Jenniges said if the Program plans to release water from 


the EA to meet target flows then the Program should have a monitoring protocol in place to 


determine if the management actions have the desired result; Besson agreed and said we should 


consider adjusting the 2012 budget to accommodate this type of research.  Farnsworth asked if 


previous studies could be used to establish baseline information.  Czaplewski said a lot of 


information is out there; however, we probably need more of a system-wide monitoring protocol 


where wet-meadow response is likely different upstream (ground water gaining reach) than it is 


downstream (ground water losing reach).  Jenniges added if we are using EA water to evaluate 


wet meadow response we need to continuous recorders to monitor ground water as well as river 


stage at all Program properties with wet meadow habitat (Cottonwood Ranch, Fox Tract, 


Binfield, etc).  Hallum added we would likely need a climate station at each site to produce good 


results in a COHYST type of model.  Rabbe said a first step would be to set up ground-water 


monitoring wells at wet meadow sites throughout the Program Associated Area.  Peyton said 


water action committee people would likely be able to provide guidance as to how many climate 


stations and what level of monitoring we need to capture good data.  C. Smith asked if wet 


meadow monitoring was a Program priority during 2012; Jenniges stated if we release Program 


water then it should be a priority. Rabbe stated the Service planned to use EA water for target 


flows during 2012 due to FSM implementation constraints during 2012. Besson asked if the 


SDHF monitoring could be used for channel monitoring EA use related to target flows.  Jenniges 


stated the monitoring protocols are fairly robust; however, timelier monitoring would likely be 


needed to determine if the action of using EA water for influencing wet meadow habitat and 


maintaining channel characteristics has the desired effect.  Fritz stated we could use past 


monitoring as well as methods such as Floristic Quality Indices to monitor the quality of the 


habitat.  Besson and Jenniges stated the group generally seemed to agree monitoring during 2012 


would be necessary so the group needed to figure out how to budget for the research (earmark 


money in the budget or plan to shift unliquidated money later).  Peyton asked how expensive it 


would be to put ground monitoring wells at each of the sites.  Farnsworth stated the Program 


spent $35,000-$40,000 to put 5 monitoring wells in at the Fox Tract. Rabbe asked what 


additional costs would be associated with monitoring the wells.  Farnsworth said it would 


probably cost $40,000-$50,000 to monitor a series of wells on a monthly basis.  Jenniges 


indicated ground water monitoring would probably need to be conducted on a regular basis while 


water is being released.  C. Smith asked what the Program would use the ground well monitoring 


data for; Jenniges and fritz said it be used to monitor the response of ground water and 


vegetation to target flow releases.  C. Smith asked if the target flow releases would replace flows 


in the FSM management strategy; Rabbe said the planned releases are a way to use EA water to 


provide species benefit until channel conveyance is improved so that implementing FSM is 


possible.  


C. Smith stated the Program will need to spend time developing questions and hypotheses related 


to this monitoring research, if it proceeds, so the GC knows what the data will be used for.  


Besson said it is unlikely the Program will spend all the money so we could probably plan to 


move money in the future rather than budgeting additional money for this monitoring. C. Smith 


and Jenniges stated the Program used to have money budgeted for unidentified directed research 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 7 


projects; however, based on TAC conversations associated with budget cuts; that money no 


longer exists.  C. Smith said the EDO would come up with an estimate, likely between $200,000-


300,000, to be added to IMRP-2 for this monitoring research. 


Water Quality Monitoring – There currently is no description of how collected water quality 


monitoring parameters will be used to address adaptive management needs (or good neighbor 


policy needs). However, water quality monitoring is expected to continue to be funded at its 


current rate throughout the first increment. It would be beneficial for the AMWG to assess the 


role of water quality data in addressing adaptive management information needs. A similar 


process could be conducted for good neighbor policy issues to ensure that information collected 


fully addresses information needs. 


Recommendation: Fund water quality monitoring at current levels for 2012. An assessment of 


the role of water quality data will help to determine water quality needs or budgets for 


subsequent years. 


Rabbe asked how the Program plans to use data collected with the water quality monitoring 


protocol.  C. Smith said the water quality monitoring was added at the end of Program 


negotiations and that the protocol is tailored toward specific projects such as sediment 


augmentation.  C. Smith said we need to have a workshop during 2012 to discuss if the Program 


should continue water quality monitoring and how the data should be used. 


Habitat Complex Workshop – One big question in the synthesis report discusses the relationship 


between Program habitat complexes and species use. To date, there has not been a formal 


determination as to the number of habitat complexes currently formed or being formed by 


Program properties alone or in combination with protected environmental properties.  The 


workshop would also identify habitat types within a bridge segment that would be beneficial to 


complete a habitat complex as well as identifying where future acquisition of habitat complex 


should be focused.  


Recommendation: Schedule a habitat complex workshop either under the AMWG or under PD-4 


if there is a need to develop a budget activity. 


Rabbe said the TAC needs to discuss the Habitat complexes the Program is developing and how 


this habitat relates to bird use; C. Smith agreed we should hold a workshop during early 2012. 


Hydraulic Segmentation Modeling – The TAC looks to continue efforts toward habitat modeling 


for target bird species. One suitability criterion for bird suitability is depth of water (or 


proportionate depth). Currently, channel cross-sections are collected to assess proportionate 


depths for a given flow, but it is not known to what extent the measured cross-section represents 


the longitudinal extent of a river channel.  A hydraulic segmentation study would delineate 


longitudinal segments that have hydraulic similarities (e.g., similar wetted area or similar 


proportionate depths for a given streamflow). Longitudinal segmentation could improve habitat 


selection analyses because longitudinal segmentation categorizes habitat at a two dimensional 


scale when compared to cross-sections.  


Recommendation: Develop new AMWG activity and budget or revise IMRP-2 to include this 


study. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/5/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 7 


Rabbe said Jeff Runge (FWS) developed this research project and that Runge wasn’t sure if data 


collected at current cross-sections have enough detail to determine use versus availability; 


Farnsworth stated in the past this was a concern, but now we collect systematic survey data and 


annual LiDAR data and he’s not sure how we could get any better data.  Farnsworth and Runge 


will discuss this topic and determine how the Program can better use the data we are collecting. 


 


FWS Water Year 2012 Environmental Account Release Priorities  


Rabbe asked if there was any additional discussion related to EA releases for target flows during 


2012.  C. Smith said the previous discussion made it clear the Program was not abandoning the 


FSM management strategy and that the additional planned monitoring will be structured to allow 


the Program to learn how target flow releases influence wet meadow habitat and channel 


maintenance.  Farnsworth said the Service needs to provide the Program the background and 


detailed information for the objectives and purposes of the various target flows so we can 


evaluate the predicted and observed responses of the system; Jenniges and Czaplewski agreed.  


C. Smith said we will need to have a workshop to develop details related to target flows and 


habitat and species response.  


Closing Business 


Next TAC meeting scheduled as a joint meeting with the ISAC on 29–30 November, 2011 9:00-


5:00MST each day at the Staybridge Suites in Denver. 


Conference Call Meeting adjourned at 11:45am Central time. 


 


Summary of Decisions from November 2011 TAC Conference Call Meeting 


1) EDO will better explain what the $200,000 in engineering design for CWR flow 


consolidation will be used for. 


2) EDO will include more detail about the LP-2 activities that will take place at each Complex 


3) C. Smith changed “white paper” to “detailed report” for bird cognition (IMRP-2) and Special 


Advisors (IMRP-3). 


4) EDO will add $200,000 – $300,000 to IMRP-2 for wet meadow research associated with EA 


releases for target flows 


5) EDO will include estimate of unliquidated obligations where applicable 


6) EDO will update the column for 2011 expenditures  


7) Workshops to be schedule for 2011 & 2012: 


a. Water Quality Monitoring (future plans and data uses)  


b. Habitat Complex (update on progress and future plans) 


c. Wet Meadow and Channel Monitoring Research (discuss protocol for monitoring EA 


releases to meet Service target flows) 


  





		October 5-6, 2011 TAC Minutes (Draft)

		November 1, 2011 TAC Conference Call Minutes (Draft)






PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/09/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are made by the 


Finance Committee before approval.  
PRRIP FC Minutes  Page 1 of 4 


 
 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 
Finance Committee Conference Call Minutes 2 


November 9, 2011 3 
 4 


Meeting Attendees 5 
 6 
Finance Committee (FC)    Executive Director’s Office (EDO) Staff 7 
State of Wyoming     Jerry Kenny, Executive Director (ED) 8 
Mike Purcell – Member  (Chair)    Beorn Courtney 9 
       Jason Farnsworth 10 
State of Colorado     Bruce Sackett 11 
Suzanne Sellers – Member    Chad Smith 12 
      13 
State of Nebraska     Participants 14 
Jennifer Schellpeper – Member     Brian Barels – NPPD 15 
       Larry Schulz – EDO Consultant 16 
Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) 17 
John Lawson – Member 18 
 19 
Environmental Entities 20 
John Heaston – Member 21 
 22 
Colorado Water Users 23 
Alan Berryman – Member 24 
Kevin Urie – Member 25 
 26 
Downstream Water Users 27 
Don Kraus – Member 28 
 29 
Welcome and Administrative 30 
Finance Committee Chair Purcell called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. Central time.  No agenda 31 
modifications offered.  Purcell asked about the adjustments recommended by the FC for the whooping 32 
crane monitoring agreement.  Smith said the changes were made and agreed to by the contractor.  Urie 33 
moved to approve the August 25, 2011 FC minutes; Kraus seconded.  Minutes approved. 34 
 35 
Draft FY 2012 PRRIP Budget & Work Plan 36 
Kenny discussed the latest draft of the FY 2012 Program budget and work plan, as well as additional 37 
items provided to the FC for review and discussion.   38 
 39 
Smith began a discussion of the AMP-related budget estimates.  Lawson asked what the budget in 2013 40 
would be.  Smith said zero, except for UO from 2012.  Purcell said at the end of this the FC will be asked 41 
to recommend this budget for approval, so now is the time to ask questions.  Urie asked if there would be 42 
carryover from FY 11 flow consolidation funds into FY 12 for CWR activities.  Lawson said there is a 43 
much larger issue looming regarding the overall size of the budget estimated for FY 2012 and FY 2013.  44 
The current estimates can’t be met, based on the current federal budget situation.  Purcell and Sellers said 45 
we should talk about that now.  Reclamation has $16.5M available and obligated now.  The FY 2012 46 
budget was $10.7 million, but that is not finalized because the government is operating on a Continuing 47 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/09/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are made by the 


Finance Committee before approval.  
PRRIP FC Minutes  Page 2 of 4 


 
 


Resolution.  That adds to about $27.279 million total.  Lawson said he does not know how much will be 48 
needed to cover expenditures between now and the end of the year.  Kenny said he anticipates probably 49 
around $5M more in expenditures.  Lawson said that means there will be about $23M available in federal 50 
funds for FY12, assuming the FY12 budget is ultimately approved by Congress.  Reclamation would then 51 
apply about $21.6M to the Program’s FY12 budget, leaving about $1.4M available for FY13.   Lawson 52 
said we should anticipate that the Program will get less in federal funding that the FY12 budget.  If we get 53 
the same in FY13 and we get in FY12, the Program will only have about $12.1M available to it in federal 54 
funds for FY13.  The current Program FY13 budget estimate is about $27M; the federal share of that 55 
would be about $23.8M, which is a big difference from the $12.1M which is probably going to be 56 
realistically available.  Kenny said the big numbers in FY13 and FY14 are associated with the J-2 57 
reservoir project. 58 
 59 
Kraus said the logical thing is to talk about requesting an increase in the federal appropriation.  Kraus 60 
asked what the history of federal appropriations has been.  Lawson said the highest was about $12M but it 61 
has been ever decreasing each year.  He assumes that future Reclamation requests will be less than the 62 
$10.7M request issued in FY12.  Sellers asked if there is money in a different pot or location for the J-2 63 
reservoir.  Kenny said the budget spreadsheets predicts the kind of cash flow we need for the project but 64 
does not anticipate where the funding will come from.  That is $9M in FY12, $15M the next couple of 65 
years after that, and then diminishing needs in out years.  Kenny said it appears that construction of J-2 66 
would have to occur over a longer time period, or that the Program would have to investigate alternative 67 
financing options.  Purcell asked if the amount for J-2 is just the Program’s share, or if it is a project total.  68 
Kenny said just the Program’s share – capital costs are in the $50M range and the Program share is on the 69 
order of $35-40M, with operations and maintenance in the out years.    Purcell said construction can be 70 
phased, but the other tasks we are funding related to experiments are hard to stop without losing previous 71 
investments. 72 
 73 
Lawson said we have to start matching cash flow availability with budget needs to avoid a big surprise 74 
down the road.  Urie suggested we need to look at prioritizing efforts and dollars knowing we may be 75 
short going into FY13.  Purcell said land costs could be deferred, maybe re-think paying for Pathfinder up 76 
front, etc.  We have the tools in 2013 to adapt to keep critical work going.  Sellers asked Lawson if we 77 
were to spend money at a different percentage (e.g. have the federal government spend at a lower 78 
percentage) will that cause a problem in future years when the federal funding needed to catch up.  79 
Purcell said that is a possibility, but at the end of the day the total federal percentage needs to remain the 80 
same.  Lawson said we are getting to the point of doing analysis of what we think is cash flow in the 81 
future and make adjustments accordingly.  Purcell said what we should do is the FC should discuss what 82 
an appropriate cut to future budgets would be and have Kenny go back and make appropriate 83 
recommendations.  Kenny said one of the issues could be that if annual federal appropriations continue to 84 
go down, the federal share of the agreement at the end of the First Increment won’t be upheld.  Lawson 85 
said it is hard to predict but it looks like the way things are going, further belt tightening will probably be 86 
required.  It is hard to know what will happen beyond 2014 given uncertainty about the national economy, 87 
etc.  Barels said we must be close to the land goals, so isn’t there flexibility in that one line item?  Sackett 88 
said the estimates in the budget are looking at acquisition of about another 1,000 acres, but also 300-400 89 
acres will be sold.  We are not yet at the land goal, and that goal has been determined to be a floor, not a 90 
ceiling.  Kenny said for 2013, given that we are close to the goal, the new money ask for land acquisition 91 
is flexible.  The number for 2012, the number is equivalent to about 1,000 acres and then by the end of 92 
next year we should have met the floor.  Lawson said all he was suggesting is that we have never laid out 93 
a proposed plan to be flexible if dollars are tight. 94 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/09/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are made by the 


Finance Committee before approval.  
PRRIP FC Minutes  Page 3 of 4 


 
 


Sellers asked if this has come up before because Ted Kowalski has voiced concerns about federal funding 95 
and wondered if the First Increment could be extended based on budget problems.  Lawson said Kowalski 96 
has mentioned that in passing and now is the time to look at what happens if you don’t get the big 97 
numbers you have been anticipating.  Urie said the Program seems to only have been spending about half 98 
of what has been budgeted each year (except for 2009 due to land acquisitions).  That might mean we will 99 
have less of a problem than we are talking about now.  Kenny said for the difference between what we are 100 
going to spend and what we are going to spend in 2011, the big item is not spending a large chunk on J-2 101 
reservoir land acquisition.  As we look down the road, there are some items where we have had bigger 102 
numbers that have been scrubbed down.  But, those totals for next years and out years in certain sections 103 
of the budget are minor compared to large items like land acquisition and the J-2 reservoir.  Purcell 104 
agreed and said we need to focus on the “7-digit” budget items.  We need to consummate any land deal 105 
for the reservoir, but things like final design, plans and specs, etc. can be talked about in terms of timing 106 
flexibility.  Courtney asked about what Kenny means in terms of J-2 flexibility.  Kenny said creative 107 
financing and delaying the project are both options that have to be considered.  Purcell said he is more 108 
comfortable with paying faster for J-2.  Sellers said Colorado would rather have insurance to continue to 109 
get streamlined consultations until the J-2 water project is complete.  Purcell said paying faster means the 110 
states would get commensurate payment back if necessary in the future.  Sellers said the concern is if we 111 
buy land at a high price and the project can’t go forward, then we’ll have a higher percentage of 112 
overvalued land that we can recoup the costs from.  Schellpeper said what Purcell is saying is he would 113 
want to pay faster for an asset (land or water) as opposed to something like the AMP management 114 
actions.  Kenny said associating that to one or two lines items is much easier from an administrative 115 
standpoint for the ED Office and the NCF.  Sellers said Colorado is not saying no to that option buts 116 
wants to mitigate risk, especially if land is purchased and the J-2 project ultimately does not go forward. 117 
 118 
Purcell said the ED Office should look at the very large line items and give the FC and GC thoughts for 119 
phasing those costs (land and water, in particular) and then reconvene.  Purcell asked Kenny to go 120 
through his presentation on the ED Office.  Sellers asked about Exhibit B for the ED Office contract and 121 
asked if items should be pro-rated if staff are not working full time on the Program.  Kenny said all of 122 
those items (rent, phones, etc.) are already pro-rated based on percentages of staff time working on the 123 
Program.  Sellers said to cover this issue she would prefer that Kenny add a footnote to Exhibit B 124 
explaining how that pro-rating is incorporated.  Kenny said he could do that; 80% is the pro-rating 125 
factor used. 126 
 127 
Kenny said the work plan and budget in front of the FC is what we need to get the work done.  The 128 
staffing plan for the ED Office for this work is reflected in the budget estimate for line item ED-1 in the 129 
FY12 budget.  Exhibit A is the scope of work for the ED Office and Exhibit B is labor and direct costs.  130 
The large item is labor (84% of the budget). 131 
 132 
Purcell asked the FC if they wanted to recommend for approval the ED-1 line item.  Urie said the number 133 
seems real and we need to consider it in the budget as accepted.  Lawson said Kenny laid out what his 134 
budget needs are and he has no reason to question.  He has no problem approving this portion.  In the 135 
future, the GC may have to come back and hold costs to a certain level at some point and Kenny may 136 
have to figure out how to live within that cap.  Lawson is not recommending that now.  Kenny said we 137 
have done that from 2010-2011.  Purcell said Kenny has a good set of staff and operation and he does not 138 
want to jeopardize that.  Sellers said in general if we approve things line by line, if items have to be 139 
tweaked it may make the process more difficult.  Purcell said we would recommend approval of the 140 
administration budget but defer approval of the rest until recommended adjustments are made in the land 141 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/09/2011 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are made by the 


Finance Committee before approval.  
PRRIP FC Minutes  Page 4 of 4 


 
 


and water sections.  Heaston moved to recommend for GC approval the ED-1 budget estimate for 142 
FY2012; Berryman seconded.  Motion approved. 143 
 144 
Purcell directed Kenny to address the rest of the budget, with particular emphasis on land and water, and 145 
get a revised budget to the GC before the November 18 meeting.  Purcell said working with the land and 146 
water assumptions will help.  Kenny said he will do that and also consider some cash flow diagrams.  147 
Berryman said we should consider postponing new projects.  Purcell said if there are new projects started, 148 
would we be able to continue them.  He said he is reluctant to mess with AMP items because of their 149 
importance to decision-making in the future. 150 
 151 
Barels said one thing that may need to be considered is the choke point issues.  He said the Program is 152 
having a hard time testing FSM until other water is in place, and there seems to be a discussion of a new 153 
choke point at Kearney.  Barels said these are real-time issues that need addressed and pertain to 154 
provisions and decisions in the white book.  Kenny said choke point issues are to be addressed in budget 155 
line items WP-1a and WP-1b.  Kenny said we are learning a great deal about FSM through natural flows 156 
and other activities.  Purcell said Barels brings a bigger issue and that is how reaching milestones is 157 
influenced by budget items, choke points, and other realities in 2011 as opposed to 2007.   158 
 159 
Closing Business 160 
FC meeting adjourned at 11:52 a.m. Central time. 161 
 162 
Summary of Action Items/Decisions from November 9, 2011 FC meeting 163 
1) Approved August 25, 2011 FC minutes. 164 
2) Recommended for GC approval the FY 2012 Program budget line item ED-1. 165 
3) Kenny agreed to add a footnote to Exhibit B of the FY 2012 ED contract noting the pro-rating factor 166 


for direct costs. 167 
4) Kenny agreed to work on FY 2012 and beyond budget revisions, particularly with large items in the 168 


land and water budgets, for presentation to the GC during the November 18 GC Special Session 169 
conference call. 170 





